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GRAND PRIX INTERNATIONAL PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Message from
Chairman of the Board
Mr. Yuth Vorachattarn
Chairman of the Boardector

Dear Shareholders,
Due to a crisis of the COVID-19 pandemic which resulted in economic slowdown both domestic and abroad
and made a major impact on the business operation of Grand Prix International Public Co., Ltd., especially Automotive
Exhibition Organizing that was considered the main company’s revenue resulted in separate net profit decreased from
108.70 million baht in 2019 to 38.13 million baht. Thus, 2020 was a challenging year for the company who had to
adjust its strategy accordingly to deal with situations that will happen, focus on seeking new businesses to reduce
the risk from relying on a major business, manage the company’s financial liquidity, and closely monitor for preparation
of a counter plan from changing situation so the company can get through a crisis.
From various risk issues, both the COVID-19 pandemic, PM 2.5, global warming, and the rapid technology
transformation to be able to adapt and deal with the changes that arise in a timely manner, therefore, the Board had
appointed Sustainable Development Committee which has the same composition with Risk Management Committee
to build strength and growth of the business also supervise the company’s operations to drive towards sustainability.
For good corporate governance, the company has been certified by Thailand’s Private Sector Collective
Action Coalition Against Corruption (CAC), which demonstrates the intention and determination to against all forms of
corruption, operating a business with transparency and fairness in accordance with good corporate governance.
In addition, the company received a “good” score (4 stars) of the Corporate Governance Report of Thai Listed
Companies (CGR) for 2020 from the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD).
Finally, on behalf of the Board, I would like to thank you to shareholders and all stakeholders who have always
trusted and supported the company. The Board, Executive, and employees will always intend and dedicate to perform
their duties by considering the benefits of all of you as important in order for the organization to return to growth and
have good operating results leading to the organization’s sustainability further.

Mr. Yuth Vorachattarn
Chairman of the Board
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Message from
Chairman of the Executive
Mr. Prachin Eamlumnow
Chairman of the Executive

Dear Shareholders,
The year 2020 was a challenging year for Grand Prix International Public Co., Ltd., mainly due to the COVID-19
pandemic resulting in escalating impact steadily from the rapidly increasing infection affected the government and
public health agencies issued various measures to control risk from infection which affected both domestic and aboard
businesses including the company’s business also.
An important change in 2020 that was the company had been directly affected by the COVID-19 pandemic,
forcing the company to postpone the schedule of the 41st Bangkok International Motor Show (BIMS) totaling 3 times
before held on 13 July 2020. And since it is the first exhibition after the whole country had been locked down.
The exhibition must be strict according to the requirements from Government Regulations and recommendations
of the Ministry of Public Health and was based on new normal. In addition, the COVID-19 pandemic affects
other businesses of the company such as Yangon International Motor Show in Myanmar that shall be postpone
indefinitely, revenue from printing business declined due to business closures and customer cost control. But in
the midst of uncertainty under impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, GP e-racing business got well feedback and
significant growth from the previous year. In addition, the company has jointly developed the platform business with
YDM (Thailand) Co., Ltd., is the collection of information from users to continuously find the demand for products and
services from users
Due to the crisis affecting and the severity of the COVID-19 pandemic outbreak that the company has to face
throughout the year 2020, the operations resulted the company was able to generate a net profit of 34.09 million baht,
down 66.81% compared to 2019, in line with the economic slowdown. However, the company still commits to
develop operational plan to deal with risks in a comprehensive manner. As well the operations with good corporate
governance practices in the year 2020, the company was able to develop a score in Corporate Governance Report of
Thai Listed Companies by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) at 4 stars, and the company was certified by Thailand’s
Private Sector Collective Action Coalition Against Corruption which helps to promote the company and all employees
to understand and work with responsibility and transparency for leading to a sustainable organizational foundation
further.
On behalf of the CEO of Grand Prix International Public Co., Ltd., I would like to thank you to shareholders,
customers, investors, financial institutions, business partners, government agencies, media, and the general public who
have always supported and promoted the Company’s operation also thank you very much to Board, Executive, and all
employees who support and sacrifice so that the company can get through a crisis and sincerely hope that the
company will receive your cooperation and support for continued success in the future.

Mr. Prachin Eamlumnow
Chairman of the Executive
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GRAND PRIX INTERNATIONAL PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Report of
the Audit Committee
Gen. Dr. Surapan Poomkaew
Chairman of the Audit Committee
Dear Shareholders,
The Audit Committee of Grand Prix International Public Company Limited shall be comprised of 3 independent
directors who are experts, having sufficient knowledge and experience in finance, accounting, law, and management
as follow :
1. Gen. Dr. Surapan Poomkaew
Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. Mr. Kanokphand Chulakasem
Audit Committee Member
3. Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi
Audit Committee Member
The Audit Committee has performed its duties independently as assigned by the Board of Directors which is
specified in the Charter of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee shall be fully conformed to the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET). In 2020, the Audit Committee held a total
of 5 meetings, the key points are as follows :
1. The Audit Committee shall review the quarterly and annual financial statements of the Company and its
		 subsidiaries together with the Chief Accounting and Financial Officer also the Auditors to ensure the
		 accuracy and completeness of financial statements and adjustment of important accounting entry, including
		 the sufficiency and appropriateness of accounting recording methods, the completeness and accuracy
		 disclosure of information. The Auditors are independence to ensure that financial statements preparation
		 complies with legal regulations and generally accepted accounting standard that is reliable. Including sufficient
		 and timely information is disclosed for the benefit of shareholders, investors, and users of the financial
		statements.
2. The Audit Committee shall monitor, supervise the organization’s operations to establish internal control
		 system and control self-assessment, control assessment by management and the Internal Audit Department
		 under the COSO Internal Control 2013 standard to ensure that the Company’s internal control is sufficient
		 and appropriate also comply with internal control standards.
3. The Audit Committee shall review the annual audit plan, including the Audit Report and the Follow up
		 Operating Results Report based on recommendations of the Internal Auditor on the significance issue
		 causing good corporate governance and sufficient and appropriate internal control.
4. The Audit Committee shall review implementation of the risk management to ensure that the risk
		 management process is in accordance with international standard principles which covered all key internal
		 and external risk factors. There are an effective risk management plan and approach that be able to control
		 or reduce impacts that may affect to the organization’s operational objectives achievement at acceptable
		 risk levels, including regular review of effectiveness and suitability of the risk management process.
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The Audit Committee shall review the compliance with all relevant SEC and SET laws and regulations and
other laws related to the Company’s businesses to ensure that the Company has complied with laws,
operated under normal business conditions correctly and appropriately. In 2020, it couldn’t find any
transaction that the Company and its subsidiaries have acted to contrary the relevant laws and regulations.
The Audit Committee shall review connected transactions or transactions that may lead to conflicts of
interest to comply with all applicable laws and regulations, oversee the disclosure of information accurately,
completeness and timely, ensuring that such transactions are reasonable and the best benefit to
the Company.
The Audit Committee shall consider, select, propose, appoint and determine the Auditors’ remuneration for
the year 2021 based on independence, knowledge, ability, experience and performance results before
presenting to the Board of Directors for approval then propose to the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders for the year 2021 for approval and appointing the Auditors from DIA International Audit
Company Limited by Mrs. Suvimol Chaityakierne CPA No. 2982 and/or Mr. Joomphot Prirattanakorn CPA
No. 7645 and/or Mr. Viroj Sajjathamnukul CPA No. 5128, to be the Company’s auditors for the year 2021.

In summary, the Audit Committee’s duties in 2020 have followed the Company’s operation by using knowledge
and ability, having sufficient independence based on duties and responsibilities specified in the Audit Committee
Charter by providing an opinion that the Company has prepared the financial statements showing significant information
completeness and reliable in accordance with generally accepted accounting standard, information is disclosed,
inter-transactions or transactions that may cause a conflict of interest adequately, having risk management system at
acceptable risk levels, having an internal control system that sufficient and suitable for business operations, including
complete complying with laws, rules and regulations related to the Company’s business operations.

Gen. Dr. Surapan Poomkaew
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Report of the Risk
รายงานคณะกรรมการ
Management
บริ
หารความเสี่ยง
Committee

ดร.ธรรศ
อุUdomdhammabhakdi
ดมธรรมภักดี
Dr.
Dhas
ประธานกรรมการบริหารความเสี่ยง
Chairman of the Risk Management Committee

เรีีDear
ยน Shareholders,
ท่่านผู้้�ถืือหุ้้�น

			
Encouraging
work
of the Board
of Directors for supervising
the organization’s
achieve set
เพื่่�อเป็็นการสนัั
บสนุุนการทำำ
�งานของคณะกรรมการบริิ
ษััท  ในการกำำ
�กัับดููแลบริิหrisk
ารจััmanagement
ดการความเสี่่�toยงขององค์์
กร 
		

goals. The Risk Management
Committee
is appointedษััทจึ
by ึงthe
of Directors which
consists �ยofง 4ซึ่่�งdirectors
who
ให้้สามารถบรรลุุเป้้
าหมายที่่�ตั้้�งไว้้ได้้ 
คณะกรรมการบริิ
ได้้แต่่Board
งตั้้�งคณะกรรมการบริิ
หารความเสี่่
ประกอบด้้วย
have knowledge,
and understanding in คbusiness
operations�as
กรรมการที่่�
มีีความรู้ability
้� ความสามารถ ตลอดจนมีี
วามเข้้าใจในการดำำ
เนิินfollows:
ธุุรกิิจ จำำ�นวน 4 ท่่าน ดัังต่่อไปนี้้�
1.1. ดร.ธรรศ อุุดมธรรมภัั
Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi
Chairman
of
Risk
Management
Committee
กดีี
ประธานคณะกรรมการบริิหารความเสี่่�
ยง
2.2. นายจาตุุรนต์์
Mr. Jaturont Komolmis,		
Risk
Management
Committee
Members
โกมลมิิศร์์  
กรรมการบริิหารความเสี่่�ยง
3. Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow		
Risk Management Committee Members
3. นายอโณทััย เอี่่�ยมลำำ�เนา
กรรมการบริิหารความเสี่่�ยง
4. Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow
Risk Management Committee Members
4. นายพีีระพงศ์์ เอี่่�ยมลำำ�เนา
กรรมการบริิหารความเสี่่�ยง
คณะกรรมการบริิ
หารความเสี่่
ย� งได้้ทำำ
�หน้้responsible
าที่่�กำำ�หนดและทบทวนกรอบการบริิ
หารความเสี่่
งองค์์กร รวมถึึframework,
งนโยบาย
The
Risk Management
Committee
shall
for determining and reviewing
the riskย� management
และกระบวนการบริิ
ยง key
เพื่่�อกลั่่�
งที่่�สำำ�คััญ และให้้ข้้อเสนอแนะเกี่่
�ยวกัับแนวทางในการบริิ
าร
policy, and processหารความเสี่่�
to scrutinize
risksนกรองความเสี่่�
and provide ยrecommendations
on risk management
guidelines that หare
จััsuitable
ดการความเสี่่�
ยงให้้เหมาะสมกัั
เนิินconsistent
ธุุรกิิจ  สอดคล้้องต่่
และแผนธุุรกิิ
จขององค์์
ร สำำ�หรัับplan.
ปีี 2563
คณะ
for business
operationsบการดำำ
that �are
with theอกลยุุทธ์์
organization’s
strategy
and กbusiness
In 2020,
กรรมการบริิ
หารความเสี่่�Committee
ยงมีีการประชุุ
งสิ้้�น 6toครั้้consider
�ง เพื่่�อพิิimportant
จารณาเรื่่�อmatters
งที่่�สำำ�คััญwhich
สรุุปได้้ดัั
นี้้� summarized as follows:
the Risk Management
heldม6รวมทั้้�
meetings
can งbe
�หนดและทบทวนกรอบการบริิ
หารความเสี่่�
ยงทั่่�วทั้้�framework
งองค์์กร  ให้้มีี
บแผนกลยุุทธ์์
1. กำำDetermining
and reviewing a risk
management
thatความเหมาะสม
shall cover theสอดคล้้องกัั
entire organization
that
ัทและสภาพแวดล้้อมในปัั
จจุุบัันplan, operating plan and current environment.
		 แผนการดำำ
appropriate�เนิิandนงานของบริิ
consistentษัwith
the Company’s strategic
2. กำำSupervising
the Company’s จหลั
mainกั ของบริิ
business
variousปัจั potential
factors
cover
�กับั ดูแู ลให้้การประกอบธุุรกิิ
ษัท มี
ั shall
กี ารดำำbe�เนิิanalyzed
นการวิิเคราะห์์
จััยเสี่่ย� งต่่risk
างๆ ที่่�
อาจเกิิthat
ดขึ้้น� shall
ครอบคลุุม
		 ความเสี่่�
strategicยrisk,
financial
risk,
operational
risk,
compliance
risk
and
corruption
risk
on
a
regular
basis.
Including
งด้้านกลยุุทธ์์ ความเสี่่�ยงทางการเงิิน ความเสี่่�ยงจากการปฏิิบััติิงาน ความเสี่่�ยงจากการปฏิิบััติิตาม
		 กฎหมาย
assessing และความเสี่่
the potentialย� งด้้านการทุุจริิ
impact on anตorganization
order
to prioritize,งประเมิิ
formulate
a risk management อplan
คอร์์รััปชันั อย่่inางสม่ำำ
��เสมอ รวมทั้้�
นแนวโน้้มของผลกระทบที่่�
าจ
		 มีีand
preparing
appropriate
risk
control
guidelines
to
manage
risk
at
acceptable
risk
levels
or
reduce
the
ต่่อองค์์กร เพื่่�อจััดลำำ�ดัับความสำำ�คััญ กำำ�หนดแผนบริิหารจััดการความเสี่่�ยง และจััดทำำ�แนวทางควบคุุมความ
		 เสี่่
likelihood
occurring.
ย� งดัังกล่่ofาวนั้้�future
นอย่่าrisks
งเหมาะสม
เพื่่อ� บริิหารความเสี่่ย� งให้้อยู่่�ในระดัับที่่�บริิษัทั ยอมรัับได้้ หรืือลดโอกาสที่่�จะเกิิด
3. ความเสี่่�
Monitoring
and
reviewing
the
implementation
of risk management plan under the risk management policy
ยงขึ้้�นในอนาคต 
		3. ติิand
determined
to ensure that
riskดการความเสี่่�
managementยง ภายใต้้นโยบายและกรอบการบริิ
is in line with risk control guidelines
ดตframework
ามและทบทวนการดำำ
�เนิิannually
นงานตามแผนการบริิ
หารจัั
หาร
		 and the Company’s strategy. By preparing a report of the Risk Management Committee to present
ความเสี่่ย� งที่่�กำำ�หนดขึ้้�นประจำำ�ปีี เพื่่อ� ให้้มั่่�นใจว่่าการบริิหารจััดการความเสี่่ย� งเป็็นไปตามแนวทางควบคุุมความ
		 significant risk under the supervision and monitoring of each quarter before presenting to the Board of
ย� งและกลยุุทธ์์
ของบริิษัท 
ั โดยจััand
ดทำำ�ร
ายงานคณะกรรมการบริิ
หารความเสี่่
ย� ง เพื่่อ� basis.
นำำ�เสนอประเด็็นความเสี่่ย� ง
		 เสี่่
Directors
for acknowledgment
providing
additional opinions
on a quarterly
�คััญของบริิand
ษััท ที่่
�อยู่่�ภายใต้้การกำำ
�กัับดููแล toและติิ
ามในแต่่
ละไตรมาส ก่่
อนนำำ
�เสนอคณะกรรมการบริิ
ษััท
4. สำำConsidering
approval
before presenting
the ดต
Board
of Directors
for risk
management
plans in various
บทราบและให้้ความเห็็
เพิ่่�มเติิมเป็็นประจำำ�ทุุกไตรมาส
		 เพื่่
the�อรััCompany’s
investment นprojects.
จารณาและให้้ความเห็็
อนนำำ�เสนอคณะกรรมการบริิ
ในแผนการบริิ
หารจััดการความเสี่่�
5.4. พิิProviding
recommendationนชอบก่่
to encourage
the organization’s riskษััท 
management
development
to containยงของ
more
โครงการลงทุุนสำำ
�คััญต่่างๆ ของบริิษััท
		 effective
and efficient.
5. ให้้คำำ�แนะนำำ�เพื่่�อส่่งเสริิมให้้มีีการพััฒนาการบริิหารความเสี่่�ยงขององค์์กรให้้มีีประสิิทธิิภาพและประสิิทธิิผล
ยิ่่�งขึ้้�น
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Considering and reviewing Charter of the Risk Management Committee to improve and revise the
qualifications, roles, duties and responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee to correspond to the
Good Corporate Governance and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) and the Securities
and Exchange Commission’s (SEC).

From the above operations, the Risk Management Committee is confident that in 2020 the Company has
continued risk management and is in line with changing circumstances, be able to control key risks effectively which
consistent with the principles and practices of good corporate governance, compliance the Anti-corruption policy
including having sufficient internal control system, compliance legal and relevant regulations that accuracy and
completeness to help the company to achieve plans and goals set.

(Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi)
Chairman of the Risk Management Committee
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GRAND PRIX INTERNATIONAL PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Report of the Nominations,
Remuneration and Corporate
Governance Committee

6. พิิจารณาทบทวนกฎบััตรของคณะกรรมการบริิหารความเสี่่ย� ง เพื่่อ� ปรัับปรุุงและแก้้ไขเกี่่ย� วกัับคุุณสมบััติิ บทบาท
หน้้าที่่� และความรัับผิิดชอบของคณะกรรมการบริิหารความเสี่่�ยง ให้้สอดคล้้องกัับหลัักเกณฑ์์และแนวทาง
ปฏิิบััติิการกำำ�กัับดููแลกิิจการที่่�ดีี และข้้อกำำ�หนดของตลาดหลัักทรััพย์์แห่่งประเทศไทย และสำำ�นัักงานคณะ
กรรมการกำำ�กัับหลัักทรััพย์์และตลาดหลัักทรััพย์์

Mr. Kanokphand
Chulakasem
จากการดำำ�เนิินงานดัังกล่่าวข้้างต้้น คณะกรรมการบริิหารความเสี่่�ยงมีีความมั่่�นใจว่่า ในปีี 2563 บริิษัทมี
ั กี ารบริิหาร

Chairman
of the
Nominations,
Remuneration
and
ความเสี่่�
ย
งองค์์
ก
รอย่่
า
งต่่
อ
เนื่่�
อ
งและสอดคล้้องกัั
บ
สภาวการณ์์
ที่่
�
เ
ปลี่่�ยนแปลงไป  สามารถควบคุุมความเสี่่�ยงที่่�สำำ�คััญได้้
Corporate Governance Committee
อย่่างมีีประสิิทธิิภาพ  สอดคล้้องกัับหลัักการและแนวปฏิิบััติิในการกำำ�กัับดููแลกิิจการที่่�ดีี ปฏิิบััติิตามนโยบายต่่อต้้านการ
ทุุจริิตคอร์์รััปชััน รวมถึึงมีีระบบการควบคุุมภายในที่่�เพีียงพอ มีีการปฏิิบััติิตามกฎหมาย และระเบีียบข้้อบัังคัับที่่�เกี่่�ยวข้้อง
Dear อย่่Shareholders,
างถููกต้้องและครบถ้้วน  เพื่่�อช่่วยส่่งเสริิมให้้บริิษััทสามารถบรรลุุผลสำำ�เร็็จตามแผนงานและเป้้าหมายที่่�วางไว้้

			
The Board of Directors of Grand Prix International Public Company Limited has appointed the Nominations,
		

Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee which consisting of 3 independent directors and 1 executive director
as follows:
1. Mr. Kanokphand Chulakasem
Chairman
2. Gen. Dr. Surapan Poomkaew,
Committee Member
3. Mr. Kanokphand Chulakasem,
Committee Member
4. Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow
Committee Member
ดร.ธรรศ อุุดมธรรมภัักดีี
In 2020, the Board of Directors approved to combine duties of the Sub-committees
and
“the Good
Governance
ประธานกรรมการบริิ
หารความเสี่่
�ยง
Committee” with the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (formerly) and held 4 meetings with significant performance
as follows:
1. Recruiting and proposing appropriate persons to assume the position of the Company’s directors before
		 presenting to the Shareholders’ Meeting 2021 for approval. The minority shareholders were provided an
		 opportunity by the Company to nominate persons to be a Company’s director within 31 December 2020.
2. Considering remuneration of the Board of Directors and sub-committees and determining remuneration for the
		 year 2021 to propose to the Board of Directors and the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2021 for
		 approval. By guidelines of remuneration will be considered duties and responsibilities set which linked to the
		 Company’s operational and other related factors as well as comparable to listed companies in the Stock Exchange
		 of Thailand which are in the same business and with similar business sizes.
3. Evaluating the performance of the Chief Executive Officer for the year 2020 and report to the Board of Directors
		 to be used as a guideline for improving the performance of the Chief Executive Officer, planning training to
		 increase knowledge skills, and determining remuneration for the Chief Executive Officer for the year 2021.
4. Monitoring and supervising the Company to have an appropriate succession and continuity plan in personnel
		 management for holding a position of Chief Executive Officer and Top management to prepare the personnel
		 completeness to support the business expansion in the future.
5. Monitoring and taking care compensation policy of employees to be fair, able to compete with the market, and
		 retain qualified and competent employees.
6. Considering and reviewing the good governance policy to comply with the principle and Corporate Governance
		 Code : CG Code of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) to create confidence among shareholders,
		 investors, stakeholders, and all parties involved.
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Considering and reviewing the Anti-corruption policy. Determining the Company to operate under the
principles of law, honesty, and virtue in accordance with good governance code and ethics to promote
the transparent business operation.
Considering and reviewing whistleblower policy to ensure that the Company has an efficient and
aware whistleblower support system including the implementation of corporate culture.
Providing the performance assessment of the Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate Governance
Committee for the year 2020 and report results to the Board to develop efficiency and disclose the
assessment results in the annual report.

In this regard, the Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee has performed
duties as assigned with prudence, transparency, impartiality, honest opinion and independence based on good
corporate governance principles by realizing the best interests of the Company and all stakeholders are important.

(Mr. Kanokphand Chulakasem)
Chairman of the Nominations, Remuneration
and Corporate Governance Committee
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Corporate Information
Company Profile
Company Name
Address

Type of Business
Company registration No.
Authorized Capital
Paid-up Capital
Paid-up Stock
Type of Equity
Par Value
Telephone / Fax
Home Page

Subsidiary Company
Company Name
Address

Type of Business
Authorized Capital
Paid-up Capital
Number of Share held by the Company
Percentage Equity Stake

Associated Company
Company Name
Address
Type of Business

Grand Prix International Public Company Limited
4/299 Moo 5, Soi Ladplakhao 66, Ladplakhao Rd., Anusawaree,
Bangkhen Bangkok 10220
Media & Publishing
0107557000322
300,000,000 THB
300,000,000 THB
600,000,000 shares
Common Stock
0.5 THB/share
0-2522-1731-8 / 0-2971-7342
https://investor.grandprix.co.th/en
GPI Myanmar Company Limited
GEMS 4#03 3rd floor, GEMS garden condominium,
Thazin Street, Hlaing Township, Yangon, Myanmar
Event Organization in Myanmar
50,000 USD
50,000 USD
50,000 USD
100%

Authorized Capital
Percentage Equity Stake

Automatrix Solutions Company Limited
139/26 Soi Ladprao 53 (Chockchai 4), Saphansong, Wang Thonglang, Bangkok
Central market for trading products or services, by using electronic
media via the Internet network.
4,000,000 THB
49%

Company Name
Address
Type of Business
Authorized Capital
Percentage Equity Stake

True Energy Company Limited
109 Moo 10 Lampaya, Banglen, Nakhon Pathom 73130
Production and distribution electric current
257,000,000 THB
25.45%
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Registration Service

Auditor

Company Secretary
Investor Relationship
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Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.
The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building, 93 Ratchadaphisek Road, Dindaeng,
Bangkok 10400
Tel.: 0-2009-9999
D I A International Audit Co., Ltd.
316/32 Sukhumvit 22 Road (Soi Sainumthip) Klongtoey Bangkok 10110
Tel.: 0-2259-5300-2
Fax: 0-2260-1553, 0-2259-8959
Ms. Kitkallaya Somroumrom			
Tel.: 0-2522-1731-8 ext. 250
E-mail: kitkallaya@grandprix.co.th
Mr. Nattapon Sangchailapwuttana
Tel.: 0-2522-1731-8 ext.309
E-mail: ir@grandprix.co.th
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Financial Highlight

(Unit : Million)

Statement of Income

2018

2019

2020

Sales & Services Revenue

731.65

719.33

509.41

Gross Profit

336.28

288.65

209.66

Net Profit

131.51

102.72

34.09

Statement of Financial Position

2018

2019

2020

Current Assets

731.20

555.76

323.48

Non-Current Assets

269.97

421.06

490.59

1,001.17

976.81

814.07

192.66

174.52

39.13

25.07

24.98

26.67

Total Liabilities

217.73

199.50

65.80

Total Equity

783.43

777.31

748.27

Authorized share capital

300.00

300.00

300.00

Paid-up share capital

300.00

300.00

300.00

อัตราส่วนทางการเงิน

2018

2019

2020

Gross Profit Margin (%)

45.96

40.13

41.16

Net Profit Margin (%)

17.97

14.28

6.69

ROE (%)

17.24

13.16

4.47

ROA (%)

16.13

13.24

5.05

0.28

0.26

0.09

Total Asset
Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities

D/E (Times)
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Sales & Service Revenue
731.65

Gross Profit

719.33

336.28
509.41

2018

2019

Net Profit
131.51

288.65

102.72
209.66

2020

2018

2019

2020

Gross Profit Margin
40.13%

2018

1001.17

2019

Asset
976.81

34.09
2018

41.16%

2020

14.28%
6.69%

2020

2018

2019

Liabilities
814.07

2019

Net Profit Margin
17.97%

45.96%
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217.73

2020

Equity
783.43

199.50

777.31
748.27

65.80
2018

2019

2020

2018

ROA

2019

2020

ROE

13.24%

0.28

2019

2020

0.09

4.47%
2018

2019

2020

0.26

13.16%
5.05%

2018

2019

Debt to Equity

17.24%
16.13 %

2018

2020

2018

2019

2020
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Vision, Mission, Objectives and Long-Term Goals
Vision

GPI is a leading event organizer and information provider with aim to create impressive experience and entertainment
for every life style of automotive users.

Mission
•
		
•
•
•
•
•
•
		
•
•

To produce automotive-focused contents, distribute quality knowledge and automotive innovation that deliver value
to society and consumers;
To develop automotive-related activities to meet customers’ satisfaction;
To create high value and up-to-date product brands in automotive industry;
To deliver the most satisfactory to customers, partners and society in a professional way;
To provide new automotive innovations to deliver an excellent customer experience;
To create a high-value, outstanding and modern organization in automotive industry;
To develop human resources to create people with knowledge, skills and efficiency, as well as to create working
environment in the most efficient way;
To create an organization base with great value to differentiate us from others;
To provide financial rewards for our shareholders and stakeholders with high-efficiency risk management

The Company’s Objectives and Main Goals

The Board of Directors has defined the company’s objectives and main goals by realizing the value creation for all
stakeholders and society as a whole. By considering the environment and various changing factors. Bring an appropriate
innovation or technology applied to meet needs of customers and stakeholders. Readiness, expertise and competitiveness of
the company as follows:
(1) The Company will be a leader in the exhibition of automotive that standardized and quality. Committed to developing
		 the exhibition with new innovations to respond to changing customer needs and behaviors.
(2) The Company will operate its business to be competitive and gain good operating results for sustainable growth.
(3) The Company will operate its business ethically, transparent, respect rights and be responsible for shareholders,
		 all stakeholders, benefit society and reduce the environmental impact, to be able to adapt under environment
		 and changing factors for business to survive for a long time.
(4) The Company will communicate and strengthen the Company’s objectives and main goals to be a good guideline in
		 making decisions and the operation of employees at all levels until it becomes a corporate culture.
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Long-Term Goals (3-5 years)
Exhibition and Event Business

The Company determines to maintain its leadership in automotive exhibition by focusing on the development of event
pattern and develop activities in the event to be interesting, providing quality and comprehensive services, including applying
various technologies for exhibition to create new experiences for customers and to increase the ability to expand market of
automotive events both in the country and abroad.

Media and Publishing Business

The Company determines to produce quality online media to be in line with the lifestyle of automotive customers by
analysis the user database through the application in order to adapt service models and develop products consistent with
customer needs. Including focusing on the development of original print media to add value as a collection, branding in each
media to be known to be able to develop or offer new products and services under that brand.

Printing Business

The Company is still focusing on producing quality products, using modern materials and printing techniques by seeking
new innovations to increase production efficiency, including constantly adapting to the consumer groups and the market and
develop a variety of products, adjusting product formats to meet market needs.

E-Sport Business

The Company determines to be a leadership in holding Digital Motorsport Competition in Thailand and in Southeast Asia
(SEA) in both online and offline formats. By focusing on developing style and technique in holding a competition to be
interesting and meet the standards that certified by the Royal Automobile Association of Thailand (RAOT) and the International
Automobile Federation (FIA) in order to increase the customer’s confidence that will receive a service as quality and world-class
standards.

Power Plant Business

The Company wants to diversification from relying on the existing business, therefore, invested in the power plant which
the Company sees as an important energy source both for the community or future vehicles. The Company focuses on controlling
and supervising the business operation of power plant based on standards and plans that have been planned by realizing the
interests of stakeholders and the environment as well as education to prepare for further investment in the future.
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Major Changes and Developments
2016

• The Company’s website named www.grandprix.co.th was launched with the aim to be a major automotive content
		provider.

2017

• The Company sold up 100 million shares in its initial public offering (IPO) at 3.5 Baht per share.

2018

• The Company purchased RMGT 1050ST-5 + LED UV printer to replace the old printer to enhance printing business
		efficiency.
• Grand Prix International (Myanmar) Limited was established in Myanmar to support the organization of the 1st
		
Yangon International Motor Show in Myanmar.
• Grand Prix International Public Co., Ltd. and YDM (Thailand) Co., Ltd. corporate in the digital development and
		 media big data management project and GPI’s auto-related activities.

2019 January

• The Company organized the 1st Yangon International Motor Show in Myanmar in 2019 from 23-27 January 2019
		
which was attended by 20,000 visitors and 121 vehicles exhibited in the fair could be sold. Six automobile
		 companies participated in this event.

March

• The Company organized eRacing Sport by hosting the first virtual racing game Gran Turismo Sport (GT Sport)
		 through online platform in 2019; however, this game had been held four times in Bangkok International
		 Motor Show 2019 from March – April 2019. The second event was held in Khon Kaen Province in July 2019,
		 the 3rd event was held in Chiang Mai Province in October 2019, and the fourth event was held in Bangkok in
		 December 2019. This competition was certified by the Royal Automobile Association of Thailand under
		 Royal Patronage.

November

• The Company acquired the stocks of King of Auto Products Company Limited, which operated used car and new
		 car exhibition under the event “Fast Auto Show”. In this regard, 15 percent of the registered shares were acquired
		 for the purpose of partnering with the small automobile trade organizer and expanding business opportunity in
		 the future.
• A new company was established with the collaboration between Grand Prix International Public Company Limited
		 and YDM (Thailand) Company Limited to expand digital media business and increase data storage channels through
		 “Car Buddy by GPI” which is the application for searching auto shops or service centers according to the types
		 of maintenance and car brands.
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2020 January

• The Company held Yangon International Motor Show in Myanmar for the second time from 21-23 January 2020
		 with a total of 21,596 visitors and 15 automobile companies participating and 272 cars were sold in the event.

March

• The Company has announced the postponement of the 41st Bangkok International Motor Show twice in a row
		 due to the epidemic of COVID 19. The first time was postponed from the original 25 March - 2 April 2020 to 22
		 April - 3 May 2020 and postponed again. The second time was postponed to 15 - 26 July 2020 by using measures
		 to prevent and control the epidemic of COVID-19 before entering the event and at the event.
• The Company has initiated e-sports competition under the name GP e-Racing which is an online game and is
		 broadcasted in various online media which had a 300% increased in visitors when compared to the previous year
		 by supported by lockdown measures from the COVID-19 epidemic, resulting in a continuous increase in visitors
		 and many automotive customers interested to become a sponsor for holding games competition continuously
		 until the end of the year. You can follow the details of the competition program for the whole year through
		 Opportunity Day in Q3/2020.

April

• The Company was approved by the Board of Directors Meeting No. 6/2020, held on 31 March 2020 that approved
		 the Company to invest in ordinary shares of True Energy Company Limited (“True Energy”) of 700,000 shares
		 or accounting 25.45% of True energy’s total issued and sold shares, resulting in True Energy became an
		 associate of the Company.

November

• Held Thailand E-Project 2020 competition which a clean energy motorsport competition under certification of the
		 Royal Automobile Association of Thailand (RAOT) to campaign using of electric cars to reduce severe pollution
		 problems in Thailand and around the world, consist of the competition of E-Kart (electric karts), e-Racing
		 (Simulator game), and E-Auto Khana (electric cars), with a focus on reducing consumption oil energy, supporting
		 the use of electricity which is clean and renewable energy. By this year is the second consecutive year of the
		 competition by holding an official competition press conference at the Royal Automobile Association of Thailand
		 on 26 October 2020.
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Policies and Overview
History

“Grand Prix Limited Partnership” was established in October 1970 by Mr.Prachin Eamlumnow to publish and distribute
automotive magazines. Grand Prix Limited Partnership evolved and grew through the years. To further its business expansion,
Mr.Eamlumnow established Grand Prix International Company Limited on April 30, 1982, with a registered capital of 2.00 million
baht. The company expanded its print media business by publishing more automotive and lifestyle magazines, such as
Motorcycle, Off Road, XO Autosport, Garage Life and YuadYan Newspaper. It had continuously made a success and continued
to expand its business to automotive exhibition and event organizing business. The well-known exhibitions are the Bangkok
International Motor Show and the Bangkok Used Car Show, as well as auto-related marketing activities, such as motor sport
racing and off-road racing.

Company’s Shareholding Structure

Subsidiary Company

GPI Myanmar Company Limited

Associated Company

100%

49%

Automatrix Solutions Company Limited
25.45%

True Energy Company Limited
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Products and Services

The company operates in 3 business segments :

1. Exhibition and Event Organizing Business

The important exhibitions organized by the company are the Bangkok International Motor Show and the Bangkok Used
Car Show. The Company organized the first Yangon International Motor show in Myanmar in 2019. And the events include (1)
the company’s activities such as motorsport racing, quarter-mile racing, off-road car racing, and motorcycle racing (2) activities
upon customers’ requirement, such as Automotive testing, Caravan rally, and Safe driving exercise. And eRacing Sport in which
the Company arranged virtual racing games Gran Turismo Sport (GT Sport) through online platform in 2019.

2. Media and Publishing Business

GPI is a publisher and distributor of auto-related print media, such as Grand Prix, Motorcycle, XO Autosport magazine,
and YuadYan newspaper, as well as the lifestyle magazine, Garage Life. Currently, the Company is developing digital media by
collaborating with YDM (Thailand) Company Limited in development of “Car Buddy by GPI” application to expand online business
to meet consumer needs in the changing media market.

3. Printing Business

The company provides integrated printing services to enterprise customers in all industries such as fashion, textile, food,
real estate, tourism, automobile industries, government, direct sale, etc. Also, new business lines are of the Company’s focus,
including food and consumer products.
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Revenue Structure
Annual Financial Statement
2018

2019

Million Baht

%

%

Million Baht

%

628.56

84.48

617.53

84.15

437.84

84.40

2. Total Revenue from Online
& Publishing Business

50.83

6.83

49.92

6.80

42.99

8.29

3. Total Revenue from Printing Business

51.96

6.98

51.88

7.07

28.59

5.51

731.65

98.29

719.33

98.02

509.41

98.20

Other Revenue

12.72

1.71

14.56

2.10

9.35

1.80

Total Revenue

744.37

100.00

733.89

100.00

518.76

100.00

1. Total Revenue from Exhibition
& Marketing Event Business

Total Sales & Service Revenue

Million Baht

2020

Revenue Contribution of 31 December 2020

84% 8%

Exhibition & Marketing Event

Online & Printing

6%
Printing
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Satisfaction Survey
The company placed importance on satisfaction survey of all stakeholders due to the Bangkok International Motor Show
is the company’s main business, therefore, the company prepared a satisfaction survey of service users and customers who
attended the Bangkok International Motor Show. The company has prepared an annual satisfaction survey for service users and
customers who attended the show to improve and develop the company’s services to be more efficient.
In 2020, the company surveyed of satisfaction of service users and customers who attended the show which can be
classified into 8 topics as follows:
1. Exhibition organizing.
2. Information and public relations.
3. Public relations point.
4. Activities.
5. Security and Safety.
6. Cleanliness.
7. Parking space.
8. Exhibition style.
In 2020, the satisfaction results of service users and customers who attended the 41st Bangkok International Motor Show
was 84.18% of total satisfaction and achieved satisfaction from various as follows:
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Marketing and Competition
Competition in Each Business Group
Exhibition Organizing Business

The automotive exhibition organizing in Thailand is considered competitive at a moderate level. Currently, there are 3
automotive exhibitors in Thailand by divided the exhibition period into different periods from the beginning to the end of the
year. The company will hold the Bangkok International Motor Show from March to April of every year and the other 2 exhibitors
will hold their exhibition at the mid-year and the end of the year. The main reason why the company classifies its competition
at a moderate level due to the company think that;
- The automotive exhibition organizing business has a high barrier to entry due to many reasons, e.g. this exhibition
organizing business requires an exhibitor who has the experience and expertise in high performance and understands the needs
of business partners, etc.
- The number of exhibitors that are sorted according to time throughout the year.
- The automobile exhibition organizing is deemed a selling expense of the automobile companies, therefore, the show
each year needs to be changed and improved continuously to meet the needs of business partners and consumers.
- The show requires expertise in media and public relations that deemed one of the company’s expertise due to a long
continuous experience of organizing.

Online and Print Media Business

However, the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic affected spending on media greatly which after the COVID-19 pandemic
found that media were down as follows: Social Media dropped from 20% to 9.8%, Video Online dropped from 20% to 5%,
Online Display dropped from 14.3% to 2.1%, Search Engine dropped from 12.4% to 0.9%, other online categories dropped from
6.8% to -10.3%, TV dropped from 2.5% to -13.8%, Radio dropped from 1.8% to -16.2%, Newspaper dropped from -5.9% to
-19.5%, Magazine dropped from -5.6% to -21.5%, and Cinema Advertising dropped from 5% to - 31.6%. It is predicted that in
2020, the tourism and entertainment businesses are business with the largest contraction in advertising spending. Also, predicted
that the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic would cause the investment budget to drop more than 1.5 trillion baht worldwide.

Printing Business

Printing business is another that consumer behavior had continuously changed throughout the year as the result of online
media that easily accessible resulting in customers who read newspapers, books, and magazines were continually turning to
online media, especially customers who are the original readers had changed their behavior from data consumption through
reading to be consumed through a video clip more, resulting in the movement of the platform of supporters and advertisers to
online media quickly. After this, the competition in the printing business will be changed in a different form which will not focus
on high volume printing to achieve the same cost-effectiveness in the past.

Business Trends
Automotive Business Overview

In 2020, the overall automotive overview had clearly contracted by the domestic car sales decreased approximately 24%
from the previous year and the value of exporting cars to foreign countries decreased approximately 24% as well. In 2020,
Thailand had an overall export value for the whole year approximately 590 billion baht, which was the lowest total car export in
eight years by the main impact is the COVID-19 pandemic affecting domestic consumer purchasing power, and exporting that
contracted strongly. In terms of domestic car sales dropped to the lowest point in April by the whole month sales was around
30,000 cars. However, automobile production and sales are likely to recover in 2021-2022 due to purchasing power and consumer
confidence in the overall economy that getting support from (1) the demand for a new car from the first-time car buyer program
that existing (2) continuation of government investment and expansion of online retail and logistics had helped to drive demand
for commercial vehicles (3) automotive producers have plans to continuously launch new models to stimulate the market both
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internal combustion vehicles and electric vehicles (4) the benefits of ASEAN Free Trade Area that will help support the export
in the region.
The automobile is one of the industries that the Thai government has continuously promoted. Early development
(1961-1970) would focus on production to replace import by the government had launched several measures to appeal
investment in this automobile such as providing tax incentives, Completely Knocked-Down (CKD) that used in vehicle
assembly and Completely Built-up (CBU) from abroad at a high rate to limit car import to sell in the country since 1971 up to now.
The government issued policies to strengthen domestic automobile by promoting the production of auto parts to support future
growth, such as (1) Completely Knocked-Down (CKD) and Completely Built-up (CBU) (2) Enforcement to use domestically made
parts in proportion by Local Content Requirements (3) Promote investment from abroad. The above policy resulted in the rapid
growth of the auto parts manufacturing industry while the automobile’s supply chain had been steadily strengthened, as reflected
the present that the vehicles manufacturing in Thailand used parts domestically produced accounts for up to 80% of the total
value of parts used in the production of the automobiles.
Thai automotive overview in the world market (data of 2019) found that Thailand had a volume of vehicle production of
all categories ranked 11th in global, 5th in Asia, and 1st in ASEAN.

Advertising Business Overview

In 2020, the overall value of advertising is approximately 70 billion with the lowest value in 20 years which advertising
spending dropped by about 20%, close to the Tom Yum Kung crisis, mainly due to the COVID-19 pandemic, which resulted in a
lockdown and business closure such as retail businesses and restaurants caused business owners decreased advertising budgets
e.g. billboards and billboards in modern trade mall. However, advertising spending in online media has continued to grow due
to internet growth and electronic devices that can be conveniently connected also have an accessible price while advertising
spending for some categories e.g. newspapers, magazines, TV, radio and ads at cinema continued to contract. Even so, online
media itself was affected by the COVID-19 pandemic a lot as well which it deemed the lowest growth in 10 years.
In the overall year 2020 and 2021, online and out-of-home media will grow, but original media such as television and print
media will continue to decline, by media mix of TV media will below 50% and print media will below 5% since this year, which
is faster than many experts previously expected.

Printing Business Overview

It’s well known that the printing business e.g. books and magazines has contracted every year due to the growth and
development of online media and easier access to technology, resulting in changes in consumer behavior by turning to online
media more but it still has a niche consumer who continues to buy books. However, the company believes that the overall
printing business may have a lower demand for certain products but digital packaging has more and more demand that in line
with the growth of retail businesses both online and offline. So, the digital packaging is still a positive adaptation for those in
the industrial chain from around the world. However, the online spending behavior of a new generation remains a key factor in
the continued growth of the printing and packaging business whether it is food and drink products to products that are used in
daily life which all required packaging. Today, Asia Pacific is the largest packaging printing market with a proportion up to 42%.
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Risk Factors
Risk factors in this article are subject to all factors the company identifies principal risks that might negatively impact
on the company’s financial position, performance and share value as well as return value to shareholders. In addition to the
risks indicated herein, there may be some other risks unknown to the Company at the present or the risks which the Company
considers as having no significant impact on the Company’s business.

1. Exhibition and Event Organizing Business
1.1 Rivalry and Competitive Risk

		 GPI is a leading exhibition and event organizer, especially in automotive area. However, there have been new
organizers entering the market in recent years to operate organizing similar events, or other forms of events, such as events in
the mall, or in major cities such as Songkhla, Khon-Kaen and Nakhon-Ratchasima. Moreover, the increase of new competitors in
event organizing business can increase the level of rivalry between competitors and might negatively impact on the company’s
performance and financial position.
		 In any case, the Bangkok International Motor Show organized by the company is considered to be the biggest
and the most attractive automotive exhibition in Thailand. Our motor show is also accredited by Organisation Internationale des
Construceurs d’Automobiles (OICA), an international association that provides international accreditation to motor shows across
the globe and accredits only one motor show in each country. The company has competitive advantages compared to other
competitors. Our exhibition is a big exhibition in Asia, covering 170,000 square meter and attended by more than 1,600,000
visitors. Regarded as a high important exhibition, the world-leading automakers attend to our exhibition. Moreover, the company
is specialized in exhibition and event organizing, especially in automotive industry. We have experience in motor show events for
40 years and great relationship with media, as well as we are an automotive content producer and distributor. These advantages
help us promote the company’s exhibitions and events.

1.2 Risk from Economic Slowdown, Natural Disasters, Government Policy Changes and
Political Uncertainty

		 The slowdown in economy, caused by global and domestic political, government policy changes, especially auto-related
policies (for example, Eastern Economic Corridor: EEC, ECO Car Project Phase 2, and Promotion of Electric Vehicle), political
uncertainty (for example, political demonstrations), has affected decision making of entrepreneurs whether to participate exhibitions
or to hire the company to help them organize an event. Number of participants indicates the success of an event. Risk factors,
such as severe flood, political demonstration, leading to event cancellation or dropping number of participants, increase the risk
of loss of substantial revenue and business opportunity.
		 However, we do not see these factors impacting significantly on the Bangkok International Motor Show.
Car manufacturers and entrepreneurs remain participation and attending the event increases every year. Moreover, the
company’s additional strategy relates to increasing new customer base and scheduling events all through a year.
The Company has the policy to increase the customer base and acquire the shares of a small automobile trade organizing company
and organize related events through the year to promote the business as the leading trade fair organizer and obtain more income.

1.3 Risk from Change in Location of Motor Show Events

		 The suitable place to hold the exhibition is one of the factors that brings company’s success. The Bangkok
International Motor Show has been held at the IMPACT Arena Exhibition and Convention for years due to its huge crowd carrying
capacity, and it is the biggest exhibition hall in Thailand. However, the location for holding a big exhibition, especially in Bangkok,
still has some limitations. The Company cannot use the place as the exhibition venue as well as an increase in the space rental
fee may affect the Company’s trade fair organization.
		 However, The IMPACT Arena has hosted the Bangkok International Motor Show, which has provided them large
income since 2009. We have good relationship with their team. Bangkok International Motor Show and Bangkok Used Car Show
organized by the Company are considered as internationally accepted events and make Thailand well-known in terms of automobile
advancement and world-class innovations where the world-leading car brands ae exhibited. Also, it makes IMPACT Muang Thong
Thani well-known to the public. Consequently, we are confident that we can continue to hold the motor show events at this venue.
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1.4 Risk from COVID-19

		 Due to the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, safety and uncertainty factors including announcements from the government,
resulting in the company had to postpone the Bangkok International Motor Show from March - April to July by the company
has changed the event style to be New Normal, which received Amazing Thailand Safety & Health Administration (SHA) from
Tourism Authority of Thailand (TAT), Ministry of Tourism and Sports, Department of Disease Control, Department of Health,
Department of Health Service Support, Ministry of Public Health, etc. In addition, the company has simulated the atmosphere
of Virtual Motor Show to put more options for those who wish to buy cars to deal with such situations.
		 However, the company is committed to dealing with the COVID-19 pandemic continuously by closely monitoring
the pandemic situation, government policies, and preventive measures, also continuously coordinated with our stakeholders, both
public and private sectors to respond to the expectations and satisfaction of all stakeholders by taking into account of safety
factor as a priority. In addition, the company is committed to maintaining financial stability, supply chain management, and the
expectation of stakeholders for driving the business further.
		 In order to reduce the impact of COVID-19 on the operating results and maintain the liquidity of the business, the
company issued measures to reduce expenses such as compensation budget cuts, organizational restructuring, adjust style, and
work processes including requesting a credit line from the financial institution in case of emergency. On the part of employees,
the company issued a work-from-home policy and purchase COVID-19 insurance for employees, also provide a screening point,
wear a mask, wash hands frequently, keep distance, clean touch points frequently, and publicize to educate employees in
self-defence to ensure that the workplace is safe.

1.5 Risk from Revenue Volatility in Exhibition Organizing Business During a Financial Year

		 The company’s major revenue is the revenue from organizing the Bangkok International Motor Show, which is held
annually in the period of March to April so we earn more revenue in this period. We seem to be facing unpredictability in
quarterly revenue. The revenue and cost recognition of the Bangkok International Motor Show in quarter 1 and 2 is subject to
the number of the days of exhibition each quarter, each year
		

Number of days of exhibitions of 2019-2020 as follows;
The 40th Bangkok International
Motor Show Year 2019

The 41st Bangkok International
Motor Show Year 2020

Date of Exhibition

March 25 – April 7, 2019

July 13 – July 26, 2020

Number of Days: Q1

7 days

0 day

Number of Days: Q2

7 days

0 day

Number of Days: Q3

0 day

14 days

		 However, we plan to increasingly organize exhibitions in other time of year to increase revenue from exhibition
organizing business. The Company has acquired the shares of used car and new trade fair organizing company, created
partnership with small automobile trade fair organizer, and expanded the future business. In addition, the Company obtains income
from print media and online media which can access to more consumers and targets. Moreover, printing business helps reduce
the fluctuation of the Company’s revenue in each quarter and become extra income of the Company.

1.6 Risk from Media Technological Change

		 Over recent years, media technology has been developed for exhibition presentation and marketing promotion, for
example, multi-media technology, light and sound technology and special technics, to attract visitors. If the Company fails to
develop or does not have technological readiness to accommodate the rapidly changing world, its reliability, operating results,
financial positions, and business opportunities may be adversely affected.
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We realize the importance of media technology so we always deliver our executives, employees and contractors to international
exhibitions such as Frankfurt Motor Show, Paris Motor Show and Tokyo Motor Show. The Company should adjust itself to the
changing technology and implement it in improving and developing trade exhibition models to attract more visitors.

2. Print & Online Business and Printing Business
2.1 Risk from Volatility of Advertising Market

		 The major revenue of the print media business is from advertising sales, generally subject to economic situation.
During the economic slowdown, private sector is concordantly in decline. Public consumption tends to decrease, causing
entrepreneurs to adjust their advertising expenses more carefully, which would affect the company’s performance and financial
position.
		 However, in order to mitigate the risk, we delivered our strategy emphasizing enhancing competitiveness capacity
as we added more content in the magazines or website banners to serve requirement of customers (such as automakers, car
maintenance and car accessories entrepreneurs) in marketing and publication. In addition, we delivered a full-service of digital
marketing from content producing, promoting to event marketing. Our company has experience in event management, which is
a competitive advantage so we can provide both advertising services and event organizing services to customers at the same
time, to increase the value of products and services for customers to receive value for money

2.2 Risk of Competition in the Print Media Business

		 Nowadays, rivalry and competition in the printing business and new media business is determined to be high.
However, the number of printing entrepreneurs has been decreasing due to the changes in consumer behavior, turning to
online and social media. The entrepreneurs have to change the ways to present their advertisements, leading to the high
competition in online media production. Moreover, the fast growing of modern technology and various communication channels allow
businesses to create online media easily. This factor might increase new competitors.
		 However, having worked in print media industry for over 40 years we deliver to the target customers’ content
that they really want. Consequently, our automotive magazine is very popular in Thailand. Furthermore, the Company is closely
following the change of printing technology and regularly develops the printing house for modern printing work with the quality
that satisfies customers. In the previous year, new machines were purchased and installed for printing work to accommodate
new lines of customers. In addition to magazine printing, we can accept packaging printing jobs which seem to be steadily
growing, which positively influences our competitiveness in printing business. Also, we have developed our online media by type
of content which is presented though many channels such as Facebook and YouTube. The presented content is in concordance
with the magazine content to meet the changing consumer behavior and generate more income for the Company.

2.3 Risk from Variable Paper Cost

		 Major cost in printing business is cost of art paper and bond paper. The company uses imported paper from
distributors in Thailand. However, paper is a commodity product, of which price is varied by demand and supply, which is the
major factor to determine global paper reference price. Variable paper cost might impact on the company’s performance and
financial position.
		 We have the extensive experience in printing business so our executive understands well the variability of global
paper cost. To hedge the risk, we balance demand and supply by ordering paper in the appropriate quantity and we trade 1-year
futures contracts. In addition, we effectively manage point of sale to control inventory. Moreover, we order more quantity of paper
when the price is moving higher to mitigate risk from future price increase. In consequence, we have never been significantly
impacted by price increase.
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Shareholding Structure
Shareholders

As of the book-closing date on November 26, 2020, of the total number of shareholders of 1,265 the number of major
shareholders accounts for 55.84%, while that of minor shareholders accounts for 44.16%

A list of GPI’s Top 10 Shareholders is as follow:
No.

Name of Shareholders

1

Mr. Prachin Eamlumnow

2

Number
of Shares

Proportion of
Shareholding

181,535,859

30.26

Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow

77,950,250

12.99

3

Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow

75,560,050

12.59

4

Mr. Apisit Phanthapruek

26,290,100

4.38

5

Mr. Sutjapot Chaiwongkaew

18,177,800

3.03

6

Mr. Kornphong Akraputthisakun

15,045,900

2.51

7

Mrs. Ruchiroj Eamlumnow

12,542,100

2.09

8

Mr. Jaturont Komolmis

11,070,200

1.85

9

Mr.Virul Parivudhiphongs

10,430,000

1.74

10

Mr. Nutthachai Tangjarupongsakul

9,338,416

1.56

Source : The Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.
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Dividend Policy
Company’s Dividend Policy

Company’s dividend policy is to pay no less than 50% of net profit from the company’s separate financial statement,
after corporate income tax and legal reserves. However, a dividend determined by the board of directors is based upon the
company’s future investment plans, liquidity, operation plans as well as binding contracts the company is involving.
The final dividend is approved by Company’s shareholders at the annual general meeting, unless it is an interim dividend,
it can be approved by the board of directors and dividend payment information will be reported to shareholders at the next
annual general meeting.

Dividend Payment Information
								
Annual dividend rate per share (baht)
Total dividend (million baht)
Dividend rate (%)			

2018

2019

2020

0.24
144.00
108.61

0.18
108.00
94.86

0.08
48.00
117.45

ANNUAL REPORT

2020 31

Management Structure
Organizational Structure
follows;

As of December 31, 2020 the management of the Company included the Board of Directors and 4 committees are as
1.
2.
3.
4.

Audit Committee
Risk Management Committee
Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee
Executive Committee

Organizational Chart
Board of Directors

Company Secretary

Audit
Committee

Internal Audit

Risk Management
Committee

Executive Committee

Nominations,
Remuneration and
Corporate Govemance
Committee

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Operation
Chief Operation
Chief Operation
Officer in Marketing Officer in Marketing Officer in Business
and Sales
and Digital
Development

Chief Operation
Officer in Media
Production

Chief Operation
Officer in Financial
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of 9 directors. Details of the Directors as of December 31, 2020 are as follows;
1. Mr. Yuth Vorachattarn		
Chairman of the Board / Independent Director
2. Mr. Prachin Eamlumnow		
Director / Chairman of the Executive Committee / Chief Executive Officer
3. Mrs. Ruchiroj Eamlumnow		
Director
4. Gen. Dr. Surapan Poomkaew
Independent Director / Chairman of the Audit Committee /
								
Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee
5. Mr. Kanokphand Chulakasem
Independent Director / Chairman of the Nominations, Remuneration
								
and Corporate Governance Committee / Audit Committee
6. Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi
Independent Director / Chairman of the Risk Management Committee /
								
Audit Committee / Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate
								Governance Committee
7. Mr. Jaturont Komolmis		
Director / Executive Committee / Risk Management Committee
8. Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow		
Director / Executive Committee / Risk Management Committee
9. Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow
Director / Executive Committee / Risk Management Committee
								
and Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee

The Executive Directors

As of December 31, 2020, 5 executive directors attending the meetings are as follows;
1. Mr. Prachin Eamlumnow		
Chief Executive Officer
2. Mr. Jaturont Komolmis		
Chief Operation Officer in Marketing and Sales
3. Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow		
Chief Operation Officer in Business Development
4. Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow
Chief Operation Officer in Media Production
5. Miss Khwanchanok Aula-aiem
Accounting and Finance Director
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Profile of Directors

Position
• Chairman of the Board
• Independent Director
Age
• 73 years
Date of Appointment
• 4 years 8 months (holding positions on April 28, 2016)
Education
• Master of Economics - Thammasart University
• Bachelor of Economics - Thammasart University
Training Program
• Director Certification Program (DCP)
• Ethical Leadership Program (ELP)
• Financial Institutions Governance Program (FGP)
• Monitoring of the Quality of Financial Reporting (MFR)
• Chartered Director Class (R-CDC)
• Role of the Chairman Program (RCP)
• Corporate Governance for Capital Market Intermediaries (CGI)
Shareholding in the Company (%)
• None
Relationship between the Board and the Management
• None
Work Experience
Listed Company
• 2016 - Presen : Chairman - Saha Thai Terminal Plc.
• 2015 - Present : Chairman of Audit Committee - BSY Group Plc.
• 2011 - Present : Chairman - Taokaenoi food & Marketing Plc.
• 2004 - 2015 : Chairman - Siam Commercial Leasing Plc.
• 2002 - 2019 : Chairman - Maybank Kim Eng (Thailand) Plc.
Non - Listed Company
• 2017 - 2019 : Chairman - SCB Protect Co., Ltd.
• 2015 - Present : Director - B.S.Y. Construction Co., Ltd.

Mr. Yuth Vorachattarn
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Mr. Prachin Eamlumlow

Position
• Director
• Chairman of Executive Committee
• Chief Executive Officer
Age
• 77 years
Date of Appointment
• 6 years 4 months (holding positions on August 29, 2014)
Education
• Honorary Doctor of Philosophy - Suan Sunandha Rajabhat University
• Honorary Doctor of Arts - Rajamangala University of Technology
• Honorary Doctor of Philosophy - Ramkhamhaeng University
• Master of Political Science - Ramkhamhaeng University
• Honorary Bachelor of Arts - Rajamangala University of Technology
Training Program
• Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
• Executive Development Program (EDP)
Shareholding in the Company(%)
• 30.26 (on December, 31 2020)
Relationship between the Board and the Management
• Mrs. Rujiroj Eamlumnow’s spouse
• Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow’s father
• Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow’s father
• Mr. Jaturont Komolmis’s uncle
Work Experience
Listed Company
• None
Non - Listed Company
• 2015 - Present : Director - Eamlumnow Co., Ltd.
• 2010 - Present : Director - Grand Prix Golf Club Co., Ltd.
• 2009 - Present : Chairman - Blue Diamond Golf and Water Sports Club Co., Ltd.
• 1983 - 2017 : Director - Yachiyoda Alloy Wheel Co., Ltd.
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Position
• Director
Age
• 74 years
Date of Appointment
• 6 years 4 months (holding positions on August 29, 2014)
Education
• Vocational Certificate - Vocational Education Institution
Training Program
• Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
Shareholding in the Company (%)
• 2.09 (on December, 31 2020)
Relationship between the Board and the Management
• Mr. Prachin Eamlumlow’s spouse
• Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow’s mother
• Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow’s mother
• Mr. Jaturont Komolmis’s aunt in law
Work Experience
Listed Company
• None
Non - Listed Company
• None
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Gen.Dr. Surapan Poomkaew

Position
• Independent Director
• Chairman of Audit Committee
• Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee Member
Age
• 72 years
Date of Appointment
• 6 years 4 months (holding positions on August 29, 2014)
Education
• Doctor of Public Administration - Ramkhamhaeng University
• Master of Public Administration Program - Institute of Development Administration
• Bachelor of Science Program in Chemistry, Chulachomklao Royal Military
Academy
Training Program
• Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
• Leader Program - Capital Market Academy
Shareholding in the Company (%)
• None
Relationship between the Board and the Management
• None
Work Experience
Listed Company
• 2015 - Present : Director - Sino Thai Engineering and Construction Plc.
• 2013 - Present : Director - National Power Supply Plc.
Non - Listed Company
• None
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Position
• Independent Director
• Chairman of Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee
• Audit Committee Member
Age
• 66 years
Date of Appointment
• 6 years 4 months (holding positions on August 29, 2014)
Education
• Bachelor of Political Science Program - Thammasat University
Training Program
• Director Certification Program (DCP)
• Executive Development Program (EDP)
Shareholding in the Company (%)
• 0.08 (on December, 31 2020)
Relationship between the Board and the Management
• None
Work Experience
Listed Company
• None
Non - Listed Company
• 2006 - 2014 : Governor - Sports Authority of Thailand
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Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi

Position
• Independent Director
• Chairman of Risk Management Committee
• Audit Committee Member
• Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee Member
Age
• 62 years
Date of Appointment
• 6 years 4 months (holding positions on August 29, 2014)
Education
• Doctor of Philosophy Program in Social Science - Magadh University
• Master of Business Administration (International Management)
- University of Dallas
• Bachelor of Auditing - Thammasat University
• Diploma in Accounting - Chulalongkorn University

Training Program		
• Role of the Chairman Program (RCP) 46/2020 - IOD
• Strategic Board Master Class (SBM) 7/2019
• Advance Audit Committee Program (AACP) 33/2019
• Boards that Make a Difference (BMD) 8/2018
• Director Certification Program (DCP) (Diploma) 1/2018
• Director Certification Program (DCP) 248/2017
• Board Nomination and Compensation Program (BNCP) 		
2/2017
• Risk Management Program for Corporate Leaders (RCL)
3/2016
• Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 121/2015
• Executive Development Program (EDP)
• Certified Public Accountant, Collateral Enforcers, ASEAN CPA
• IT Risk and IT Governance 3/2018
• Corporate Sustainability Strategy S01-S06/2019
• Corporate governance Audit - Federation of Accounting
Professions
• Anti-Corruption Working Paper 3/18
• Risk Management (Advance) 1/18
• COSO 2013 Framework for Internal Control System 		
(Advance) 1/18
• Essential Roles of Those Charged with Governance
on New Auditor Reports

• Risk Management (Basic)
• Mergers & Acquisitions - OMEGAWORLDCLASS
• M&A in Action Financial & Pricing Strategies - OMEGA
WORLDCLASS
• Outbound Investment Commercial, Legal & Tax Strategies
• Joint Ventures Agreement – OMEGAWORLDCLASS
Shareholding in the Company (%)
• None
Relationship between the Board and the Management
• None
Work Experience
Listed Company
• 2019 - Present : Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate
				 Governance Committee - NR Instant
				Produce Plc.
• 2018 - Present : Audit Committee / Independent Director
				 - NR Instant Produce Plc.
Non - Listed Company
• 2020 - Present : Chairman - True Energy Co., Ltd.
• 1994 - Present : Director - Tannon Co., Ltd.
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Position
• Director
• Executive Committee Member
• Risk Management Committee Member
Age
• 61 years
Date of Appointment
• 6 years 4 months (holding positions on August 29, 2014)
Education
• Bachelor of Business Administration - Chiang Mai University
Training Program
• Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
• Executive Development Program (EDP)
Shareholding in the Company (%)
• 1.85 (on December, 31 2020)
Relationship between the Board and the Management
• Mr. Prachin Eamlumlow and Mrs. Rujiroj Eamlumnow’s nephew
• Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow’s cousin
• Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow’s cousin
Work Experience
Listed Company
• None
Non - Listed Company
• 2009 - Present : Director - Blue Diamond Golf and Water Sports Club Co., Ltd.

2020 39

Mr. Jaturont Komolmis

40

GRAND PRIX INTERNATIONAL PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow

Position
• Director
• Executive Committee Member
• Risk Management Committee Member
Age
• 49 years
Date of Appointment
• 6 years 4 months (holding positions on August 29, 2014)
Education
• Bachelor of Arts - California State University
Training Program
• Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
• Director Certification Program (DCP)
• Executive Development Program (EDP)
Shareholding in the Company (%)
• 12.59 (on December, 31 2020)
Relationship between the Board and the Management
• Mr. Prachin Eamlumlow and Mrs. Rujiroj Eamlumnow’s son
• Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow’s brother
• Mr. Jaturont Komolmis’s cousin
Work Experience
Listed Company
• None
Non - Listed Company
• 2009 - Present : Director - Blue Diamond Golf and Water Sports Club Co., Ltd.
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Position
• Director
• Executive Committee Member
• Risk Management Committee Member
• Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance
Committee Member
Age
• 46 years
Date of Appointment
• 6 years 4 months (holding positions on August 29, 2014)
Education
• Business Administration - Assumption University
Training Program
• Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
• Director Certification Program (DCP)
• Thammasat Leadership Program
• Executive Development program (EDP)
• AseanPlus Treasures Outstanding Charisma (ATOC)
• Updated COSO Enterprise Risk Management: Integrating with Strategy
and Performance
• COSO 2013 Framework for Internal Control System (Advance) 1/18
• Risk management (Advance) 1/18 Corporate Governance Audit
• Corporate Governance for Executives (CGE) 15/201
• Executives with sustainability reports and social compensation 2/19
• CFO Refresher Course # 1 - SET
• M&A in Action Financial & Pricing Strategies -OMEGAWORLDCLASS
Shareholding in the Company (%)
• 12.99 (on December, 31 2020)
Relationship between the Board and the Management
• Mr. Prachin Eamlumlow and Mrs. Rujiroj Eamlumnow’s son
• Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow’s brother
• Mr. Jaturont Komolmis’s cousin
Work Experience
Listed Company
• None
Non - Listed Company
• 2020 - Present		 : Director - True Energy Co., Ltd.
• 2019 - Present		 : Director - Automatrix Solutions Co., Ltd.
• 2012 - Present		 : Director - Dream Garage Design & Construction Co., Ltd.
• 2009 - Present		 : Director - Blue Diamond Golf and Water Sports Club Co., Ltd.
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Shareholding of Director and Management

Changes in Securities Holding of directors and Management including spouse and minor child at December 31, 2020 are as follows:
Name of Directors

Number of Shares
Number of Shares at Number of Shares at Increase/(Decrease)
01/01/2020
31/12/2020
During the Year
-

-

-

2. Mr. Prachin Eamlumnow

185,264,559

181,535,859

(3,728,700)

3. Mrs. Ruchiroj Eamlumnow

12,542,100

12,542,100

-

4. Gen. Dr. Surapan Poomkaew

-

-

-

5. Mr. Kanokphand Chulakasem

500,000

500,000

-

-

-

-

7. Mr. Jaturont Komolmis

11,025,200

11,070,200

45,000

8. Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow

75,560,050

75,560,050

-

9. Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow

77,062,350
-

77,950,250

887,900

-

-

1. Mr. Yuth Vorachattarn

6. Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi

10. Miss. Khwanchanok Aula-aiem

The Primary Authorized Directors With Signature Authority on Behalf of
the Company

Mr. Prachin Eamlumnow, Mr. Jaturont Komolmis, Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow and Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow, two-fourths
of these sign with the Company seal affixed.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors have the scope of power and responsibilities towards the Company management in conformity
to the Company’s objectives, policies and regulations, resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting, and shall comply with the law
on securities and exchange, rules and good practices of Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of
Thailand as well as the law related to the Company’s business. The Board of Directors shall perform their duties with
responsibilities, prudence and integrity. For the utmost benefit of the Company, the roles, duties and responsibilities of the Board
of Directors are determined as follows:
1. Perform their duties in accordance with the laws, objectives and regulations of the Company as well as the resolutions
		 of the shareholders’ meeting with honesty, integrity and maintain the benefit of the Company;
2. Consider and approve important matters related to the Company’s operation on annual basis such as vision, mission,
		 strategies, financial goals, risks, plans, and budgets as well as controlling and supervising the management to perform
		 in accordance with the determined policies and plans efficiently and effectively;
3. Supervise the administration and operating results of the management or any persons assigned perform such duties
		 to ensure conformity to the policies determined by the Company;
4. Monitor and assess the Company’s operating results continuously to ensure conformity of the Company’s strategic
		 plan and budgets;
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5. Ensure that the management has reliable accounting system, financial reports and audit procedure as well as ensuring
		 that the Company has sufficient and appropriate internal control system;
6. Determine policies and perform audit on risk management and follow up the operating results of the Company’s risk
		management;
7. Consider approving the acquisition or sale of any asset, investment and any action in accordance with relevant
		 notification, regulations and rules;
8. Consider approving the transactions related to the Company in compliance with relevant notification, regulations
		 and rules;
9. Determine the guidelines for transactions which may have the conflict of interest between the Company’s stakeholders
		 and shareholders and determine the procedures and disclosure of the information about the transactions which may
		 have the conflict of interest in complete and correct manner and disclose it in the annual registration statement
		 (Form 56-1) and annual report (Form 56-2);
10. Determine corporate good governance pursuant to the law on securities and exchange, rules and good practices of
		 Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand as well as the law related to the
		 Company’s business;
11. Determine social responsibility policy as part of the business code of conduct since the Company realizes the importance
		 of “the society” as a significant mechanism to help the Company’s business remain and grow sustainably and
		 acceptable for all related parties. The management shall perform in accordance with the policy and report the result of
		 performance according to social responsibility to the Board of Directors, encourage employees at all levels to have
		 awareness of social and environmental responsibility for the public benefit, and create activities to support the society
		 and the environment on regular and continuous basis;
12. Encourage employees at all levels to have awareness of ethics and morals by making manual on the Company’s
		 business ethics and code of conduct;
13. Promote and encourage the Board of Directors to attend the training to improve necessary knowledge and skills
		 to perform the directors’ duties on regular basis and disclose the information on training and knowledge improvement
		 of the directors in annual report (Form 56-2);
14. The Board of Directors has issued the notification on “anti-corruption policy” in writing to promote and raise awareness
		 of directors, executives and employees at all levels of the risks of corruption;
15. Consider appointing the Chief Executive Office and sub-committees, determine the scope of power and duties and
		 responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer and sub-committees to take care of the administrative system and
		 internal control system in accordance with the determined policy;
16. Consider appointing the Company Secretary to ensure that the Board of Directors comply with the law, notifications,
		 rules and regulations;
17. The Board of Directors determines that the President and Managing Director shall be different persons. Therefore, the
		 scope of power and responsibilities of the President have been decided in terms of determination of the policy for
		 the Managing Director to perform his/her regular administrative tasks. The President shall supervise the performance
		 of the management, and provide suggestions and assistance without participation and intervention in daily
		 administration which is the duty of the Managing Director under the scope of power given by the Board of Director.
Furthermore, the President shall have leadership skill to ensure that the directors will not be under the influence of the
management. The President shall chair the Board of Directors’ meeting and shareholders’ meeting fairly and effectively, support
and encourage the participants to vote and strictly comply with the good corporate governance.

Audit Committee

The audit committee consists of 3 members as follows;
1. Gen. Dr. Surapan Poomkaew
Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. Mr. Kanokphand Chulakasem
Audit Committee Member
3. Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi* Audit Committee Member

Remark :* Dr.Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi is an auditor with an adequate knowledge and extensive experience in audit. He is a certified public accountant
with a bachelor’s degree in Accounting, from Thammasat University.
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Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

The Company has issued the Audit Committee Charter which determines the key roles, duties and responsibilities
assigned by the shareholders’ meeting or the Board of Directors’ Meeting. The Audit Committee shall perform their duties with
responsibility, prudence and integrity for the utmost benefit of the Company as follows:
1. Perform audit to ensure that the Company has correct financial statements (quarterly and annual) and appropriately
		 disclose related information of the Company prior to submission to the Board of Directors;
2. Perform audit to ensure that the Company has appropriate and effective internal control system and internal audit
		
control and consider independency of the internal auditor as well as approving the appointment, transfer or dismissal
		 of the internal auditor or other divisions in charge of the internal audit;
3. Perform audit to ensure that the Company has appropriate and effective risk assessment and risk management system;
4. Perform audit to ensure that the Company complies with the with the law on securities and exchange, rules and
		 good practices of Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand as well as the law
		 related to the Company’s business;
5. Consider selecting for appointment and dismissal of the Company’s auditor and propose the remuneration of the
		 auditor, coordinate with the auditor regarding the objectives of audit, scope, subject matters, guidelines, plans, and
		 problems found during the audit and issues that the auditor considers essential as well as attending meetings with
		 the auditor without the presence of the management at least once a year;
6. Consider related transactions or transactions which may have the conflict of interest to ensure correctness and
		 completeness and compliance with the law and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and completely disclose
		 the information about making of the transactions to ensure that such transactions are reasonable and useful for the
		Company;
7. Make the Audit Committee’s report by disclosing it in the annual report (Form 56-2). Such report shall be signed by
		 the President of the Audit Committee;
8. Perform the audit to ensure accuracy of references and self-assessment form related to anti-corruption measures of
		 the Company in accordance with Private Sector Collective Action Coalition Against Corruption (CAC);
9. In performing the duties of Audit Committee, if the Audit Committee find or doubt that there may be the following
		 transactions or actions which could significantly affect the financial status and operating results of the Company, the
		 Audit Committee shall report the Board of Directors to take corrective action within the period specified by the Audit
		Committee:
		 (a) Transactions which may have the conflict of interest
		 (b) Corruption or abnormal events or significant errors in the internal control system
		 (c) Violation of the law on securities and exchange, rules and good practices of Securities and Exchange Commission
			 (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand as well as the law related to the Company’s business
10. Perform other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee consists of 4 members as follows;
1. Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi
Chairman of the Risk Management Committee
2. Mr. Jaturont Komolmis		
Risk Management Committee Member
3. Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow		
Risk Management Committee Member
4. Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow
Risk Management Committee Member

Duties and Responsibilities of Risk Management Committee

1.
		
		
2.
		
3.
		

Determine and review corporate risk management policy related to the Company’s business operation which are in
concordance with the objectives, main goals, strategies, and acceptable risks to be the guidelines for all employees
and review risk management policy regularly at least once a year;
Give suggestions on monitoring and assessment of risk management results to Risk Management Committee for
effective implementation in risk management;
Supervise analysis of all risks including internal and external factors, opportunities and possible impacts to the overall
operation of the Company such as strategic risk, operation risk, financial risk, compliance risk and corruption risk;
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4. Consider reporting the results of corporate risk management and give opinions on possible risks and guidelines for
		 determination of mitigation plan and development of corporate risk management to risk management working group
		 to ensure continuous effectiveness;
5. Follow up the result of acceptable risk management from risk management working group to seek possible solutions
		 and prevention of future occurrences at least once a quarter;
6. Supervise the risk management planning and risk management system or procedure to reduce impacts on the Company’s
		
business, follow up and assess the result of performance under the risk management framework in the entire
		 organization to ensure that the Company has appropriate risk management system;
7. Promote and develop risk management at all levels including equipment to ensure continuity and effectiveness as
		 well as fostering the organization to have risk management culture;
8. Ensure that each division complies with the determined risk management policy and plan;
9. Report the results of corporate risk management to the Board of Directors, and in case of important matters which
		 may significantly affect the Company, such matters shall be reported to the Board of Directors for acknowledgement
		 and consideration without delay;
10. Arrange Risk Management Committee’s Meeting at least once a quarter.

Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate Governance
Committee

The Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee consists of 4 members as follows;
1. Mr. Kanokphand Chulakasem Chairman of the Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee
2. Gen. Dr. Surapan Poomkaew Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee Member
3. Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee Member
4. Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee Member

Duties and Responsibilities of Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate
Governance Committee

Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee shall perform their duties with responsibility, care and
integrity for the utmost benefit of the Company as follows:
1. Consider overall and individual components and qualifications of the Board of Directors to ensure suitability for the size,
		 type and complexity of the Company’s business in terms of education, knowledge, expertise, skill, experience, and
		 specialization in relation with the Company’s business, and independency as determined by the Company;
2. Consider qualifications of the top executives that suit the Company’s business management to achieve the determined
		 vision in terms of education, experience, knowledge, and expertise by taking account of important business-related
		 factors such as economic and industrial condition and trends as well as the business competitiveness;
3. Determine procedure and rules on personnel recruitment in accordance with the structure and qualifications prescribed
		 in Clause 1 and Clause 2 on the basis of transparent rules and procedure of recruitment;
4. Ensure that the Company provide orientations and useful documents to newly appointed directors;
5. Review succession plan of top executives of the Company to ensure continuity of business operation in case of
		 management succession;
6. Support the Company to give opportunities to minority shareholders to nominate the candidates for selection of the
		 Board of Directors;
7. Select qualified directors to the members of sub-committees to be proposed to the Board of Directors’ Meeting for
		 appointment upon vacancy;
8. Review and propose the criteria for consideration of remuneration which is suitable for the directors’ responsibilities
		 by linking the remuneration to the overall operating results of the Company to attract and retain skilled, quality and
		 potential directors. The Board of Directors shall approve the remuneration prior to presenting to the annual general
		 shareholders’ meeting for approval of the annual performance assessment and consider the adjustment of appropriate
		 remuneration to top executive of the Company prior to proposing it to the Board of Directors for further approval;
9. Determine the policy, rules and good practices for business operation to ensure conformity to good corporate
		 governance by making the manual on good corporate governance and business code of conduct for executives and
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		 employees of all levels to rely on as the performance guidelines. Directors, executives and employees at all levels
		 shall be obliged not to ignore compliance with the rules indicated in the good corporate governance manual;
10. Follow up, review and revise the Company’s corporate governance to ensure conformity to good corporate governance
		 of Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand as well as other applicable
		laws;
11. Support communication of good corporate governance to ensure understanding of directors, executives and employees
		 at all levels to extent of becoming the corporate culture.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee consists of 4 members as follows;
1. Mr. Prachin Eamlumnow		
Chairman of the Executive Committee
2. Mr. Jaturont Komolmis
Executive Committee Member
3. Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow
Executive Committee Member
4. Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow
Executive Committee Member

Duties and Responsibilities of Executive Committee

The Company has issued the Executive Committee Charter which determines the key roles, duties and responsibilities
assigned by the Board of Directors in the Company’s management. The Executive Committee shall perform their duties with
responsibility, prudence and integrity for the utmost benefit of the Company as follows:
1. Manage the Company’s business in conformity to the objectives, goals, policies, strategies, business plans, and
		 budgets approved by the Board of Directors;
2. Consider proposals of the management in determining the annual objectives, goals, policies, strategies, business plans,
		 and budgets, financial and investment plan, human resources management plan, and information technology plan by
		 assessing the Company’s achievements in accordance with Key Performance Indicator (KPI) to be proposed to the
		 Board of Directors for further consideration;
3. Follow up and report the monthly, quarterly and annual operating results in comparison to the determined goals and
		 budget and give opinions to the Board of Directors for acknowledgement and consideration on regular basis;
4. Create the corporate culture which adheres to business code of conduct and be a good role model;
5. Determine and review organizational structure and corporate management power;
6. Consider paying interim and annual dividend based on the Company annual performance and give opinions to the
		 Board of Directors for further consideration of the shareholders’ meeting;
7. Have the power to authorize one or many executives or other persons to perform any task within the specified period
		 under the supervision of the Executive Committee which also includes cancellation or revocation, change or
		 replacement of the authorized persons or power as deemed appropriate;
8. Have the power to approve financial matters in accordance with work-related regulations and the power to approve
		 as approved by the Board of Directors’ Meeting;
9. Have the power to appoint committees or working groups to carefully screen the information about specific issues by
		 determining the power, duties and responsibilities, as well as supervising performance of the working groups for
		 achievement of the determined objectives and goals;
10. Perform other tasks as assigned by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Independent Committee

The independent committee is required to be part of the governance structure of the Company. The independent
committee, whose role is to oversee all decisions involving an actual or perceived conflict of interest between listed companies
and the executive directors or the majority shareholders, or other companies that has the same executive directors or majority
shareholders. The independent committee must be independent from the majority shareholders to ensure that the Company is
organized and operated in interests of every shareholder equally, not in the interest of the insiders. Moreover, the Company
abides by the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission on the composition of the independent committee that there
must be at least one third of independent directors out of total directors, and at least 3 persons, which are;
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Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

Company Secretary

The Board of Directors has appointed Ms. Kitkallaya Somroumrom to be the Company Secretary. Duties and responsibilities
of the Company Secretary as determined as follows:
1. Take care and give advice to committees and executives about the rules and laws they are supposed to know and
		 ensure compliance on regular basis;
2. Take care of activities of the Board of Directors, be responsible for arrangement of the Board of Director’s Meeting
		 and shareholders’ meeting in compliance with the law and the Company’s regulations;
3. Take minutes of the Board of Directors’ Meeting and shareholders’ meeting and coordinate compliance with the
		 meeting resolutions;
4. Ensure disclosure of the information and report of information in their part in accordance with the rules and regulation
		 of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and SEC;
5. Prepare and keep the following documents:
		 5.1 Registration of Directors
		 5.2 Board of Directors’ Meeting documents and minutes of the Board of Directors’ Meeting
		 5.3 Shareholders’ Meeting invitation and minutes of meeting
		 5.4 Company’s annual report (Form 56-2) and annual registration statements (Form 56-1)
6. Retain reports on directors’ and executives’ interests;
7. Perform other tasks as determined by Capital Market Supervision Committee.

Directors’ Attendance to the Board Meetings 2020
Record of the Directors’ Attendance to the meetings in 2020:
List of Directors

1. Mr. Yuth Vorachattarn
2. Mr. Prachin Eamlumnow
3. Mrs. Ruchiroj Eamlumnow
4. Gen. Dr. Surapan Poomkaew
5. Mr. Kanokphand Chulakasem
6. Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi
7. Mr. Jaturont Komolmis
8. Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow
9. Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow

Board
Meeting
(total
12 times)

%

Audit
Committee
Meeting
(total 5
times)

%

Risk
Management
Committee
Meeting
(total 6 times)

%

Nominations,
Remuneration
and Corporate
Governance
Committee
(total 4 times)

%

Executive
Committee
Meeting
(total 4 times)

%

12/12

100

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

12/12
10/12
12/12
12/12
12/12
12/12
12/12
11/12

100
83
100
100
100
100
100
92

5/5
5/5
5/5
-

100
100
100
-

6/6
6/6
6/6
6/6

100
100
100
100

4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4

100
100
100
100

4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4

100
100
100
100
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At the Board of Directors' meeting in 2020, the Board has considered various matters which summarizes the significance
as follows:
- To review vision, mission and approve the company's action plan for the year 2020.
- To revise and review good corporate governance and charter of the Board of Directors.
- To approve the remuneration of the Board of Directors and the subcommittees.
- To approve the appointment of the auditors and the determination of the audit fees.
- To approve the financial statements.
- To approve the company’s annual budget.
- To approve the allocation of legal reserves and dividends.
- To approve investment plans in the company's important projects.
- To review criteria and methods for nominating directors and sub-committee.
In addition, in 2020 the Board had held 1 meeting between non-executive and independent directors on 14 December
2020 in which 4 directors out of 9 directors attended the meeting with the agenda on good corporate governance, sustainable
development, risk management from the COVID-19 pandemic, including a succession plan for the Chief Executive Officer to
determine the direction of the Company's business operation. After the meeting, the Chief Executive Officer will be informed
of the meeting result to formulate a strategy and the company's action plan.

Director Remuneration
Financial Remuneration

At the general meeting 2020, which was held on July 7, 2020, shareholders approved the remuneration for the directors
of the committees and sub-committees that it could be paid out through meeting allowances and bonuses to the directors with
collectively no more than THB 6 Million
Criteria for setting remuneration for the Board of Directors and the sub-committees are as follows;
Position
Chairman of the Board
Director
Chairman of the Audit Committee
Audit Committee
Chairman of the Risk Management Committee
Risk Management Committee
Chairman of the Nominations, Remuneration
and Corporate Governance Committee
Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate
Governance Committee

Quarterly Remuneration
THB

Meeting Allowance / per Time
THB

50,000
40,000
50,000
40,000
50,000
40,000
50,000

20,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
20,000

40,000

20,000
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Individually Remuneration for the Directors in 2020 is as Follows;
Meeting Allowance

List of Directors

The Board

The Audit
Committee

The Risk
Management
Committee

Nominations,
Remuneration The Executive Quarterly
and Corporate Committee RemunerGovernance
ation
Committee

Bonus

Total

1. Mr. Yuth Vorachattarn

220,000

-

-

-

-

200,000

369,000

789,000

2. Mr. Prachin Eamlumnow*
3 .Mrs. Rujiroj Eamlumnow
4. Gen.Dr. Surapan Poomkaew
5. Mr. Kanokphand Chulakasem
6. Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi

180,000
220,000
220,000
220,000
-

100,000
100,000
100,000
-

120,000
-

80,000
80,000
80,000
-

-

160,000
520,000
520,000
680,000
-

237,000
237,000
237,000
237,000
-

577,000
1,157000
1,157000
1,437,000
-

7. Mr. Jaturont Komolmis*
8. Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow*
9. Mr. Peerapong Eamlumnow*

Remark: *The 4 executive directors did not receive the meeting allowance per meeting, quarterly remuneration and
				pension.

Other Remunerations

There are no other remunerations apart from the above remunerations.

Executive Remuneration
Fund

Remuneration for 5 executive directors is totaled THB 39.63 Million paid out in the forms of Salary, Bonus and Provident

Employees’ Remuneration

As of 31 December 2020, the total remuneration for 215 employees (excluding executives) was THB 98.13 million which
included salary, bonus, provident fund, and other remunerations.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Company appointed DIA International Company Limited to be the auditor for the Company and the subsidiaries for
the accounting period ended 31 December 2020. Details of the expenses are as follows:
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(Unit : THB)
List

2019

2020

Audit fees for the company
- Financial Statements in 3 Quarters

900,000

1,000,000

- Annual Financial Statement

800,000

700,000

60,000

60,000

140,000

140,000

155,867

125,410

2,055,876

2,025,410

Audit fees for the subsidiary companies
- Financial Statements in 3 Quarters
- Annual Financial Statement
Other expenses *
Total

Remark: *Other expenses for ex sample Travel expenses, Copy fee, Overtime, and telephone charges

In 2020, the Company and the subsidiaries used the auditing service only and no other service was hired from DIA
International Company Limited and other persons or entities related to the auditor or the auditing office which the auditor belongs to.
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Good Corporate Governance
The Board of Directors of Grand Prix International Public Company Limited realizes that the good corporate governance
is an important basis of corporate sustainability and a significant factor of business operation to ensure effectiveness,
transparency and responsibility towards all stakeholders. For the past years, the Company strives for continuous development
and promotion of good corporate governance by conducting business while considering the risk and responsibility towards all
stakeholders together with the support of economically, socially and environmentally sustainable development.

Policy on Good Corporate Governance

Good corporate governance is the responsibility of directors, executives and employees at all levels to ensure that they
perform their duties with responsibility, prudence and integrity under business code of conduct for effective business operation,
competitiveness and good operating results. All groups of shareholders and stakeholders shall be treated fairly and equally.
Internal data shall not be used for benefit of self and other. Information shall be disclosed transparently. Human rights shall not
be violated. Our personnel shall have the neutral political stance and adhere to anti-corruption policy to support the management
that focuses on sustainable growth.

Objectives of Good Corporate Governance
1.
		
2.
		
3.
		
4.
		
5.
		
6.
		

Establish transparent management system with clear standards which fosters the Company’s competitiveness and
operating results by taking account of long-term impacts;
Build reliability in ethical business operation, respect the rights of and be responsible towards all groups of domestic
and international shareholders and stakeholders to enhance competitiveness;
Create performance measuring tools which can check and improve performance for better efficiency and adjustability
under the changing factors;
Indicate the scope of responsibility of the committee and executives who have interest and all related parties so that
the management can exercise their power within the clear scope and prevent possible conflict of interest;
Ensure that the performance is in compliance with the law, rules and regulations related to the Company’s regulations
and the law on securities and exchange, rules and good practices of Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC);
Establish the system of effective use of resources by efficiently using them while taking account of social benefit
and practically reduce negative impacts on the environment.

Report of Key Operational on Corporate Governance

With determination in developing the Company’s operating guidelines that consistent with good corporate governance
principles, resulting in the Company was able to improve the score in the Corporate Governance Report of Thai Listed
Companies 2020 (CGR 2020) held by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD). From the original 2019, the Company
received an overall assessment score of 77 points, which is 3 stars or equivalent to “good” and in 2020 the Company received
an overall assessment score of 87 points, which is 4 stars
or equivalent to “very good”.
In addition, the Company has joined “Collective Action Against Corruption (CAC) project, which has signed the
Declaration of Intent Against Corruption since 3 September 2014 which the Company has implemented the requirements of CAC
and passed certification on 30 September 2020.

Good Corporate Governance

Principles of good corporate governance of the Company can be divided into 8 principles as follows:
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Principle 1
Awareness of the Roles and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors as
the Corporate Leader Creating Sustainable Value to the Company

The Board of Directors is the key part of good corporate governance consisting of experts in various fields who have
expertise, experience, leadership, vision, and independency to make decisions. They shall dedicate their time to perform their
duties with responsibility, prudence and integrity for the utmost benefit of the Company.

1.1 Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

Ensure good corporate management
(1) Determine clear and proper objectives and main goals, as well as the corporate vision, mission, and values that
			 create values for the Company, and review them at least once a year.
(2) Determine the policies, strategies, plan, and annual budgets, appropriately manage important resources with the
			 management and supervise the management of directors and executives to ensure that they perform the assignments
			effectively;
(3) Determine policy on financial management and ensure that the Company has appropriate financial liquidity, ability to
			 pay debts and has mechanism to deal with financial problems;
(4) Determine follow-up, performance assessment and report on performance on regular basis for the most effective and
			 efficient results.
Create Sustainable Value to the Company
(1) Determine written business code of conduct in which the Board of Directors shall be the role model to raise
			 employees’ awareness of business ethics;
(2) Determine written policy on good corporate governance in compliance with the law on securities and exchange, rules
			 and good practices of Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand by assigning
			 the Company Secretary to supervise, follow up and review the guidelines at least once a year;
(3) Determine appropriate and sufficient internal control system to be implemented all over the Company by assigning
			 the internal auditor to follow up and report the performance to the Audit Committee at least once a quarter, as well
			 as assessing the efficiency of internal control system at least once a year;
(4) Determine appropriate and sufficient risk management policy by assigning risk management working group to
			 implement the policy, follow up and report the performance results to Risk Management Committee at least once a
			quarter;
(5) Determine the guidelines for making transactions which may have conflict of interest between the Company’s
			 stakeholders and disclose correct information which may have the conflict of interest;
(6) Determine the written policy on social responsibility to promote and raise awareness of employees at all levels of
			 social responsibility and reducing environmental impacts;
(7) Determine the written anti-corruption policy to promote and raise awareness of directors, executives and employees
			 at all levels of the damage caused by corruption;
(8) Ensure the above policies are communicated to directors, executives and employees of all levels for their understanding.
Ensure the operations are in compliance with the law and regulations
(1) Ensure the Company’s operations are in compliance with the relevant law, rules and regulations and the law on
			 securities and exchange, rules and good practices of Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock
			 Exchange of Thailand pursuant to the Securities and Stock Act, B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992), Section 89/7 – 89/10;
(2) Supervise the internal auditor to examine or audit the Company’s performance in accordance with the applicable law,
			 rules and regulations.
Monitor that the Board of Directors and the management appropriately perform the assignments
(1) Appoint specific sub-committees as necessary to perform any tasks to ensure that significant matters shall be
			 thoroughly considered which include
			 (a) Audit Committee
			 (b) Executive Committee
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		 (c) Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee
		 (d) Risk Management Committee
(2) Determine that the Board of Directors and sub-committees execute the board charter which clearly indicates their
		 roles, duties and responsibilities and review them at least once a year;
(3) Appoint senior executives through consideration of the Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance
		 Committee and determine their roles, duties and responsibilities in writing;
(4) Appoint an appropriate person to the Company Secretary by determining the qualifications, scope of duties and
		 responsibilities of the Company Secretary in accordance with the law on securities and exchange, rules and good
		 practices of Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand and other
		 applicable laws;
(5) The Company shall separate the roles and duties of the Board of Directors from those of the management as follows:
			Board of Directors shall be responsible for determination of the main objectives and goals for business
		 operation, creation of corporate culture which adheres to the code of conduct, be the role model, take care of the
		 organizational structure and performance of the Board of Directors to be appropriate for effectively achieving the main
		 objectives and goals in business operation, nominate, develop, determine remuneration and assess the performance
		 of Chief Executive Officer and determine remuneration structure as incentives for directors, executives and employees
		 at all levels in conformity to the main objectives and goals of the Company.
			Board of Directors in collaboration with the management shall determine and review the strategies,
		 goals and annual plans in conformity to the main objectives and goals of the Company, supervise and review risk
		 management system and internal control system to ensure appropriateness and sufficiency, determine the power to
		 approve which is suitable for the management’s responsibility, determine rules for resources management, personnel
		 development, annual budgets, monitor and assess the performance to ensure conformity to the Company’s main
		 objectives and goals.
			The management shall be responsible for daily administrative tasks to ensure compliance with the strategies,
		 policies and plans approved by the Board of Directors by assigning Chief Executive Officer and the management to
		 be responsible for decision-making in compliance with the Company’s rules and regulations without intervening the
		 management decision unless it is necessary issues that the management shall propose for discussion or consideration.
(6) Determine that the President and the Chief Executive Officer shall be different persons by clearly separating their
		 roles, duties and responsibilities as follows:
		Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the President
		 1. Chair the Board of Directors’ Meeting and shareholders’ meeting;
		 2. Direct, monitor and supervise to ensure that the Board of Directors performs their duties effectively to achieve
			 the objectives, policies and main goals of the Company;
		 3. Ensure that all directors take part in promoting corporate culture consisting of the code of conduct and good
			 corporate governance and be the good role model;
		 4. Encourage the directors to employ appropriate discretion and express their opinions freely;
		 5. Strengthen good relations between executive directors and non-executive directors and between the Board of
			 Directors and the management as well as ensuring that the directors are not under the influence of the
			management.
		Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer
		 1. Controlling, supervising, and monitoring the operation and/or general management of the Company.
		 2. Proceeding or performing for compliance with policy, work plan, and the budget approved by the Board of
			 Directors including other Committees.
		 3. Monitoring and assessing the Company’s operating results on a regular basis to prevent risks from factors both
			 inside and outside the Company.
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Principle 2
Determine the Company’s Main Objectives and Goals for Sustainability

The Board of Director has determined the main objectives and goals of the Company clearly and appropriately which shall
be used as the guidelines for employees of all levels to work towards the same direction as well as determining the vision and
mission of the Company, as well as strategies and annual plans that are suitable for the business model to create value to the
business, customers, all stakeholder, and overall society in conformity to creation of sustainable value.

Principle 3
Promote Effective Committee
3.1 Structure of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is the key part of good corporate governance consisting of experts in various fields who have
expertise, experience, leadership, vision, and independency to make decisions. They shall dedicate their time to perform their
duties with responsibility, prudence and integrity for the utmost benefit of the Company under the main objectives and goals
determined by the Company.

3.2 Sub-Committees

The Board of Directors appoints sub-committees to perform specific tasks as necessary. The roles, duties and
responsibilities of the Board of Directors, sub-committees and the management are clearly separated by clearly determining the
levels of power to approve financial matters to ensure that important matters shall be thoroughly considered prior to being
proposed to the Board of Directors.

3.3 Nomination of the Board of Directors and Subcommittees

Rules and Procedure for Nomination of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors has assigned the Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee to nominate and
select the directors according to transparent and clear rules and procedures in accordance with the Company’s regulations,
regulations of SEC and the Stick Exchange of Thailand.
(1) The Board of Directors has the policy to grant equal rights to all shareholders to nominate candidates for nomination
		 of new directors in advance by determining the rules and conditions on nomination which shall be published on the
		 Company’s website.
(2) Appointment of directors shall be in accordance with the Company’s rules and provisions of the applicable laws.
		 One shareholder shall have one vote for one share they hold. Each shareholder may exercise all voting rights they
		 have to elect one or many directors but they cannot divide their votes to any candidate.
(3) Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee shall review the structure and qualifications of the
		 Board of Directors and sub-committees to ensure suitability for the Company’s business operation.
(4) The Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Good Governance shall select and appoint directors by realizing the
		 structure of the Board which determines the directors shall have the knowledge, ability, and experience that benefit
		 the Company. The Company has prepared Board Skill Matrix to determine the directors’ qualifications who will be
		 recruited by considering from skill, ability, and necessity still lack, including appropriate qualifications and consistent
		 with the elements and structure of the Board based on the Company’s business strategy.
(5) The Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Good Governance shall define and review criteria and process of
		 recruiting directors by realizing Board diversity that determined to have a level of education, knowledge, competence,
		 professional skills, work experience, specialization, leadership, sweeping visions, morality and ethics without restrictions
		 on age, race, language, and gender for the benefit on making decisions and proposing opinions to the Board of
		 Directors and the shareholders’ meeting for further consideration and approval.
		 • Consider the names of directors who shall be dismissed upon the expiration of term and the names of the
			 persons nominated for election as directors;
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		 • Consider the persons nominated to be directors to ensure that they do not have any prohibited characteristics as
			 prescribed by the law or SEC regulations and good practices, have good work history, knowledge, skills,
			 experience, and specialization which are necessary for supporting the Company, and not conduct any business
			 with the similar nature and competitive with the Company’s business.
(6) Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee shall determine succession plan of directors, Chief
		 Executive Officer and key executives of the Company.
Rules and Procedures for Nomination of Sub-Committees
Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee shall screen the persons on the basis of principles and
methods indicated in the Company’s rules by selecting the persons having knowledge, abilities and qualifications as announced
by SEC and the Stock Exchange of Thailand in nomination and selection of sub-committees in case of dismissal upon expiration
of term or vacancy to propose the qualified persons to the Board of Directors for further appointment.

3.4 Determination of Remuneration for the Board of Directors and Sub-Committee

The Board of Directors has assigned Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee to consider
structure and rate of remuneration in accordance with the level of responsibilities to attract directors to lead the Company to
achieve the short-term and long-term objectives and goals.

3.5 Determination of Responsibility for Performance and Appropriate Time Management

The Company supervises all directors to be responsible for performing their duties and allocate sufficient time on holding
the position of directors which the Company has set a policy for limiting listed companies of non-executive directors shall not
taking position more than 5 companies without exception and provided the executive directors and the Chief Executive Officer
able to hold director positions in up to 3 other listed companies without exception. By considering the performance and
dedication to perform duties in the company sufficiently and requiring each director to attend not less than 75 percent of the
total board meetings held in the year.
In addition, the Company set the Chief Executive Officer to hold a position of director at other companies but it must not
be an obstacle to the performance of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and that business must not be the same business
type or direct competition with the Company’s business and shall be approved by the Board of Directors before
holding a position of director in other companies.

3.6 Policy on Investment in Subsidiaries/Affiliated Companies

The Board of Director has determined the policy and operation of the subsidiaries and other businesses in which the
Company significantly invests at appropriate level including other subsidiaries and businesses in which the Company invests for
mutual understanding. The Board of Directors shall appoint the persons to assume the position of directors, executives or
ontrolling persons at the subsidiaries to endure concordant operation with the parent company and monitor the operating results
of the subsidiaries to be used as the information for making the Company’s consolidated financial statements according to the
standard and in due time.

3.7 Group and Individual Self-Assessment of the Board of Directors and Sub-Committees in
group and individually

The Board of Directors has determined the rules and arranged the group self-assessment of the Board of Directors and
sub-committees and individual self-assessment of directors at least once a year using the assessment form as suggested by
Thai Institute of Directors and the Stock Exchange of Thailand with following objectives:
(1) To be aware of problems and difficulties causing the performance failure to achieve the determined objectives in the
		 previous year;
(2) To ensure effective and efficient performance of the Board of Directors and sub-committee as they can be aware of
		 their responsibilities;
(3) To know how to employ knowledge, abilities and independency in expressing opinions of the Board of Directors;
(4) To improve the relationship between the Board of Directors and the management.
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3.7.1 Self-performance results assessment of the Board of Directors on both each Committee and an
individual.
(A) Assessment method
			 It will use a form of self-performance results assessment of the Sub-Committees both each Committee and
		 individuals by using a method of specifying the opinions of each director. By mark (✓) in the score box from
		 0 - 4 for just one box with the meaning as follows:
		 0 = Totally disagree or no action in that regard.
		 1 = Disagree or take a bit of action in that regard.
		 2 = Agree or take reasonable action in that regard.
		 3 = Quite agree or take good action in that regard.
		 4 = Totally agree or take excellent action in that regard.
(B) Assessment Topics
			 The assessment topics for each Committee shall be considered as appropriate. The maximum assessment topics
		 are divided into 5 topics, may use different topics that can be adjusted as appropriate.
		 (1) Self-performance results assessment of the Board of Directors on each Committee.
			 (1.1) Structure and qualifications of Committee.
			 (1.2) Roles, duties and responsibilities of Committee.
			 (1.3) Meeting of Committee.
			 (1.4) Relationship with the management division.
			 (1.5) Self-development of Directors and management development.
		 (2) Self-performance results assessment of the Board of Directors on an individual.
			 (2.1) Structure and qualifications of Committee.
			 (2.2) Meeting of Committee.
			 (2.3) Roles, duties and responsibilities of Committee.
3.7.2 Self-performance results assessment of the Sub-Committees on each Committee.
(A) Assessment method
				 It will use a form of self-performance results assessment of the Sub-Committees by using a method of specifying
		 the opinions of each director. By mark (✓) in the score box from 0 - 4 for just one box with the meaning as follows:
			 0 = Totally disagree or no action in that regard.
			 1 = Disagree or take a bit of action in that regard.
			 2 = Agree or take reasonable action in that regard.
			 3 = Quite agree or take good action in that regard.
			 4 = Totally agree or take excellent action in that regard.
(B) Assessment Topics
			 The assessment topics for each Committee shall be considered as appropriate. The maximum assessment topics
		 are divided into 5 topics, may use different topics that can be adjusted as appropriate.
		 (1) Self-performance results assessment of the Sub-Committees on each Committee.
			 (1.1) Structure and qualifications of Sub-Committees.
			 (1.2) Meeting of Sub-Committee.
			 (1.3) Roles, duties and responsibilities of Sub-Committee.
3.7.3 The results
The results of group and individual performance of the Board of Directors and sub committees during the accounting year
2020 can be summarized as follows:
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Results of Group Assessment of the Board of Directors
Assessment Topics

Results (Percent)

Structure and Qualification of Directors

99

Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of Directors

99

Meetings of Directors

98

Performance of Directors

99

Relationship with Administrative Division

99

Self-development of Directors and Development of Executives

100

Average Results

99

Results of individual Assessment of the Board of Directors
Assessment Topics

Results (Percent)

Structure and Qualification of Directors

100

Meetings of Directors

99

Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of Directors

98

Average Results

99

Results of Group Assessment of Sub-Committees
Sub-Committee

Results (Percent)

Audit Committee

100

Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee

99

Risk Management Committee

99

Executive Committee

99
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3.8 Trainings and Development of Directors

Orientation of New Directors
Orientation of new directors shall be determined for creating knowledge and understanding of the nature of business
operation to prepare and support effective performance of new directors in key matters such as business structure, director
structure, corporate structure, scope of power and duties, and responsibilities, and the laws related the Company’s business and
understanding of the objectives, main goals, vision, and mission of the Company, as well as the nature of business and work
guidelines.
Knowledge Development of Directors
The Company promotes and encourages the directors to attend seminars on regular basis such as the seminars
organized by Thai Institute of Directors, the Stock Exchange of Thailand, SEC, or other independent organizations to improve their
knowledge and performance for the benefit of more effective work.
Knowledge development of directors in 2020 is as follows:
No.

Name

Position

1

Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi

Independent Director

2

Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow

Executive Committee
Member

3

Miss Khwanchanok Aula-aiem

Accounting and
Finance Director

Results (Percent)
• Role of the Chairman Program (RCP) - IOD
• Mergers & Acquisitions - OMEGAWORLDCLASS
• M&A in Action Financial & Pricing Strategies
- OMEGAWORLDCLASS
• Outbound Investment Commercial, Legal & Tax
Strategies - OMEGAWORLDCLASS
• Joint Ventures Agreement - OMEGAWORLDCLASS
• CFO Refresher Course # 1 - SET
• M&A in Action Financial & Pricing Strategies
- OMEGAWORLDCLASS
• Important finance For accountants - NYC
Management
• Business Combinations and Advanced Operational
Consolidation (Workshop) # 1/63
- Federation of Accounting Professions
• Analyze the present and know the future through
the translated financial statements.
- NYC Management
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3.9 Board of Directors’ Meeting

The Board of Directors has assigned the Company Secretary to responsible for preparing sufficient and appropriate meeting
documents, sending the meeting invitation letter to directors at least 7 days before the meeting date which shall
determine the meeting program and agenda of the Board of Directors’ meetings in advance every year, so the directors can
arrange a time and attend meetings continuously. The Board of Directors’ meetings is scheduled at least six times a year and
special meetings are held as necessary. At the Board of Directors’ meeting, the Company has established a policy on the
minimum number of a quorum for voting which must have directors not less than 2 out of 3 of the total number of directors.
The meeting of each Sub-Committee will be scheduled as necessary and appropriate which shall determine the meeting
program and agenda of the Board of Directors’ meetings in advance every year, so the directors can arrange a time and attend
meetings continuously. The Board of Directors’ meetings is scheduled at least six times a year and special meetings are held
as necessary. At the Board of Directors’ meeting, the Company has established a policy on the minimum number of a quorum
for voting which must have directors not less than 2 out of 3 of the total number of directors.

Principle 4
Nomination and Development of Top Executives and Personnel Management
4.1 Management Structure

The top executives consist of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, and Department Manager who have the
roles, duties and responsibilities for daily management of the Company by taking account of the environment to ensure that the
Company’s operation is in conformity to the plans, objectives and short-term and long-term main goals.
Top executives shall have knowledge, abilities and experience that are useful for the Company’s business operation, have
outstanding work history, qualifications and not have prohibited characteristics as stipulated the law on public companies and
related law. Also, they shall not have any characteristics which reflect the lack of qualifications to be assigned to manage the
Company.
The Board of Directors has determined the number of listed companies in which the Chief Executive Officer and each top
executive can assume the position to suit the nature and business condition of the Company which shall not exceed 3 listed
companies by taking account of work efficiency to ensure that top executives can dedicate their time to work for the Company
appropriately.

4.2 Nomination of Top Executives

Rules and Procedures for Nomination of Top Executives
The Board of Directors has determined that Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee, in collaboration
with the Chief Executive Officer, shall consider the rules and procedures for nomination, appointment and remuneration for the
Company’s top executives. The succession plan shall be made to prepare the succession process of top executives or potential
executives by selecting the persons having knowledge, skills and experience which are necessary for supporting the Company
to achieve the determined objectives and goals.

4.3 Determination of Remuneration for Top Executives and Employees

The Board of Directors has assigned Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee to consider
structure and rate of remuneration in accordance with the level of responsibilities to attract top executives and employees to
lead the Company to achieve the short-term and long-term objectives and goals.

4.4 Performance Assessment of Top Executives and Employees

Performance Assessment of Top Executives
Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee has determined the performance assessment form for
top executives in which 2 parts of performance shall be assessed as follows:
(1) Assessment of work achievement by using KPI which is in line with the objectives and goals
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(2) Assessment of main behaviors which are important for operation and conform to the corporate value
Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee shall assess the performance and determine annual
remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer prior to proposing it to the Board of Directors for consideration. The Chief
Executive Officer shall assess the performance of top executives ranging from the Chief Operating Officer and Department
Manager. Then, the opinions shall be proposed to Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee prior to
being presented to the Board of Directors for further consideration.
Assessment of Performance of Supervisors and Operational Employees
Chief Executive Officer has assigned Human Resources Manager to make the performance assessment form for
supervisors who are Department Managers and Division Chief and operational employees. The assessment criteria shall be
in accordance with the overall KPI of the Company. The performance assessment shall be conducted once a year.
The Company has determined that the Department Managers shall assess the performance of their subordinates
ranging from Division Managers and supervisors. Division Managers and supervisors shall assess the performance of
operational employees under their chain of command. Human Resources Manager shall conclude the assessment results and
present them to Chief Executive Officer for consideration of salary adjustment.

4.5 Development of Top Executives

The Board of Directors has determined that all new top executives shall attend the orientations to build knowledge and
understanding of the business nature for preparation. Human Resources Manager shall coordinate all matters and
encourage Chief Executive Officer and top executives to attend training and seminars organized by Thai Institute of Directors,
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, SEC, or other independent organizations to improve their knowledge, skills and essential
characteristics for moving the Company towards the determined goals.

4.6 Human Resources Management

The Company emphasizes the importance of human resources management to effectively respond to the changing
business, economic and environmental situation. The Company aims at fostering the readiness of the personnel to ensure
that they have integrity, good quality of life, safe living, and opportunity to develop their knowledge and abilities to move the
Company towards the achievement for sustainable growth.

Principle 5
Promote Innovations and Operate Business Responsibly

The Board of Directors emphasizes and supports the creation of innovations which give values to the Company
together with creating benefit to customers, suppliers or related parties. The Company shall be aware of social and
environmental responsibilities. Our innovations shall not support inappropriate behaviors or illegal activities or violate the
Company’s business code of conduct.

5.1 Creation of Innovations

Creation of innovations is the process of changing existing products to make them different and better than the
competitors by using cutting-edge manufacturing technology, use low energy and reduce environmental impacts. More
importantly, the Company focuses on developing the personnel to have creativity for sustainable development so that they
can accommodate the changing innovations in accordance with the Company’s main goals.
Creation of Corporate Culture to Boost Creation of Innovations
The Company provides personnel development training to foster their creativity in innovation making. The management
shall take it as part of strategies review, development planning, operation improvement, and operating result monitoring for
more effective manage of those innovative procedure.
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5.2 Business Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors has determined the business code of conduct as the guidelines for directors, executives and
employees at all levels to work effectively and transparently with the aim of building reliability among stakeholders for
the benefit of sustainable value of the Company. The business code of conduct consists of (1) Code of conduct on
responsibilities towards the Company, (2) Code of conduct on responsibility towards shareholders, (3) Code of conduct on
responsibility towards employees, (4) Code of conduct on responsibility towards customers, (5) Code of conduct on
responsibility towards suppliers, (6) Code of conduct on responsibility towards trade competitors, (7) Code of conduct on
responsibility towards accounts payable, (8) Code of conduct on responsibility towards financial institution creditors, (9) Code
of conduct on responsibility towards supervising authorities and government agencies, and (10) Code of conduct on
responsibility towards the society with an emphasis on social, environmental, educational, and sport issues.

5.3 Effective Resources Management

Energy Management
(1) Determine that energy conservation is part of the Company’s operation for development of appropriate energy man
		 agement system;
(2) Improve efficiency of the Company’s consumption of energy to conform to the relevant business and technology as
		 well as good practices;
(3) Determine that energy conservation is the responsibility of executives and employees at all levels shall collaborate in
		 complying with the determined standards;
(4) The Company shall provide necessary support, including human, technological, budget, training resources, and take
		 part in expressing opinions for development of energy work.
Procurement Management
All procurements shall result in the receipt of products and services in accordance with the specifications in terms of
quality, price, quantity, service time, delivery time by taking account of the Company’s policy on quality, safety, occupational
health, and environment. The Company shall not take advantage of suppliers. Bidding shall be conducted fairly and equally with
all suppliers. The Company shall equally maintain the business relationship with suppliers by not demanding any property or
interest either directly or indirectly from suppliers without any exception. Procurements shall be done by carefully considering
the interest and possible damage to the Company to reputation and image of the Company in the eye of the outsiders.

5.4 Informational Technology Management
(1)
		
		
(2)
		
		
(3)
		
(4)
		
		

Determine the policy on information technology management which covers allocation of sufficient resources for
business operation as well as compliance with the law, rules, regulations, and standards applicable for information
technology system;
The Company has data protection regulations and indicates the standards of data protection system covering
confidentiality, reliability maintenance and availability of the data. Data shall be prevented from unauthorized usage or
modification which shall be observed by all employees;
The Company shall assess the risk of information technology covering various aspects of risk management by
analyzing internal and external risks to reduce them;
The Company emphasizes the importance of disclosure of its information to the public which shall be in compliance
with the Company’s code of conduct and Computer Crime Act and related laws to ensure order and utmost benefit
as well as preventing possible problems which may occur to the Company and related persons.

5.5 Social, Community and Environmental Management

The Company aims at conducting its business under good governance policy and has determined that social
responsibility is part of its business code of conduct. Social responsibility policy has been determined as follows:
(1) Strive for conducting business ethically and with social responsibility;
(2) Strive for developing overall community and society in terms of economy, society, community, and environment;
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(3) Respect the law and human rights without discrimination in terms of differences in race, nationality, religion, and
		culture;
(4) Encourage employees to have public mind and raise aware of social responsibility for the public benefit;
(5) Promote activities that give sustainable benefit to the community, society and environment;
		 (5.1) Corporate activities are the activities that develop the skills of directors, executives and employees of all levels,
				 create knowledge within the Company, encourage employees to take part in sharing opinions about the
				 Company, and promote environmental conservation in the Company;
		 (5.2) Community activities are the activities which are in line with the Company’s business operation and give the
				 real long-term benefits to the society, community and environment, promote educational development and
				 lifelong learning, develop the quality of life of people in communities in which the Company operates its
				 business as well as the society as a whole, help the society, promote learning, and raise awareness of social
				responsibility.

Principle 6
Ensure Appropriate Risk Management and Internal Control System
6.1 Risk Management and Internal Control

Risk Management
The Company aims at preventing and reducing possible risks by analyzing and reviewing risk factors which may affect the
business operation, seek opportunities under acceptable risks, follow up the results of unacceptable risk management to achieve
the Company’s business goals and ensure that the Company has sufficient and effective risk management.
Risk Management Committee has performed the duties as assigned to manage and reduce risks, regularly assess risks,
supervise unacceptable risks, and follow up to ensure sufficient and appropriate risk management system to prevent and reduce
possible impacts in the future in accordance with good corporate governance principles. In addition, corporate risk management
working group has been formed, consisting of Chief Operating Officer and Department Managers of all units, totally 10 persons
at minimum, to manage risks in each division with regular monitoring.
Internal Control
The Board of Directors has determined that the Company shall have appropriate and sufficient internal control system,
assess and follow up the issues regularly. Independent internal auditor shall report operating results to Audit Committee on the
basis of internal audit standards for the utmost benefit of the Company and acceptability among all stakeholders. The following
guidelines are determined:
(1) Arrange appropriate control environment;
(2) Arrange appropriate internal control activities;
(3) Arrange appropriate, reliable, and timely information technology and communication system;
(4) Arrange appropriate follow-up and assessment system.

6.2 Stock Trading and Use of Insider Information

Directors, executives and all employees shall comply with the prohibitions of insider trading indicated in the Securities and
Exchange Act, B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992), Section 241.
In addition, the Company determines that directors and executives shall make and submit the reports on the change of
holding of securities and futures contract (Form 59) of theirs and their spouses or partners, and minor child who hold more than
30 percent of all voting rights in accordance with the form of change of securities holding to the change of securities holding
report system on SEC’s website (https://www.sec.or.th) or notify of the change to the Company Secretary for submission to
the above system each time of the change.
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The Company has determined that directors and executives as well as the persons holding the executive positions in
accounting or financial section from Department Manager or higher and equivalent and related operational employees who receive
the internal information which is the subject matter with possibility to affect the change in securities price or value shall suspend
their offer to buy or sell or inviting other to buy or sell the Company’s securities either directly or indirectly within 30 days
prior to and until the date of announcement of the Company’s quarterly and annual financial operating results.

6.3 Prevention of Conflict of Interest

The transactions which may have the conflict of interest shall be made for the benefit of the company and the
shareholders as a whole and shall be in accordance with the regulations of SEC and the Stock Exchange of Thailand as well as
other applicable law. Therefore, each transaction making shall be thoroughly considered and screened by the Audit Committee
prior to being proposed to the Board of Directors for approval. Directors who hold interest shall not take part in the consideration
in accordance with the rules and procedures determined by SEC.

6.4 Related Transactions and Transactions Related to Acquisition or Distribution of Assets

The Board of Directors has determined the measures and procedures for approval of related transactions and transactions
related to acquisition or distribution of the Company’s assets to ensure compliance with the regulations of SEC and the Stock
Exchange of Thailand as well as other applicable law. Persons who hold interest or may have conflict of interest shall not
approval any transactions related to them. Determination of price or remuneration shall be in accordance with the normal course
of business and general trade conditions which shall be approved by Audit Committee prior to being proposed to the Board of
Directors and/or the shareholders’ meeting for approval. Such transactions shall be disclosed in accordance with the rules and
procedures determined by SEC.

6.5 Report on Interest of Directors and Top Executives

The Company has determined the rules, conditions and procedures for report on interest of directors, executives and
related persons in accordance with Section 89/14 of Securities and Exchange Act, B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992), as amended by
Securities and Exchange Act (No. 4), B.E. 2551 (A.D. 2008), which requires directors and executives to report the Company of
their interest or the interest of other related persons within the period and by the method identified by the Company as follows:
First reporting
The first 4 directors or executives who have just appointed as directors (including the holding of spouses and minor children)
shall notify Management’s Securities Holding System (Form 59) via the SEC’s website (https://www.sec.or.th) within 7 days
from the closing date and notify the Company Secretary to prepare a report on the interests of directors.
Reporting holding change
The first 4 directors or executives (including the holding of spouses and minor children) shall notify Management’s
Securities Holding System (Form 59) via the SEC’s website (https://www.sec.or.th) within 3 days from the closing date and
notify the Company Secretary to prepare a report on the interests of directors.

6.6 Anti-Corruption

Anti-corruption Policy
Directors, executives and employees of the Company and the subsidiaries shall not act or accept any form of corruption
either directly or indirectly for the benefit of self, family, and friend, acquaintance, either as receivers or givers of the monetary
or non-monetary bribe. Anti-corruption policy covers the business and all internal and external units related to the Company and
the subsidiaries by having the assessment of performing anti-corruption policy on regular basis as well as reviewing the guidelines
and regulations to ensure conformity to the change of business, the Company’s rules and regulations and legal provisions.
Guidelines for Practices
(1) The Company’s anti-corruption measures shall be the obligations of directors, executives and employees at all levels.
They shall adhere to and comply with the determined measures and shall not ignore the guidelines prescribed here in.
		 In the event of any violation or non-compliance of the above rules which causes damage to the Company, the person
		 committing such violation or non-compliance shall be punished in accordance with the Company work rules.
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(2)
		
		
(3)
		
		
(4)
		
(5)
		
		
(6)
		
		
		
		
		
		

The Company shall provide justice and protect employees who report corruption cases in relation to the Company by
implementing whistleblower or corruption reporter protection measures as indicated in the rules and regulations on
whistleblowing or complaint filing of stakeholders.
The Company’s directors, executives and employees at all levels who commit corruption shall be considered as
violating the business code of conduct and are subject to disciplinary punishment as determined by the Company
with the possibility to be legally punished if the actions are illegal.
The Company realizes the importance of sharing knowledge and understanding of compliance with this anti-corruption
policy with other parties who have to work in connection with the Company or cause impacts on the Company.
The Company shall communicate anti-corruption policy through director orientation program, employee orientation
program and seminars held within the Company on appropriate occasions to encourage employees to work with in
tegrity, be responsible for their duties and to ensure that the business is operated under corporate code of conduct.
The Company determines that directors, executives and employees at all levels shall report any actions which is
against or may be against the principles given in the anti-corruption manual. In case of any questions about the
practices in this anti-corruption manual, employees shall initially consider by themselves whether such actions.
• Are correct;
• Are acceptable and disclosable to the society;
• Will damage the Company’s reputation;
Or directly ask the superior, Human Resources Department and the Company Secretary.

6.7 Good Practices Related to Anti-Corruption Measures

To ensure clear practices related to the matters with high risk of corruption, the Company has determined the policy and
practices related to the following matters:
Political Neutrality and Assistance: The Company has the policy on political neutrality without giving financial or
resources support, or performs any actions which may favor any politicians or political parties either directly or indirectly.
Receiving and Giving of Gifts, Hospitality Fees, Service Fees, or Other Interests: The Company has determined
that “receiving and giving of gifts, hospitality fees, service fees, or other interests shall be done by taking account of tradition
and culture without excessive value and shall not be the omission of duties which may lead to corruption problems”.
Charitable Donations: Company has determined that “charitable donations shall be proved as being done for giving
assistance and support to the community and society with clear evidence and shall not be the route for any kinds of corruption”.
Financial Support: The Company has determined that “giving monetary support shall be proved as being done for
fostering success of the project, for business public relations, or for the objectives of operation in transparent and legal manner
without being used as an excuse for bribery”.

6.8 Whistleblowing and Complaints

The Company expects that directors, executives and all employees shall report in good faith to the Company about any
performance which is or may be in conflict with or in discordance with good corporate governance, business code of conduct,
or related law for improvement or correction.
Scope of Whistleblowing or Complaints
In case of any doubts or any actions which may violate the good corporate governance and business code of conduct,
violation of rules and regulations of the Company, unfair treatment at work, corruption, illegal actions which cause damage to
the Company.
Whistleblowing or Complaint Channels
(1) Complaint box installed within the Company
(2) The Company’s web page under “Corporate Governance > Complaint Channel and Complaint Management Procedure”
(3) Representative assigned by the Audit Committee who is
			 Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi
			 Tel.: 08-1148-6455 or Fax: 0-2393-6190
			 E-mail: dhas_udomdham@outlook.com
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Measures to Protect Whistleblowers or Complainants
(1) The Company shall conceal the names, addresses or other information which can identifies the complainants or
		 whistleblowers and shall keep the information of complainants or whistleblowers confidential.
(2) In case of complaints against directors, the Audit Committees shall protect the whistleblowers or complainants,
		 witnesses, and persons giving information for investigation from any trouble, danger or unfairness.
(3) President of the Audit Committee shall consider giving orders as deemed appropriate to protect the whistleblowers
		 or complainants, witnesses, and persons giving information for investigation.
(4) President of the Audit Committee may assign any executive to act on his/her behalf in protecting the whistleblowers
		 or complainants, witnesses, and persons giving information for investigation. The assigned executive shall not have
		 any involvement in the complained matters either directly or indirectly.

Principle 7
Maintain Financial Reliability and Information Disclosure

The Board of Directors shall be responsible for ensuring that financial reports and disclosure of important information are
correct, complete, timely, transparent, and equal in accordance with the relevant rules, standards and practices.

7.1 Maintenance of Financial Reliability

(1) The company has determined that Accounting and Finance Department shall make and disclose financial
		 information. The persons in charge of disclosure shall have knowledge, skills and experience which are eligible for
		 the duties, responsibilities and sufficient in number. The Company has indicated that the persons in charge of
		 financial information disclosure include Chief Executive Officer, Accounting and Finance Director, and the Company
		Secretary.
(2) The Company emphasizes financial reliability in financial information disclosure by taking account of the
		 following factors:
		 (a) Results of sufficiency assessment of the internal system
		 (b) Auditor’s opinion about the financial statements
		 (c) Audit Committee’s opinion
		 (d) Conformity to the Company’s objectives, main goals, strategies, and policies
(3) The Company has determined the record of transactions in correct, complete and accountable manner in accordance
		 with general accounting standards and applicable laws. Related personnel shall adhere to the principles of integrity.
		 Transactions shall be recorded correctly and accounting and financial report shall be correct without any false items.
		 Employees at all levels shall comply with the rules and regulations of the applicable law.

7.2 Information Disclosure

Information Disclosure Policy
Disclosure of information to the third party shall be appropriate, timely and sufficient for decision-making. Users shall have
equal access to the information, and the information shall always be updated through the determined channels to protect main
information and information which affects the Company’s securities price.
Communication Policy
It has been determined that some information can be communicated under the information disclosure policy in correct,
clear, timely, and fair manner to all parties. Inappropriate words or patterns shall not be used as it may cause misunderstanding
about the Company’s securities. Accurate information shall be communicated all over the organization to ensure compliance with
the policy.
Guidelines for Information Disclosure
The Company has the policy on correct information disclosure which shall also be sufficient for investors’ decision-making
through the Company’s website for users to have equal access to the information, and the information shall always be updated
through the determined channels.
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Persons who are authorized to disclose the Information
The Company has assigned the following executives to have the power to and be in charge of disclosing information to
the public, press release, information dissemination, answering questions of shareholders, investors and securities analysts:
• President
• Chief Executive Officer
• Chief Operating Officer
• Chief Financial Officer
Exemptions of Disclosure
The information which shall not be disclosed includes trade secret or the information which, upon disclosure, may cause
the loss of benefit and competitiveness, or inconclusive information or information under negotiation which is subject to change
and affects the Company’s securities price prior to disclosure of the financial statements to the Stock Exchange of Thailand,
and the information slandering trade competitors.
Communication Channels
The Company shall be disclosed through the following channels:
• Website of the Stock Exchange of Thailand
• Other key information shall be disclosed on website: http://investor.grandprix.co.th.
• Other communication channels e.g. shareholders’ meeting, analyst meeting, investor conference, roadshow, company
		 visit, and other investor relation activities as deemed appropriate
		 - In the year 2020, the Company held an activity called Opportunity Day: Listed companies meet investors which
			were presented through the VDO Conference only on 16 December 2020.
• Press release and press conference
• Investor relation contact at 0-2522-1731 to 8 Ext. 309 or E-mail: ir@grandprix.co.th

7.3 Report on Social and Environmental Responsibility

The Company conducts its business based on the business code of conduct with responsibility and respect for the right
of all stakeholders as well as social, community and environmental responsibility. Therefore, the policy on social and
environmental responsibility has been determined to ensure the same business direction under the corporate culture as follows:
(1) Ethically conduct the business with social and environmental responsibility;
(2) Comply with the law, human right, and equality without discrimination on race, nationality, religion, and culture by
		 implementing fair management and promoting sustainable development;
(3) Encourage employees to have public mind and continuously raise awareness of social and environmental responsibility
		 for the public benefit without expectations of any return;
(4) Promote activities which give sustainable benefit to the society, community and environment both inside and outside
		 the organization.

7.4 Implementation of Technology in Information Dissemination

The Board of Directors encourages the use of information technology in information dissemination in addition to
dissemination as required by the regulations and through SET channel. The Board of Directors has determined that the
information shall be disseminated in both Thai and English language on the Company’s website to ensure the most up-to-date
information.
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Principle 8
Support Participation and Communication with Shareholders

The Company realizes the importance of shareholders and respects the rights and equality of all shareholders as prescribed
in the Company’s articles of association and other applicable law.

8.1 Shareholders’ Meeting, including

• Ordinary shareholders’ meeting: held within 4 months from the end date of the Company’s accounting period
• Extraordinary shareholders’ meeting: held for consideration of urgent matters such as the matters required by the law
		 to be approved by shareholders; meeting prior to action.
Shareholders’ Meeting Invitation
The Company shall send shareholders’ meeting invitation along with related documents and disseminate them on the
Company’s website at least 30 days prior to the meeting date both Thai and English version for shareholders to have sufficient
time to study the information. The invitation shall indicate (1) date, time and venue of shareholders’ meeting, (2) agendas, (3)
objectives, rationales and opinions of the Board of Directors on each proposed agenda, (4) power of attorney, and (5) supporting
documents e.g. procedure of voting, counting and notification of voting results.
Arrangement of Shareholders’ Meeting
The Company encourages all shareholders to exercise their basic rights as prescribed by the law. Shareholders’ meeting
procedures are as follows:
Pre-shareholders’ Meeting Procedures
The Company shall present key information and news on the Company’s website e.g. quarterly and annual financial
statements, annual registration statements (Form 56-1), annual report (Form 56-2), and shareholders’ meeting invitation at least
30 days prior to the meeting date and allow shareholders to propose agendas on the matters they consider as important and
nominate the qualified persons to be appointed as new directors at least 3 months prior to the date of shareholders’ meeting
through the Company’s website.
In-shareholders’ Meeting Procedures
The Company has implemented technology in shareholders’ meeting for shareholder registration, vote counting and display
of the voting results to facilitate the meeting and ensure correctness and accuracy of the process. The President shall chair the
shareholders’ meeting, ensure that the meeting is in accordance with the law and the Company’s rules and regulations, manage
appropriate time for each agenda and give shareholders opportunities to express their opinions and ask questions about the
Company to the meeting, promote independency, count or check votes, and record it in the minutes of meeting.
Post-shareholders’ Meeting Procedures
The Company shall clearly disclose the resolution of the shareholders’ meeting and voting result on each agenda by the
shareholders’ meeting date or the next business date after the shareholders’ meeting date through the Stock Exchange of
Thailand and make the correct and complete minutes of shareholders’ meeting and submit it to the Stock Exchange of Thailand
within 14 days from the date of shareholders’ meeting both in Thai and English language, as well as making the AGM Checklist
made by Thai Investors Association.

8.2 Communication with Shareholders

The Company has arranged the website to communicate key information and news between the Company and other
parties e.g. shareholders, institutional investors, general investors, and allow them to have access to and ask questions equally.
Information is classified to facilitate communication to all parties without making any group lose their investment opportunity.
Information shall be correct and true.
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8.3 Dividend Payment

The Board of Directors has determined the policy on dividend payment at not less than 50 percent of the net profit declared
in the consolidated financial statements after deduction of income tax and all kinds of reserves as determined by the Company
subject to the Company’s articles of association and applicable law.

Assessment of Good Corporate Governance

In 2020, the Company has improved the corporate governance code to conform to the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC)’s amendment of good corporate governance in 2017 with the aim of being used as the guidelines for the
Board of Directors to determine adjustment of the business according to the change in business situation and enhance
competitiveness. In 2020, the pending matters are as follows:
Pending Matters

Reasons

The Company should have an employee compensation policy
that is consistent with the Company’s operation results in
both short and long term.

The Company uses KPI to measure employee performance.
Performance is not measured according to the Balance
Scorecard.

The Company should hold a press conference to present the
Company’s financial position.

In the past year, the company has not held.

The Board should disclose the CEO’s remuneration policy,
both short and long term including the CEO’s performance
results.

The Company has not disclosed yet.
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Corporate Social Responsibility
The Company realizes the importance of sustainable business under the principles of corporate social responsivity policy.
We emphasize the business operation by taking account of all stakeholders, economy, society, and environment on the basis of
morals and good conducts. For this reason, the following corporate social responsibility policy has been determined

1. Fair Business Operation

The Company operates the business with transparency and accountability. We do not have the policy to acquire any interest
by employing illegal methods such as falsification of business information to win over the competitors whose business is similar
to the Company’s or seeking trade secret of the competitors by illegal or inappropriate means. In addition, we promote and
raise awareness of our personnel at all levels to be responsible for the society and be careful with any action that may cause
an infringement of intellectual property. We believe that that fair business operation will give us the following benefits:
1.1 We can create positive image among customers as well as building their trust in the quality of our products and services;
1.2 We will be financially reliable;
1.3 Our employees will feel honored and proud of being part of the business.
Non-infringement of intellectual property or copyright
The company placed importance on non-infringement of intellectual property or copyright by encouraging executives and
employees to use the company's resources and assets effectively to increase their working ability, using copyrighted products
and services, do not support products or actions that violate intellectual property due to the company realizes the importance
of information security either in the matter of attack from computer viruses or from third party. Including important data loss,
therefore, the company has established a usage policy for the company's information technology system without the installation
of illegal programs or software, assign rights and monitor employees' use of software to prevent infringement of copyright or
unrelated software use.

2. Anti-Corruption

The Company strives to adhere to the principles of anti-corruption by implementation of the policy and regulations on
anti-corruption which have been determined and enforced on directors, executives and all employees. The objectives of the policy
and regulations are that the Company will operate the business with integrity, efficiency and effectiveness to prevent, avoid or
reduce the possibility and opportunity to commit any kinds of corruption. Also, we have determined the rules on dealing with
suppliers or business-related parties as well as arranging whistleblowing channel. We have provided the guidelines for disclosure
of the Company’s anti-corruption, communication and trainings regarding the guidelines for anti-corruption to all employees through
various channels so as to raise their awareness of anti-corruption and determined anti-corruption measures.
Guidelines for Performance under the Anti-Corruption Policy
1. The Company’s anti-corruption measures shall be the obligations of directors, executives and employees at all
levels. They shall adhere to and comply with the determined measures and shall not ignore the guidelines prescribed Corporate
Governance Code In the event of any violation or non-compliance of the above rules which causes damage to the Company,
the person committing such violation or non-compliance shall be punished in accordance with the Company work rules.
2. The Company shall provide justice and protect employees who report corruption cases in relation to the Company by
implementing whistleblower or corruption reporter protection measures as indicated in the rules and regulations on whistleblowing
or complaint filing of stakeholders.
3. The Company’s directors, executives and employees at all levels who commit corruption shall be considered as violating
the business code of conduct and are subject to disciplinary punishment as determined by the Company with the possibility to
be legally punished if the actions are illegal.
4. The Company realizes the importance of sharing knowledge and understanding of compliance with this anti-corruption
policy with other parties who have to work in connection with the Company or cause impacts on the Company.
5. The Company shall communicate anti-corruption policy through director orientation program, employee orientation program
and seminars held within the Company on appropriate occasions to encourage employees to work with integrity, be responsible
for their duties and to ensure that the business is operated under corporate code of conduct.
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6. The Company determines that directors, executives and employees at all levels shall report any actions which is against
or may be against the principles given in the anti-corruption manual.
7. The Company shall establish whistleblowing channels for the third party and stakeholders of the Company.

3. Respecting Human Rights

The company has policies to support and respect human rights, place on priority to basic human rights, promote and
respect rights and freedoms through non-discrimination, promote equality without classifying by gender and class, not allow child
labor or illegal labor, all executives and employees must not take any action or promote a strict human rights violation. On the
other hand, the company has to promote human rights knowledge and instill awareness for its employees to adhere and follow
in order to use as a guideline for practice as follows:
3.1 Personal rights and freedoms
		 - The company will keep the employees' personal information confidential, not forward or delegate personal information
			 to unrelated parties.
		 - Disclosure or transfer personal information would be done when receiving consent from employees.
		 - All employees can exercise their rights and freedoms without violating others.
3.2 Treating employees with equality.
		 - The company should treat all employees equitably without discriminating on the basis of race, nationality, language,
			 religion, gender, age and education.
		 - Employees must treat each other with respect, honor each other, and behave appropriately in accordance with the
			 company's regulations and traditions without damaging the company's image.
		 - The company allows employees the opportunity to show their talents to the fullest by determining suitable
			 compensation based on the company's regulations and offers opportunities for employees to gain knowledge from
			 extra training both inside and outside the company.
		 - Considering performance must be done correctly and fairly.
		 - Employees should avoid expressing any opinions related to differences of physical and mental, race, nationality,
			 language, religion, gender, age, education, or any other matter that may lead to conflict in which they must honor
			 and respect each other's opinions.
		 - The company shall monitor work environment without persecution or unfair actions.

4. Fair Labor Practices

The company realized the importance of human resource development and fair labor practices which will help increase the
value of business and to strengthen the competitiveness and sustainable growth of the company, therefore, the company has
established policies and practices as follows:
4.1 Respecting the human rights of employees based on human rights and abide by labor laws.
		Labor Disputes
		 In the previous year until 31 December 2019, the Company had no labor disputes in which the Company was the
party or litigant which may significantly affect the Company’s business operation.
4.2 Providing employment processes, employment terms, and considering performance under a fair performance evaluation
		 process. Including fair compensation determination, year-end bonus consideration, allowance payment and overtime
		 pay for all employees fairly.
4.3 Providing welfare in various aspects for employees as required by law such as social security and other benefits
		 besides the law requires.
		Employee Benefits
		1) Provident Fund
			 The Company established the provident fund abiding by the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530 (including the
			 amendment). As of March 1, 2011, every employee has a right to register to be a member of the provident fund
			 following the conditions that assets of the fund consist of money contributed by employees at 5% of salary of

ANNUAL REPORT

2020 71

			 each employee and money contributed by employer. In case of membership termination, employee has right to
			 receive benefit payouts calculated by employment period as the following details;
Employment Period of

Contribution Rate and Contribution Benefit Paid
to Employee of Terminated Membership

Less than 1 year

0%

More than 1 year but less than 2 years

25%

More than 2 but less than 3 years

50%

More than 3 year but less than 4 years

75%

More than 4 years

100%

			2) Life insurance, accident disability insurance and group health insurance
				 The Company offers benefits for employees in the forms of life insurance, accident disability insurance and
			 group health insurance since the company realizes employees are significantly important human resources which
			 help enhance the Company’s stability and development. Details of these benefits are as follows;
				 2.1) Group life insurance death benefits
			 		 Except A. If the insured commits suicide.
							 B. If a beneficiary intentionally kills the insured for the death benefit.
				 2.2) Group accident insurance covering death/loss of body parts or physical ability as a result of an accident
					 at work and not at work
				 2.3) Group health insurance covering medical fee for sickness or injury from accident
			3) Emergency loans for employees
				 The Company provides loans to employees who have immediate need as the result of an emergency and have
			 no other source of money available. Employees can borrow money from the Company of not exceeding 3 times
			 of their salary and repay the loan within a 2-year period with interest free with regard to the Company conditions.
			4) Funeral grant
				 The Company provides funeral grant that helps with some funeral costs of employee and their family member
			 who has died to encourage one who grieves the loss. Moreover, the company permits employees to take days
			 off but still get paid for their family member’s funeral grant.
			5) Hospital visit
				 Considering employee’s living is important, the Company provides hospital visit to employee who has been
			 admitted to hospital for days at a time to encourage them.
			6) Marriage grant and new born baby blessing
				 Considering employee’s living is important, the Company provides marriage grant that helps with some marriage
			 costs of employee and new born baby blessing for the baby who has been born in order to encourage employee.
			7) Scholarships for employees’ children
				 The Company offers scholarships for employees’ children every year to support employees’ education costs of
			 their children. The scholarships are divided into 2 types; scholarship for students who have outstanding academic
			 performance and scholarship to support children’s education from kindergarten to college.
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4.4 Providing an annual medical examination to all levels of the company's personnel by considering the risk factors based
		 on age, gender, and work environment of the individual.
		• Annual Medical Examination
			 The company placed on good health of its employees, therefore, provided medical examination and Pap test for
		 female employees annually.

• Annual Influenza Vaccination

4.5 Promote human resources development by organizing in-house training and send personnel to attend external seminars/
		 training on a regular basis to develop work ability.
Human Resources Development Policy
		 The company realized the importance of human resources which being an important part that make the company can
achieve its goals and plans as defined, therefore, the company issued policies to promote the human resources development
and training continuously. Also, the company focused on enhancing skill for management, service and teamwork to increase
efficiency and work safety. The company provided training by people who have knowledge and capabilities from both outside
and inside the company including online training to employees regularly.
		 In the fiscal year 2020, 125 company's employees had received training and development out of 55 training courses.
(2 internal training courses and 53 external training courses) or 1,227 hours. Examples of training courses and seminars that
employees attended to develop their abilities, skills and knowledge that are beneficial to the performance of duties and business
are as follows:
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			Human Resources Development on Administration and HR
			 1. Courses of the Future of Business Transformation in Disruptive World in Action 2020.
			 2. Courses of Personal Data Protection Act B.E. 2562 (2019) and new laws that business establishments must know
				 and act correctly.
			 3. Courses of strategy, contract, negotiation of Mergers & Acquisitions.
			 4. Courses of Risk Management (Basic) - COSO REM 2017, class 2/63.
			 5. Courses of M&A in ACTION, FINANCIAL, PRICING STRATEGIES.
			 6. Courses of Flexible Benefits.
			 7. Courses of Annual Recruitment Plan.
			Human Resources Development on Accounting and Finance
			 1. Business combinations and preparation of advanced consolidated financial statements on workshop.
			 2. Analyze the present to know the future through financial statements.
			 3. “CFO Refresher Course” Prepare for economic circumstances, strategies for using financial instruments for funding
			 and growing.
			Human Resources Development on Production and Media
			 1. Printing quality control by using an advanced spectrophotometer.
			 2. Knowledge management infographic online learning
			 3. Doing SEO WordPress and SEO to be right based on basic principles.
			 4. Skills necessary for production e.g. Multimedia Designer, Infographic, Illustrator, Photoshop, Videoleap, Lightroom
				 and Lightroom mobile.
			Human Resources Development on Marketing & Digital
			 1. Activity based costing (ABC), Cost reduction techniques and Intro to Startup
			 2. Sensing Opportunity from Big Data and Data Visualization
			 3. Service Marketing and Heartful Marketing
			 4. Risk Management
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4.6 Implement for employees to perform their work safely and have good workplace hygiene by providing measures
		 to prevent accidents and strengthen employees to have safety awareness including training and promoting employees
		 to have good hygiene and always maintain a healthy and safe workplace.
		 The company committed to care and protect on the safety, occupational health and working environment of
		 personnel, properties, and work process, issuing policies to support various activities to promote safety, occupational
		 health and maintain a working environment that is always safe for life and property of employees, community and
		society.
			 The agency of safety, occupational health and work environment together with the committee of safety,
		 occupational health and work environment and the agency of safety, occupational health and work environment
		 developed a safety management system to control, prevent and resolve dangers from the company's operations along with
		 organizing activities to promote knowledge and understanding about safety for all employees, resulting in zero accident
		 in an organization for the past year. The company has statistics on accidents until 28 December 2020, with the
		 accumulated number of days without accidents until suspension of work was 2,148 days.
			 In the past year, the company has taken actions on safety, occupational health and environment as follows:
		 1. Training to educate/Meeting on safety.
			 - Meeting to clarify campaign activities to build a good attitude and strengthen the labor network for drug
				 prevention 2020.
			 - Training on use and maintenance forklifts for safety by Bangkok Komatsu Forklift Co., Ltd.
		 2. Emergency plan training
			 The committee of safety, occupational health and work environment and the agency of safety, occupational health
		 and work environment jointly held emergency response training such as fire protection and fighting drill training.

		 3.
			
		 4.
			
			

Awards
- Zero Accident Campaign 2020 by Ministry of Labor
Safety inspection for operating equipment and working environment is as follows:
- Electrical inspection.
- Environmental inspection (light, sound, heat stress, air, and wastewater).
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			 - Forklift inspection.
			 - Emergency light inspection.
			 - Fire extinguisher inspection.
4.7 Allows employees to show their opinions or complaints about unfair practices or improper conduct in the company
		 included providing protection to employees who report such matters.
		Whistleblowing or Complaint Channels
		 The complainant can report complaints, whistleblowers or asking questions through various channels as appropriate in
which the complainant must specify details of a matter to be reported or complained with giving name, address and telephone
number that can be contacted in box "Form of Corruption and Misconduct of Grand Prix International Public Company Limited"
and sent to channels as follows:
		 (1) Complaint box installed within the Company.
		 (2) The Company’s web page under “Corporate Governance > Complaint Channel and Complaint Management
			Procedure”
		 (3) Representative assigned by the Audit Committee who is
			 Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi
			 Tel.: 08-1148-6455 or Fax: 0-2393-6190
			 E-mail: dhas_udomdham@outlook.com
		Measures to Protect Whistleblowers or Complainants
		 (1) The Company shall conceal the names, addresses or other information which can identify the complainants or
			 whistleblowers and shall keep the information of complainants or whistleblowers confidential.
		 (2) In case of complaints against directors, the Audit Committees shall protect the whistleblowers or complainants,
			 witnesses, and persons giving information for an investigation.
		 (3) President of the Audit Committee shall consider giving orders as deemed appropriate to protect the whistleblowers
			 or complainants, witnesses, and persons giving information for an investigation.
		 (4) President of the Audit Committee may assign any executive to act on his/her behalf in protecting the whistleblowers
			 or complainants, witnesses, and persons giving information for an investigation.

5. Responsibility towards Customers

The Company aims at creating, presenting and managing its products and services to customers with reliable standards
and ethics under the following principles:
5.1 Strive to procure and develop the products and services to meet customer needs;
5.2 Treat customers fairly in terms of products and services without discrimination and disclosure of customer information
		 obtained during business transactions;
5.3 Provide correct and sufficient information about the products and services to support customer decision-making without
		 exaggerate advertisements or other communication channels with customers;
5.4 Establish procedure for customers to report problems or inappropriate service provision so that the Company can
		 prevent problems and use such information to improve or develop products and services in the future.
5.5 Offering after-sales service to facilitate customers effectively.
5.6 Confidentiality of customers by not disclosing customer information or misusing personal gain.
5.7 Support activities that will strengthen and maintain a good relationship between customers and the company.

6. Environmental Conservation

The Company gives importance on environmental conservation and operates the business without effects on the
environment as follows:
6.1 Conduct business by taking account of the environment and strictly comply with environmental law and regulations
		 concerning currently in effect;
6.2 Have the clear policy on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and strictly comply with the policy;
6.3 Encourage employees to have awareness and responsibility for the environment and society;
		 The company encourages employees to gain knowledge and training in environmental matters to instill all employees
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6.4
		

to always keep in mind about environment responsibility on their operations. The company has continuously
campaigned to raise awareness of environment and natural resources through activities involving employees and support
environmental conservation for society and various organizations as well as disseminate environmental information
to create an understanding of environmental management for the company's employees.
Promptly and effectively respond to the incidents that affect the environment as a result of the Company’s
operation by providing full collaboration with the government authorities and related agencies.

7. Collaborative Community and Social Development

The Company realizes the importance of responsibility towards the community and society. Therefore, we have the policy
on social assistance and development as follows:
7.1 The Company gives an opportunity to the community and related persons to express their opinions about possible
		 effects on the community as well as opinions and complaints against the Company’s operation.
7.2 The Company collaborates in operating according to international standards or agreements executed to prevent or
		 reduce environmental effects.
7.3 The Company emphasizes prompt, effective response to any incidents which affect the community, society and
		 environment due to the Company’s business operation.
7.4 The Company encourages employees to have awareness of community and social development.
Over the past year, the company placed importance on supervision and participation in social and community development
as an organization in society, especially project that was consistent with business operations by bringing capacity and potentials
that were consistent with the nature of the organization's business to promote activities of economic, social and community as
follows:
• The company supported and given scholarship to photographer's child from Thai Photographer Association in the amount
		 of Baht 300,000.
• The company supported and helped the visually impaired by donating Baht 100,000 to Foundation for The Blind in
		Thailand.
• The company supported and helped the White Heart Project by donating Baht 200,000 for purchasing medical
		equipment.
• The company donated Baht 80,000 to the Friends in Need (of "PA") Volunteers Foundation, Thai Red Cross for
		 supporting projects and foundation under the patronage.
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Internal Controls and Risk Management
Opinions of the Board of Directors on the Adequacy and Appropriateness of
the Internal Control System.

The internal control system, good governance, and risk management are important mechanisms to succeed and achieve
objectives for the Company and group companies by the environments and business conditions are changed rapidly all the time.
The Company focuses on having a good internal control system that also effective and comprehensive in all activities. Setting
authorities and duties for performance at both management and operational level, in order to have efficient and effective work
and use of resources, protect and take care of properties, providing reports and financial statement that are reliable, complete,
accurate, and timely as well as the correct operations, compliance with laws and related regulations for the best interest of
stakeholders. In addition, it helps promote sustainable growth, transparency, morality in line with the Company’s vision and
mission.
The Company has determined an internal control system that consistent with the framework and guidelines of internal
control of the Committee of Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway Commission (COSO) with the following components and
operations:

1. Control Environment

We support an efficient and effective internal control environment. The management structure is established, with broad
oversight, structures, reporting lines and appropriate authorities and responsibilities in the pursuit of objectives. Each executive
is independent to approve and improve policy to be in line with the internal and external changes. We also emphasize human
resource provision and administration in alignment with the standards and culture.

2. Risk Management

We are ready to encounter with any changes that affect the Company’s businesses and enable assessment of related
risks and analyze risks to determine how the risks should be managed. We also identify and assess changes that could impact
the system of internal control;

3. Control Activities
•
•
•
		

We develop control activities that help mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives in an acceptable level;
We select and develop general control activities over technology to support the achievement of the objectives;
We deploy control activities through policies that establish what is expected and procedures that put policies
into action.

4. Information & Communication
•
•
		
•

We obtain and use relevant and quality information to support the functioning of internal control;
We internally communicate information, including objectives and responsibilities for internal control, necessary to
support the functioning of internal control;
We communicate with external parties regarding matters affecting the functioning of internal control.

5. Monitoring Activities

We perform monitoring activities in the executive and operating levels, by chiefs and executives of each line to ascertain
whether the components of internal control are present and functioning. The results of monitoring activities are reported to the
Board of Directors, the Audit Committee, the Chief Executive Officer and the executive directors regularly.
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From evaluating the Company’s internal control system in 5 aspects mentioned above, the Board of Directors along with
3 directors from the Audit Committee agree that the Company has a suitable and sufficient internal control system. The Board
of Directors is aware that any internal control system, may not be possible to assure all the damage caused by a material fault,
but it can prevent or acceptable at a reasonable level.

Opinions of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors in Case it is
Different.
- Not different
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Report of the Board of Directors’ Responsibilities
for Financial Statements
Dear shareholders,
The Board of Directors is responsible for financial statements of Grand Prix International Public Company Limited and its
subsidiaries including financial information that appears in the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2020, have been
prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting standards in Thailand. By selecting the appropriate accounting
policy and adhering regularly. Using careful discretion and reasonable forecasting for preparation as well as important information
is adequately disclosed in notes to financial statements to be able to reflect the financial status, performance and cash flow that
is accuracy, transparent, beneficial to shareholders and general investors and has been audited by CPA from DIA International
Audit Company Limited, which has provided unqualified opinion.
The Board of Directors supports the Company to contain good governance, the Board’s structure is developed to promote
good governance continuously to operate the company efficiently, transparently, and reliably. Established an internal control system
and a risk management system to provide accurate and complete financial information. The Audit Committee is appointed by the
Board of Directors, consists of 3 independent directors who are responsible for reviewing financial statements and supervising to
have adequate internal control and internal audit system. By the Audit Committee provided an opinion on this matter as
appearing in Report of the Audit Committee which is shown in the annual report.
The Board of Directors is given opinions that good governance, risk management system, and the Company’s internal
control system are adequate and appropriate, able to build confidence the Company and subsidiaries’ financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020 and in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards.

Mr. Yuth Vorachattarn
Chairman of the Board Director

Mr. Prachin Eamlumnow
Chief Executive Officer
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Related Party Transactions
1. Transactions Which the Company Accepted and Provident Service
Person/juristic person with
joint benefits
1. Blue Diamond Golf and 		
Water Sport Club Co., Ltd.

2. Yachiyoda Allow
Wheel Co., Ltd.

3. GPI Myanmar Co., Ltd.

Reletionship
- Common director/
shareholder
- Common director/
shareholder
- Subsidiary and
Common director/
shareholder

- Associate and
Common director/
4. Automatrix Solution Co., Ltd.
shareholder
5. True Energy Co., Ltd.

- Associate and
Common director/
shareholder

Type of mutual
transaction

Value of mutual
transaction (Baht)
Year 2020

Opinion on
connected
transaction

- Service Charge
- Other Incomes
- Service Cost
- Cost of Sales

654,281.50
517,802.99
2,710,846.34
130,000.00

Market Price

- Service Charge
- Other Incomes
- Service Cost
- Cost of Sales

-

Market Price

- Service Charge
- Other Incomes
- Service Cost
- Cost of Sales
- Service Charge
- Other Incomes
- Service Cost
- Cost of Sales
- Service Charge
- Other Incomes
- Service Cost
- Cost of Sales

150,000.00
280,000.00
-

Market Price

Market Price

Market Price

Accounts Receivable at December 2020
Person/juristic person
with joint benefits
- Trade Accounts Receivable
- Other Receivable

Blue Diamond Golf and
Water Sport Club Co., Ltd.

(Unit : Baht)
True Energy Co., Ltd

656,687.89

-

3,026,120.00

280,000.00
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2. Necessity and Reasonableness of Mutual Transactions

Such mutual transactions between the Company and corporate or person may be occurred significant conflict, which
are revenue from providing exhibit space, printing service, consulting and management fee. Those mutual transactions are
considered by audit committee according to the above table and commented those related party transactions are fair market
price, reasonable condition of transactions and appropriateness for the maximum benefits of the Company.

3. Measures or Procedure for the Approval of Mutual Transactions

Measures or procedure for the approval of mutual transactions of the Company has been regulated for mutual transactions
of persons who may has conflict of interests and transparency to keep the benefit of the Company. The Company has
conformed to the law regarding securities and securities exchange, and the regulations, announcements, orders or rules of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand that involved with mutual transactions also director committees, management committees or stakeholders
can’t attend the approving mutual transactions meeting. In case, the regulation defined that it has to approve from the Company
board’s meeting. The Company would set audit committee to consider and comment about the necessary and appropriate those
transactions. General trade term condition transaction and uncommon trade term condition transaction have principles as follows;
General trade term condition transaction
As general trade condition mutual transaction has been considered and commented by audit committee before
presenting to board committee for approving in principles then management committee approved those transactions.
If the transaction has similarly trade term with person of ordinary prudence in general party agreement with bargaining power
without position of management committee or related person.
Furthermore, the Company provided summary of transactions for presenting to audit and board committee’s meeting
quarterly.
Uncommon trade term condition transaction
uncommon trade condition transaction generally has been considered and commented by audit committee before
presenting to board committee and/or shareholders’ meeting for approving as follow to the law regarding securities and securities
exchange, and the regulations, announcements, orders or rules of the Stock Exchange of Thailand that involved with mutual
transactions.
If the Company sell advertisement or transactions with corporate/person that may occurred conflict of interests.
The Company would define reasonably revenue contribution and provide summary of these transactions to audit and board
committee quarterly.
However, if audit committee are not professional in considering of mutual transactions that may be occurred, The
Company will arrange a professional person who is independent advisor such as financial advisor, Independent expert and
asset appraiser. The comment from audit committee or professional person is used for assembling to make decision of board
committee or shareholders therefore to assure the transaction is not a benefit transferring to the Company or shareholders but
the transactions are appropriateness for the maximum benefits of every shareholders. The Company disclosed mutual transactions
in annual report and notes to financial statement, which are reviewed or audited from the Company’s auditor.

4. Tendency or Policy for Mutual Transactions in the Future

In the future, the Company will proceed the mutual transactions between the Company and corporate or person may be
occurred significant conflict due to these mutual transactions are necessary and caused the benefits to the Company. Tendency
of the mutual transactions in the future are as follows;
1) Normal business transactions such as providing exhibit space and advertising services these are normal business
		 practices in general. Moreover, price and trade conditions depend on market trade conditions. The Company expects
		 that those transactions will occur continuously.
2) Support normal business transactions such as utility services and purchasing advertisements these are normal support
		 business in general. Moreover, price and trade conditions depend on market trade conditions. The Company expects
		 that those transactions will occur continuously.
3) Assets or services transactions such as buying or selling assets, the Company expects that those transactions will be
		 occurred if necessary.
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4) The Company would not provide financing for any major shareholders, committees or related company. The Company
		 would provide financing to subsidiaries or associated company depend on shares proportion (if any) then the Company
		 considers the interest rate in the period and analyses the reasonable interest rate according to the risk of loaners.
After the Company’s first initial public offering, the Company has practiced strictly to the law regarding securities and
securities exchange, and the regulations, announcements, orders or rules of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and measures or
procedure that involved with mutual transactions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis For the
Year Ended December 31, 2020
Business Overview

Grand Prix International Public Company Limited (the “Company” or “GPI”) involves in exhibition and marketing event
business and publishing and digital media related in automotive industry and printing business. The Company’s revenue is
mainly from the exhibition and event organizer and public relation activity such as Bangkok International Motor Show, Bangkok
Used Car Show, Yangon International Motor Show and Digital Motor Sport.

Economic Overview

Bank of Thailand reported that in Quarter 4/2020 most of the business sector continued to contract but gradually improved
from the previous quarter. However, revenue from commercial sector slightly contracted due to the declining of purchasing
power. Despite receiving the stimulate spending campaign from the government. Revenue from the manufacturing sector still
continued to contract as a result of a slowdown from foreign orders, which was still affected by COVID-19. Real estate and
construction income continued to contract significantly due to the strong contraction in economic conditions and consumer
purchasing power, together with strictly loan permission from financial institutions. And in terms of revenue from the service
sector, which continued to contract the deepest despite the government’s measures to stimulate domestic tourism. But tourism
is still concentrated in only some area and the infection has increased significantly in some provinces such as Samutsakorn and
Rayong which giving some shrinkage travel in some areas.
For the vehicles market in Thailand cumulative vehicles sales for the year 2020 is 790,146 units, a 21% dropped compared
to 1,007,556 units of year 2019.

Performance Summary

Performance summary for the year ended 2020 and 2019 as follow:
Income Statement (Million Baht)

Revenue from Sales& Service
Gross Profit
Gross Profit margin (%)
SG&A
Comprehensive income(loss) for the period
Net Profit margin (%)

2020

2019

% change YoY

509.41
209.66
41.57
168.79
36.95
7.62

719.33
288.65
40.13
172.31
107.89
15.00

(29.18)
(27.37)
3.59
(2.04)
(65.75)
(49.20)

Revenue from Sales & Service
In the year consolidated financial statement ended on December 31,2020, the company has revenue from sales and
service of THB 509.41 million, which decreased by 29.18% YoY. As a result of the automotive customers affected by the
COVID19 epidemic situation, the customers joined fewer booths in the exhibition compared to 2019.

84

GRAND PRIX INTERNATIONAL PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Gross Profit (Loss)
The year consolidated financial statement ended on December 31, 2020, the Company has gross profit of THB 209.66
million, which decreased by 27.37%YoY. The main reasons is the affected customers in event & exhibition business unit from
COVID19.
Selling and Administration Expense (SG&A)
THB 168.79 million decreased by 2.04%. With the result of company measures expense tightening due to the decreased of
revenue from service
Comprehensive income (loss) for the period
The Company has Comprehensive income (loss) for the year consolidated financial statement ended on December 31,
2020 of THB 36.95 million, which net profit margin was 7.62% to total revenue.
The Company has its revenue into each of business units as follows:
Business
1. Exhibition and Event Organizing
2. Print and Digital media
3. Printing
Revenue from Sales and Service

Million Baht
2020

2019

437.84
42.99
28.59
509.42

617.53
49.92
51.88
719.33

% Change YoY
(29.10)
(13.88)
(44.89)
(29.18)

Exhibitions and Event Organizing Business
In the year consolidated financial statement ended on December 31,2020, revenue from sales and services of Exhibition
and Event Organizing business decreased by 29.10% YoY due to the reducing of customers (Car operator) and car accessories
in Bangkok International Motor Show 41th and also the negative impact on car operator in the beginning of the year 2020 as a
result of COVID-19
Print and Digital media Business
In the year consolidated financial statement ended on December 31, 2020, revenue from sales and service of Printing and
digital media decreased by 13.88%. As the result of the reducing in purchasing demand of vehicle goods and related products.
Printing Business
In the year consolidated financial statement ended on December 31, 2020, revenue from sale and services of printing
decreased 44.89% due to the economic condition as a result of COVID19.

Financial Structure
Financial Structure (Million Bath)
Total Asset
Total Liabilities
Total Shareholder’s Equity

2020

2019

% Change YoY

814.07
65.80
748.27

976.81
199.50
777.31

(16.66)
(67.02)
(3.74)
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Asset
The Asset in the year consolidated financial statement ended on December 31, 2020 was THB 814.07 million, which
decreased by 16.66% compare to the previous year the main reason is the cash and cash equivalent and also temporary
investment being used for dividend payout and investment in associate.
Liabilities
Liabilities in the year consolidated nfi ancial statement ended on December 31, 2020 was THB 65.80 million, which decreased
by 67.02% compared to year 2019. This was mainly due to the second wave of COVID outbreak at the end of the year 2020,
causing car operators to become uncertain about schedule of the Bangkok International Motor Show 42th. As a result, operators
still do not have advance payments and ask to wait and see the situation and government measures again during January and
February 2021.
Shareholder’s Equity
Shareholder’s equity in the year consolidated financial statement ended on December 31, 2020 was THB 748.27 million,
which decreased by 3.74% due to the decreased of inappropriate retain earning compared to previous year
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Shareholders’ of Grand Prix International Public
Company Limited
Opinion

I have audited the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements of Grand Prix International Public
Company Limited and subsidiaries (the Group) and of Grand Prix International Public Company Limited which comprise the
consolidated and separate statements of financial position as at December 31, 2020, and the consolidated and separate statements
of comprehensive income, consolidated and separate statements of changes in shareholders’ equity and consolidated and separate
statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.
In my opinion, the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Grand Prix International Public Company Limited and subsidiaries and of Grand Prix International Public
Company Limited as at December 31, 2020, and their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements section of my
report. I am independent of the Group in accordance with the Federation of Accounting Professions’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the consolidated and separate
financial statements, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. I believe that the
audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most significance in my audit of the
consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of my audit
of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and I do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matters and Significant

Revenue from services recognition. Auditing procedures are as follows. (Consolidated financial statements)
Since the Company has revenues from variousเ main business operations such as revenues from sales and services as
stated in note to financial statements no.5.1which may cause errors in revenue recognition. Revenue from services are main
revenues recognized in different methods which may have risks in obtaining incorrect information for revenue recognition.
I, therefore, have considered such matter as key audit matter

Risk Response

I have audited revenue from services recognition of the Company by
• To assess and test information technology system and internal control relating to revenues cycle by inquiring person
		 in charge, understanding and sampling test whether the operation is compliance with internal control system.
• To audit by sampling contract and supporting document during the period and period before the end of reporting
		 period in order to the audit the existence and accuracy whether recording is in conformity with revenues recognition
		policy.
• To review credit note issued by the Company after reporting period.
• To make analytical review in each revenues account for auditing unusual transaction throughout the period especially
		 posting by journal voucher.
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• To audit supporting document relating to credit note approved by authorized officer by sampling and test the accuracy
		 of calculation.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises information in the annual report but
does not include the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon, which I obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, and the annual report, which is expected to be made available to me after that date.
My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not and will not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work I have performed on the other information that I obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report,
I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial statements
in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s and
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Thai Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, I exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, whether
		 due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
		 is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
		 resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
		 omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
		 appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
		 internal control.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
		 disclosures made by management.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
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audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. I am responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. I remain solely responsible for my audit opinion.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.
I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, I determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
D I A International Audit Co., Ltd.

(Ms. Suphaphorn Mangjit)
C.P.A. (Thailand)
Registration No. 8125
February 19, 2021
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Financial Statement
Grand Prix International Public Company Limited and Subsidiaries
Statements of financial position
As at December 31, 2020

								
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Current investment
Trade and other current receivables
Short-term loan to associates
Inventories
Other current financial assets
Total current assets
Non-Current Assets
Restricted bank deposit
Other long-term investment
Other non-current financial assets
Investment in a subsidiary
Investments in associates
Long-term loan to related persons
Investment property
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Total assets

Notes
7
8
6.3.2
9
10

11
12
13
6.3.3
14
15
16.1
17
18.1

Consolidated financial statements
2020
2019

(Unit:Baht)
Separate financial statements
2020
2019

50,856,377.66
45,077,383.42
20,000,000.00
7,493,003.25
200,049,621.70
323,476,386.03

147,582,925.18
357,201,913.58
43,162,643.45
7,809,497.02
555,756,979.23

49,652,633.08
46,534,104.71
20,000,000.00
7,493,003.25
200,049,621.70
323,729,362.74

146,737,504.96
357,201,913.58
45,528,891.20
7,809,497.02
557,277,806.76

323,300.00
593,265.97
247,278,613.22
271,449.00
32,239,860.10
180,096,379.60
15,370,257.69
10,144,933.28
3,287,776.86
988,587.24
490,594,422.96
814,070,808.99

323,300.00
187,292,014.11
-

323,300.00
593,265.97
251,959,900.00
271,449.00
32,239,860.10
180,093,509.64
15,370,257.69
10,144,933.28
3,287,776.86
988,587.24
495,272,839.78
819,002,202.52

323,300.00
187,292,014.11
1,602,500.00
508,308.00
32,239,860.10
184,480,956.63
8,877,779.41
4,366,431.00
2,962,590.19
422,653,739.44
979,931,546.20

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this financial statement.

508,308.00
32,239,860.10
184,484,774.16
8,877,779.41
4,366,431.00
2,962,590.19
421,055,056.97
976,812,036.20
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Grand Prix International Public Company Limited and Subsidiaries
Statements of financial position (Cont.)
As at December 31, 2020
								
(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Notes
2020
2019
2020
2019
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Trade and other current payables
Unearned revenues
Current portion of financial lease liabilities
Accrued income tax
Total current liabilities
Non current liabilities
Lease liabilities
Non-current provisions for employee benefits
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Shareholders’equity
Share capital
Authorized share capital
600,000,000 common shares of Baht 0.50 each,
Issued and paid-up share capital
600,000,000 common shares of Baht 0.50 each,
Premium on share-based payment
Share premium
Retained earnings (Deficits)
Appropriated
Legal reserve
Unappropriated
Other components of equity
Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

19
20
16.2

31,930,988.87
1,217,720.49
5,264,513.84
716,006.86
39,129,230.06

31,014,565.41
141,223,453.41
2,282,300.36
174,520,319.18

25,914,393.10
1,217,720.49
5,264,513.84
716,006.86
33,112,634.29

29,854,021.21
138,470,911.59
2,282,300.36
170,607,233.16

16.2
21.1

5,433,466.71
21,239,586.56
26,673,053.27
65,802,283.33

24,977,321.46
24,977,321.46
199,497,640.64

5,433,466.71
21,239,586.56
26,673,053.27
59,785,687.56

24,977,321.46
24,977,321.46
195,584,554.62

300,000,000.00

300,000,000.00 300,000,000.00

300,000,000.00

300,000,000.00
110,561,100.00
285,434,649.17

300,000,000.00 300,000,000.00
110,561,100.00 110,561,100.00
285,434,649.17 285,434,649.17

300,000,000.00
110,561,100.00
285,434,649.17

30,000,000.00
22,129,984.00
142,792.49
748,268,525.66
814,070,808.99

30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00
51,297,178.66 33,220,765.79
21,467.73
777,314,395.56 759,216,514.96
976,812,036.20 819,002,202.52

30,000,000.00
58,351,242.41
784,346,991.58
979,931,546.20
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Grand Prix International Public Company Limited and Subsidiaries
Statements of comprehensive income
For the year ended December 31, 2020
							
(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Notes
2020
2019
2020
2019
Revenues from sales and services
Cost of sales and services
Gross Profit
Other income
Distribution cost
Administrative expenses
Profit from operating activities
Finance income
Finance costs
Share of loss of associates accounted for using equity method
Profit before income tax expense
18.3
Income tax expense
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Components of other comprehensive income that
will be reclassified to profit or loss : Exchange difference on translation financial statement
Other comprehensive income (loss)-net of income tax
Components of other comprehensive income that
will not be reclassified to profit or loss : 18.4
Gains on remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Other comprehensive income (loss)-net of income tax
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the company
Non-controlling interests
Total comprehensive income attributable to :
Owners of the company
Non-controlling interests
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Weighted average number of common shares (Unit : Shares)

509,410,898.08 719,331,900.38
(299,751,119.10) (430,680,567.28)
209,659,778.98 288,651,333.10
2,592,114.51 2,824,568.32
(51,598,788.52) (49,610,132.72)
(117,185,641.25) (122,701,053.17)
43,467,463.72 119,164,715.53
6,756,407.60 11,730,476.67
(278,831.77)
(4,681,286.78)
45,263,752.77 130,895,192.20
(11,172,123.85) (28,179,030.55)
34,091,628.92 102,716,161.65

121,324.76
121,324.76

15,447.81
15,447.81

503,199,953.65 711,303,867.86
(294,174,671.99) (419,110,107.47)
209,025,281.66 292,193,760.39
2,886,447.84 3,536,629.15
(51,140,036.80) (48,612,531.77)
(117,948,002.22) (121,965,214.82)
42,823,690.48 125,152,642.95
6,755,612.10 11,730,453.79
(278,831.77)
49,300,470.81 136,883,096.74
(11,172,123.85) (28,179,030.55)
38,128,346.96 108,704,066.19

-

-

2,741,165.42 5,153,887.20
2,741,165.42 5,153,887.20
36,954,119.10 107,885,496.66

2,741,165.42 5,153,887.20
2,741,165.42 5,153,887.20
40,869,512.38 113,857,953.39

34,091,628.92 102,716,161.65
-

38,128,346.96 108,704,066.19
-

36,954,119.10 107,885,496.66
-

40,869,512.38 113,857,953.39
-

0.06
600,000,000

The notes to the interim financial statement are an integral part of this interim financial statement.

0.17
600,000,000

0.06
600,000,000

0.18
600,000,000

23.1

23.2

121,324.76
142,792.49

15,447.81
21,467.73

6,019.92

57,427,110.81
(113,999,981.00)
102,716,161.65
5,153,887.20
300,000,000.00 285,434,649.17 110,561,100.00 30,000,000.00 51,297,178.66
(65,999,989.00)
34,091,628.92
2,741,165.42
300,000,000.00 285,434,649.17 110,561,100.00 30,000,000.00 22,129,984.00
300,000,000.00 285,434,649.17 110,561,100.00 30,000,000.00

Premium on
share-based
payment

Other components
of equity
Differences
on translating
financial statements

Share
premium

Retained Earnings
Appropriated Unappropriated

Issued and
paid-up
share capital

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this financial statement.

Balance as at January 1, 2019
Dividend
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at December 31, 2019
Dividend
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive imcome for the year
Balance as at December 31, 2020

Notes

Grand Prix International Public Company Limited and Subsidiaries
Statements of financial position (Cont.)
As at December 31, 2020
								
Consolidated financial statements

783,428,879.90
(113,999,981.00)
102,716,161.65
5,169,335.01
777,314,395.56
(65,999,989.00)
34,091,628.92
2,862,490.18
748,268,525.66

Total
shareholders
equity

(Unit:Baht)
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23.1

23.2

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this financial statement.

Balance as at January 1, 2019
Dividend
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at December 31, 2019
Dividend
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at December 31, 2020

Notes

Grand Prix International Public Company Limited and Subsidiaries
Statements of changes in shareholders’ equity
For the year ended December 31, 2020
								
(Unit:Baht)
Separate financial statements
Retained Earnings
Premium on
Issued and
Share
Total
share-based Appropriated Unappropriated
paid-up
premium
share capital
payment
784,489,019.19
300,000,000.00 285,434,649.17 110,561,100.00 30,000,000.00 58,493,270.02
(113,999,981.00)
(113,999,981.00)
108,704,066.19
108,704,066.19
5,153,887.20
5,153,887.20
784,346,991.58
300,000,000.00 285,434,649.17 110,561,100.00 30,000,000.00 58,351,242.41
(65,999,989.00)
(65,999,989.00)
38,128,346.96
38,128,346.96
2,741,165.42
2,741,165.42
759,216,514.96
300,000,000.00 285,434,649.17 110,561,100.00 30,000,000.00 33,220,765.79
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Grand Prix International Public Company Limited and Subsidiaries
Statements of cashflows
For the year ended December 31, 2020
								
(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2020
2019
2020
2019
Cash flows from operating activities
34,091,628.92

102,716,161.65

38,128,346.96

108,704,066.19

433,419.02
748,823.74

416,579.81
877,951.89

433,419.02
748,823.74

416,579.81
877,951.89

141,548.97
(1,019,131.48)
(69,717.60)

(8,034,552.39)
249,086.01
159,457.32

141,548.97
(1,019,131.48)
(69,717.60)

(8,034,552.39)
249,086.01
159,457.32

4,681,286.78
135,407.16
20,291,386.21
(38,408.74)
217,764.71
(129,611.54)
(122,889.10)
2,249,525.21
278,831.77
11,172,123.85
73,061,987.88

3,358,826.87
16,460,746.00
48,871.00
999,243.75
3,190.27
5,678.53
6,849,884.05
28,179,030.55
152,290,155.31

1,737,907.16
20,290,438.64
(38,408.74)
217,764.71
(129,611.54)
(122,889.10)
2,249,525.21
278,831.77
11,172,123.85
74,018,971.57

3,358,826.87
16,459,857.18
48,871.00
999,243.75
3,190.27
5,678.53
6,849,884.05
28,179,030.55
158,277,171.03

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Trade and other current receivables (Increase) Decrease (2,730,345.35)
386,211.37
Inventory (Increase) Decrease
697,500.80
Other non-current assets (Increase) Decrease
(5,918,785.09)
Trade and other current payables Increase (Decrease)
(135,005,732.92)
Unearned revenues Increase (Decrease)
Estimation of employee benefits expenses Increase (Decrease) (2,560,803.34)
(72,069,966.65)
Cash generated from (used in) operating activities
(12,345,054.56)
Income tax paid
(84,415,021.21)
Net cash from (used in) operating activities

46,775,335.51
2,286,732.86
(278,995.99)
(7,370,698.01)
(4,836,951.26)
(504,864.65)
188,360,713.77
(37,008,309.42)
151,352,404.35

(1,820,818.89)
386,211.37
697,500.80
(5,774,836.66)
137,253,191.10)
(2,560,803.34)
(72,306,966.25)
(12,345,054.56)
(84,652,020.81)

46,469,422.92
2,286,732.86
(278,995.99)
(8,152,037.52)
(5,347,675.61)
(504,864.65)
192,749,753.04
(37,008,309.42)
155,741,443.62

Profit for the year
Adjustment for :
Loss from changing in value of cash and cash equivalents
Bad debt
Allowance for expected credit losses
		 (2019: Allowance for doubtful accounts)(Revesal)
Provisions for goods returned (Revesal)
Loss from devaluation of inventories (Revesal)
Share of loss of associates accounted
		 for using equity method
Allowance for impairment on assets/investment in subsidiary
Depreciation /Amortization
(Gain) loss from sales of property, plant and equipment
Amortization of prepaid rental
Difference from rental reduction
(Gain) loss from sales of other non-current assets
Impairment of other non-current assets (Reversal)
Estimation of employee benefits expenses
Finance costs
Tax expense
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Grand Prix International Public Company Limited and Subsidiaries
Statements of comprehensive income
For the year ended December 31, 2020
								
(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2020
2019
2020
2019
Cash Flows from investing activities :
157,152,291.88
Other current financial assets (Increase) Decrease
186,563,340.98
Other non-current financial assets (Increase) Decrease
(20,000,000.00)
Cash paid for short-term loan to associates
Cash paid for investments in a subsidiary
(251,959,900.00)
Cash paid for investments in a associates
Cash paid for long-term loans to related person
236,859.00
Cash repayment from long-term loans to related person
487198.59
Cash received from sale of property, plant and equipment
Cash paid for purchase of property, plant and equipment (12,298,925.61)
(1,881,605.89)
Cash paid for purchase of right-of-use assets
(2,798,702.00)
paid for purchase of intangible assets
55,500,556.95
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities :
(1,500,000.00)
Cash paid for lease liabilities
(65,999,989.00)
Paid dividend
(67,499,989.00)
Net cash used in financing activities
121,324.76
Differences on translating financial statements Increase
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (96,293,128.50)
147,582,925.18
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year
(433,419.02)
Adjustment effect of exchange rate
50,856,377.66
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year
Additional information disclosure relating to cash flows stated in note 27.
The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this financial statement.

9,691,846.77 157,152,291.88 9,691,846.77
(99,650,840.98) 186,563,340.98 (99,650,840.98)
- (20,000,000.00)
- (1,602,500.00)
(251,959,900.00)
- (600,000.00)
(600,000.00)
236,859.00
492,486.00
492,486.00
487198.59
(63,780,547.36) (12,298,925.61) (63,775,841.02)
- (1,881,605.89)
(6,536,533.00) (2,798,702.00) (6,536,533.00)
(160,383,588.57) 55,500,556.95 (161,981,382.23)
(113,999,981.00)
(113,999,981.00)
15,447.81
(123,015,717.41)
271,015,222.40
(416,579.81)
147,582,925.18

(1,500,000.00)
(65,999,989.00) (113,999,981.00)
(67,499,989.00) (113,999,981.00)
(96,651,452.86) (120,239,919.61)
146,737,504.96 267,394,004.38
(433,419.02) (416,579.81)
49,652,633.08 146,737,504.96
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Grand Prix International Public Company Limited and Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended December 31, 2020

1. General Information
1.1 Registration :

		
		

Grand Prix International Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a juristic person which incorporated in Thailand
on April 30, 1982. The Company was listed in the Stock of Exchange of Thailand on December 1, 2017.

		 Place of business :
		
Head office : is located at No.4/299, Moo 5, Soi Ladplaklao 66, Ladplaklao Road, Kwang Anusaovaree, Khet Bangkhen,
		 Bangkok.
		
Branch office 1 is located at No. 4/137, Moo 5, Soi Ladplaklao 66, Ladplaklao Road, Kwang Anusaovaree, Khet Bangkhen,
						Bangkok.
		
Branch office 2 is located at No. 4/309, Moo 5, Soi Ladplaklao 66, Ladplaklao Road, Kwang Anusaovaree, Khet Bangkhen,
						Bangkok.
		
Branch office 3 is located at No. 4/133, Moo 5, Soi Ladplaklao 66, Ladplaklao Road Kwang Anusaovaree, Khet Bangkhen,
						Bangkok.
		
Branch office 4 is located at No. 69, Moo 2, Tambon Bueng Sal, Amphur Ongkharak, Nakhon Nayok Province.
		 Major Business :
		
1. Providing space for car motor show exhibition and automotive related products and amarketing promotion services
			(Events)
		
2. Advertising media in printing , television and website
		
3. Production and distribution of books
		
4. Printing services
		 The Major Shareholders :
		
Eamlumnow group by shareholding 60.19 % (As at December 31, 2019 : 60.65%)

1.2 Coronavirus Disease 2019 Pandemic

		
		
		
		
		

The Coronavirus disease 2019 pandemic is currently impacting most businesses and industries. This situation may
bring uncertainties and have an impact on the environment in which the group operates. The Group’s management
continuously monitored the ongoing development and assessed the financial impact in respect of the valuation of
assets, provisions and contingent liabilities, and has used estimates and judgement in respect of various issues as
the situation has evolved.

2. Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements
2.1 Statement of Compliance

		

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial
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Reporting Standards enunciated under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation has been made in
compliance with the requirement of the Notification of the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission relating to
the format of the financial statements of securities companies (version 3) No. SorThor 6/2562 dated 8 January 2019
The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the Company. The financial
statements in English language have been translated from the Thai language financial statements.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise disclosed in the accounting
policies.

2.2 Consolidated Financial Statements Preparation Basis

		
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 consist of the financial statements
		
of Grand Prix International Public Company Limited. The Company held in its subsidiaries and associates shares capital as
		 follows:Percentage
Relationship
Type of business
2020 2019
Subsidiaries :
100.00 100.00 Providing space for car motor Subsidiary, shareholders/
GPI Myanmar Co., Ltd.
command by director
show exhibition and
automotive related products
Associates :
Associate
Trading center and providing
Automatrix Solutions Co., Ltd. 48.99
Electronic media through
Internet network service
network service
Production and distribution
Associate
25.45
True Energy Co., Ltd.
electric current
		 Subsidiaries
		
a. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated as from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
			 control, and continue to be consolidated until the effective date when such control ceases.
		
b. The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared using the same significant accounting policies as the Company.
		
c. Material balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries have been eliminated from the
			 consolidated financial statements.
		
d. Non-controlling interests is the amount of any gain or loss and the net assets of a subsidiary that is not held by
			 the Company and is presented separately in the consolidated income statement and in the shareholders’ equity
			 in the consolidated statement of financial position.
		 Associates
		
Associates are those entities in which the Company has significant influence, but not control, over the financial
		
and operating policies.

3. New Financial Rreporting Standards
a.

		
		
		

Financial Reporting Standards that Became Effective in the Current Year

During the period, the Group has adopted the revised (revised 2019) and new financial reporting standards and
interpretations which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2020. These financial reporting
standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards with most of
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the changes directed towards clarifying accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for users of the
standards. The adoption of these financial reporting standards does not have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements. However, the new standard involves changes to key principles, which are summarised below:

		 Financial Reporting Standards Related to Financial Instruments

		
A set of TFRSs related to financial instruments consists of five accounting standards and interpretations, as follows:
		
Financial reporting standards:
			 TFRS 7					
Financial Instruments: Disclosures
			 TFRS 9					
Financial Instruments
		
Accounting standard:
			 TAS 32					
Financial Instruments: Presentation
		
Financial Reporting Standard Interpretations:
			 TFRIC 16				
Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
			 TFRIC 19				
Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments
		
These TFRSs related to financial instruments make stipulations relating to the classification of financial instruments
		
and their measurement at fair value or amortised cost (taking into account the type of instrument, the characteristics
		
of the contractual cash flows and the Company’s business model), calculation of impairment using the expected credit
		
loss method, and hedge accounting. These include stipulations regarding the presentation and disclosure of financial
		 instruments.
		
		
The effects of the adoption of these accounting standards are described below:
		
- Recognition of credit losses - The Group is to recognise an allowance for expected credit losses on its financial
			 assets, and they are no longer necessary for a credit - impaired event to have occurred. The Group apply simplified
			 approach to consider impairment of trade receivables. The Group’s management has considered that the recognition
			 of credit losses does not have any significant impact on the adjustment of adjusrment in profit or loss in the
			 adopted year.
		
- TFRS 16 Leases
			 TFRS 16 supersedes TAS 17 Leases together with related Interpretations. The standard sets out the principles
			 for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases, and requires a lessee to recognise
			 assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is low
			 value. Accounting by lessors under TFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from TAS 17. Lessors will continue to
			 classify leases as either operating or finance leases.
			 The Group adopted these financial reporting standards using the modified retrospective method of initial adoption
			 of which the cumulative effect is recognised as the comparative information was not restated.
			 The cumulative effect of the change is described in Note 4 to the interim consolidated financial statements.
			 Accounting Treatment Guidance on “Temporary relief measures on accounting alternatives in
			 response to the impact of the COVID-19 situation”
			 The Federation of Accounting Professions announced Accounting Treatment Guidance on “Temporary relief
			measures on accounting alternatives in response to the impact of the COVID-19 situation”. Its objectives are to
			 alleviate some of the impact of applying certain financial reporting standards, and to provide clarification about
			 accounting treatments during the period of uncertainty relating to this situation.
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On 22 April 2020, the Accounting Treatment Guidance was announced in the Royal Gazette and it is effective
			 for the financial statements prepared for reporting periods ending between 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020.
			 The Group has elected to apply the following temporary relief measures on accounting alternatives:
			 - Not to account for any reduction in lease payments by lessors (if any) as a lease modification, with the
				 lease liabilities that come due in each period reduced in proportion to the reduction and depreciation of
				 right-of-use assets and interest on lease liabilities recognised in each period reversed in proportion to the
				 reduction, with any differences then recognised in profit or loss.
			 - Not to consider the COVID-19 situation as an indication that an asset may be impaired in accordance with
				 TAS 36, Impairment of Assets.

b.
		

Financial Reporting Standards that Became Effective for Fiscal Year Beginning on or After
January 1, 2021

		 The federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of revised financial reporting standards and interpretation,
		 which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1,2021. These financial reporting standards were
		 aimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes
		
directed towards clarifying accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance foe users of the standards that
		
included in amendments to reference to the Conceptual Framework in Financial Reporting Standards, Definition of a
		
business, Definiton of material and Reform referenced interest rate.
		
The management of the Group is currently evaluating the impact of these standards to the financial statements in the
		
year when they are adopted.

4. Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Policy Due to the Adoption of
New Financial Reporting Standard

As described in Note 3 to the financial statements, during the current period, the Group has adopted financial reporting
standard related to TFRS 16. The Group has adopted TFRS relating group of financial instrument. The Group elects not
to restate comparative financial statements.The Group has elected to apply this standard to the leases previously classified
as operating recognision right-of-use assets as lease-by-lease basis by book value of assets as if this standard has been
adopted since the effective date of lease discounted using the incremental borrowing rate as at January 1, 2020.
(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
December 31,
January 1,
The impacts of
2020
2019
TFRS 16

Statements of financial position
Assets
Current assets
Trade and other current receivables
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Other non-current assets
Non current liabilities
Lease liabilities

43,162,643.45

(1,106,110.71)

42,056,532.74

184,484,774.16
2,962,590.19

(2,448,826.33)
17,739,703.77
(1,367,942.83)

182,035,947.83
17,739,703.77
1,594,647.36

-

(12,816,823.90)

(12,816,823.90)
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(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
December 31,
The impacts of
January 1,
2019
TFRS 16
2020
Statements of financial position
Assets
Current assets
Trade and other current receivables
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Other non-current assets
Non current liabilities
Lease liabilities

45,528,891.20

(1,106,110.71)

44,422,780.49

184,480,956.63
2,962,590.19

(2,448,826.33)
17,739,703.77
(1,367,942.83)

182,032,130.30
17,739,703.77
1,594,647.36

-

(12,816,823.90)

(12,816,823.90)

Leases

Upon initial application of TFRS 16 the Group recognised lease liabilities previously classified as operating leases at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate at 1 January
2020. For leases previously classified as finance leases, the Group recognised the carrying amount of the right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities based on the carrying amounts of the lease assets and lease liabilities immediately before the
date of initial application of TFRS 16.
(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated
financial statements/
Separate financial
statements
Operating lease commitments as at December 31, 2019
Add : Obligations from renewal of lease
Less: Deferred interest expenses
Increase in lease liabilities due to TFRS 16 adoption
Lease liabilities as at January 1, 2020

3,000,000.00
12,000,000.00
(2,183,176.10)
12,816,823.90
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The adjustments of right-of-use assets due to TFRS 16 adoption as at January 1, 2020 are summarised below:
(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated
financial statements/
Separate financial
statements
2,455,657.49
294,495.79
2,750,153.28
(301,326.95)
2,448,826.33

Land improvement
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Total
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Net

Group of financial instruments
During the current period, the Group has adopted TFRS relating group of financial instrument. The Group elects not to
restate comparative financial statements.
The impacts on the beginning balance of retained earnings of 2020 from change in accounting policy due to the adoption
of this standard are presented as follows:
(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements/Separate financial statements
December 31,
January 1,
The impacts of
2019
2020
TFRS 9
Statements of financial position
Assets
Current assets
Current investments
Other current financial assets
Non-Current Assets
Other long-term invesment
Other non-current financial assets

357,201,913.58
-

(357,201,913.58)
357,201,913.58

357,201,913.58

187,292,014.11
-

(187,292,014.11)
187,292,014.11

187,292,014.11

5. Significant Accounting Policies

5.1 Revenues and Expenses Recognition

		
a.
			
		
b.
			
		
c.
			
		
d.

Revenues from providing area for showing merchandise recognized when completely rendered by using straight-line
method based on length of service.
Income from service activities is recognized when services are completed. Long-term activities will be recognized
by the method. Percentage of work done
Revenues from printed advertisement are recognized when it is released. Revenues from selling advertising on
TV and Website are recognized based on the time when it is broadcasted.
Income from printing services Recognize when service is completed.
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e.
			
			
			
		
f.
		
g
			
			
			
			
		
h.
		
i.

Revenues from selling product are recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have passed to the buyer. Revenues from sales are the invoiced value, excluding value added tax, of goods
supplied after deducting discounts and allowances. In case sales with condition return in the specific of time, the
Company will estimate provisions for goods returned as at the end of accounting period.
Revenue from other services Recognize when service is completed.
Interest income
Interest income is calculated using the effective interest method and recognized on an accrual basis. The effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, unless the financial assets subsequently
become credit-impaired when it is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (net of the allowance
for expected credit loss multiplied by effective interest rate).
Other income and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.
Dividends are recognized when the right to receive the dividends is established.

5.2 Cash and Cash Equivalents

		
		

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments with high liquidity. Repayment
within 3 months from the deposit date and there is no drawback.

5.3 Inventories

		
		
		
		

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Finished goods are valued at cost by specific method.
Cost of raw materials and supplies are valued at cost, using the weighted average method.
The cost of goods comprises raw material cost, conversion cost by allocating fixed manufacturing expenses based on
normal manufacture capacity.

5.4 Investments in Subsidiaries and Associate

		
a. Investment in associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method.
		 b. Investments in subsidiaries is accounted for in the separate financial statements using the cost method net of
			 allowance for impairment loss (if any).

5.5 Investment Property

		
		

Investment property refers to real estate held to benefit from rental income either from an increase in the value of
an asset or both which present as cost less allowance for impairment (if any)

5.6 Property, Plant and Equipment

		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		

Assets belonging to the Company
Land is stated at cost less provision for impairment (if any).
Building and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment (if any). Cost is
included direct related expense incurred in bringing the assets to their present location and condition.
Repairs and maintenance are recorded in the statement of comprehensive income during the accounting period as
incurred. The cost of major renovation and replacement cost of property, plant and equipment according to specific
period will be included in book value of assets and charged for depreciation. However, in case the replaced items
were included in book value of assets will be written off.
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		 Depreciation
		
		
		

Depreciation is recognized as expense in the statement of comprehensive income and calculated on a straight-line
method over the estimated useful life of each assets which is separately considered for material components and the
estimated useful life of the assets are as follows:
				
Useful lives
					Building				
20
Years
					 Building improvements			
3 - 20 Years
					 Machinery			
5, 10, 20 Years
					 Tools and equipment			
2 - 10 Years
					 Office furniture			
5, 10 Years
					 Office equipment			
2 - 10 Years
					 Vehicle				
5, 7, 10 Years
				 Land and assets under construction are not depreciated.

5.7 Leases

		
		
		

At inception of contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

		
		
		
		
		
		

The Group as a Lessee

		
		
		
		
		

Right-of-Use Assets

Accounting policies adopted since 1 January 2020
The Group applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. At the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is available for
use), the Group recognises right-of-use assets representing the right to use underlying assets and lease liabilities based
on lease payments.
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation, any accumulated impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities initially recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date of the lease less any lease incentives received.

		
Depreciation of right-of-use assets are calculated by reference to their costs, on the straight-line basis over the shorter
		
of their estimated useful lives and the lease term.
					Leasehold rights-Land			
6
Years				
					 Building and structures			
10, 20 Years
					 Furniture, fixtures and office equipment		
5, 10, 20 Years
		
If ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
		
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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Lease Liabilities

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be payable under residual value guarantees. Moreover, the lease payments
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses in in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.
The Group discounted the present value of the lease payments by the interest rate implicit in the lease or the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the assessment of
an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-Term Leases and Leases of Low-Value Assets

A lease that has a lease term less than or equal to 12 months from commencement date or a lease of low-value
assets is recognized as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Accounting policies adopted before 1 January 2020
Leases of property, plant or equipment which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The outstanding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
long-term payables, while the interest element is charged to profit or loss over the lease period. The assets acquired
under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease period.
Leases of property, plant or equipment which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

5.8 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired by the Company and subsidiaries, which have definite useful life, are stated at cost less
accumulated amortization and provision for impairment (if any).

Intangible assets is amortized and recorded in the statement of comprehensive income as follows:
a. Computer software is amortized by using a straight-line method over the economic life of the asset since it is
		 ready to be used within 10 years.
b. Magazine copyrights is amortized according to the number of magazine as specified in the copyright agreement
		 based on the number of magazine publishing in each of the accounting period under the period as specified in
		 each of copyright agreement.
Intangible assets under development are not amortized.
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5.9 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group performs impairment reviews in respect of the property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, investment properties and other intangible assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. The Group also carries out annual impairment reviews in respect
of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. An impairment loss is recognized when the recoverable
amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, is less than
the carrying amount. In determining value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation mode l is used. These calculations
are corroborated by a valuation model that, based on information available, reflects the amount that the Group could
obtain from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, after
deducting the costs of disposal.

An Impairment Loss is Recognized in the Income Statement.

In the assessment of asset impairment (except for goodwill) if there is any indication that the previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.
A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The increased carrying
amount of the asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss shall not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized
in the income statement.

5.10 Accounting Estimates

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Financial Reporting Standards required the management to
make several estimatio n and assumption which affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and notes
related thereto. Consequent actual results may differ from these estimate and may be adjusted in the next accounting
period. Significant accounting estimate are Allowance for expected credit losses and provision for impairment of assets.

5.11 Provision

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized
as finance cost.

5.12 Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards at times requires management
to make subjective judgments and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgments and
estimates affect reported amounts and disclosures and actual results could differ. Significant judgments and estimates
are as follow:
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Allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets
In determining an allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets, the Management is
required to make judgement and estimates expected credit losses of each debtor based upon, among other things,
past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debts and the forecast economic condition for groupings of various
customersegments with similar credit risks. The historical credit loss experience and forecast economic conditions of
the Group may also not be representative of whether a customer will actually default in the future.
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation, right-of-use assets , and intangible assets
In determining depreciation of plant and equipment and amortization of right-of-use assets and intangible assets, the
management is required to make estimates of the useful lives and residual values of plant and equipment and to
review useful lives and residual values when there are any changes.
In addition, the property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangibles assets are subject to impairment if
there is an indication that they may be impaired, and impairment losses are recorded in the period when it is determined
that their recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount.
Indications include significant falls in the market value of assets or the future economic benefits of assets, significant
changes in the overall business strategy impacting to the future utilization of assets, significant negative industry or
economic trends, significant loss of market share, and significant unfavorable regulatory and court decisions that impact
the business.
The impairment analysis of property, plant and equipment and assets on the long-term lease area, and intangible assets
requires management to make subjective judgments concerning estimates of cash flows to be generated by the assets
or the cash generating units and to choose a suitable discount rate in order to determine the present value of those
cash flows. The cash flow estimates are based on currently available information about the operations and require
management to make judgments regarding future market conditions and future revenues and expenses relevant to
the assets or the cash generating units subject to the review. Events and factors that may significantly affect the
estimates include, among others, competitive forces, changes in revenue growth trends, cost structures, changes in
discount rates and specific industry or market sector conditions.

Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for temporary difference arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes as at the end of reporting period when it is highly probable that
the Group will generate sufficient taxable profits from their future operations to utilize these deferred tax assets. If
management need to estimate the amounts of the deferred tax assets that the Company and its subsidiaries should
recognize, they take into account the amount of taxable profit expected in each future period.

Post-Employment Benefits Under Defined Benefit Plans

The obligation under defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuations. Inherent within these calculations
are assumptions as to discount rates, future salary increases, mortality rates and other demographic factors.
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Leases
The incremental borrowing rate of lease contract
The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, the management is required to
exercise judgement in estimating its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to discount lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate
of interest that the Company would have to pay for obtaining an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment with similar term of loan and collateral
Determining the lease term with extension and termination options
In determining the lease term, the management is required to exercise judgement in assessing whether the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option to extend or terminate the lease considering all relevant facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise either the extension or termination option. After the
commencement date, the company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances
that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to extend or to terminate

5.13 Provision for Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The Company recognized a provision for liabilities when an entity has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event. It is probable that an outflow of economic benefits resources will be required to settle the
obligation and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The contingent assets will be separately
recognized as an asset if it has factors supported that they will be virtually received.

5.14 Employee Benefit Obligations
a.
		
		
		
		
b.
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		

Provident Fund
The Company and subsidiaries has established provident fund under the defined contribution plan. The fund’s
assets are separated entitles which are administered by the external fund manager. The Company and employees
made contribution into such provident fund. The Company’s contribution payments to the provident fund were
recorded as expenses in the statement of comprehensive income in the incurred period.
Employee benefits
Post-employment benefits and other long-term employee benefits, the Company and subsidiaries has obligations
in respect of the severance payments it must pay to employees upon retirement under labor law. The Company
treats these severance payment obligations as the post-employment benefits. In addition, the Company provides
other long-term employee benefits such as full-time working period reward. The obligation under the post employment benefits and other long-term employee benefits are determined by a professionally qualified independent
actuary based on actuarial techniques, using the projected unit credit method. Under the new accounting policy,
the Company’s commitment about long - term employee benefits under the labor law were recognized in the
financial statements using the Projected Unit Credit Method, in the past such benefits were recognized when paid.

5.15 Foreign Currency Translation
a.
		
		
		
		

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Company and subsidiary are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Thai Baht, which is the company’s functional and presentation currency of
the Company and subsidiary.
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b. Transactions and balances
		 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
		 dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gain and loss resulting
		 from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets
		 and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the profit or loss.
		 When a gain or loss on a non - monetary item is recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange
		 component of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. Conversely, when a gain or loss on
		 a non - monetary item is recognized in profit and loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
		 in profit and loss.
c. Subsidiary
		 The results and financial position of subsidiary ( which is not the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that
		 have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency
		 as follows:
		 • Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at
			 the date of that statement of financial position;
		 • Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income or income statement are translated at
			 average exchange rates and
		 • All resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.

5.16 Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Thai Baht at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabillities denomated in foreign currencies at the statement financial position date
are translated to Thai Baht at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Gain or loss on exchange rate is recorded
in statement of income.
Non - monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost in foreign currencies are translated to Thai Baht at
the date of the transactions.

5.17 Income Tax

Income tax comprises current income tax and deferred income tax.
a. Current Income Tax
		 The Company and subsidiaries records the current income tax as expense for the occurring period in the statement
		 of comprehensive income by calculating income tax as described in the Revenue Code.
b. Deferred Tax
		 The Company and subsidiaries records deferred tax of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
		 assets and liabilities as at the end of reporting period and tax base of related assets and liabilities by using
		 enforceable tax rate as at the end of reporting period.
The Company and subsidiaries recognizes deferred tax liabilities of temporary differences liable to tax for all items.
However, deferred tax assets for temporary differences used for tax deduction including unutilized tax loss in the
amount probable that the Company has sufficient taxable profit to utilize such temporary difference to deduct tax and
unutilized tax loss.
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The Company and subsidiaries will review carrying amount of deferred tax assets at each reporting date and will reduce
such carrying amount if it is probable that the Company and subsidiaries will have no sufficient future taxable profits
for benefit utilization of partial or all deferred tax assets.
The Company and subsidiaries will record deferred tax directly to shareholders’ equity in case income tax incurred is
related to the transaction recorded directly to shareholders’ equity.

5.18 Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share as stated in the statement of comprehensive income is basic earnings per share. The basic earnings
per share is determined by dividing net profit for the year by the weighted average number of common shares issued
and paid-up.

5.19 Related Party Transactions

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by,
or are under common control with, the Company and subsidiaries, including holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries are related parties of the Company and subsidiaries. Associates and individuals owning, directly or indirectly,
an interest in the voting power of the Company that gives them significant influence over the enterprise, key management
personal, including directors and officers of the Company and subsidiaries and close members of the family of these
individuals and companies associated with these individuals also constitute related parties. In considering each possible
related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, more than the legal form.

5.20 Financial Instruments
Accounting policies adopted since 1 January 2020
The Group initially measures financial assets at its fair value plus, in the case of financial assets that are not measured
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. However, trade receivables, that do not contain a significant
financing component are measured at the transaction price as disclosed in the accounting policy relating to revenue
recognition.
Classification and measurement of financial assets
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as to be subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The classification of financial
assets at initial recognition is driven by the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flows characteristics of the financial assets.
Financial assets at amortised cost
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if the financial asset is held in order to collect contractual cash
flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (EIR) method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.
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Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets measured at FVTPL are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the income statement.
These financial assets include derivatives, security investments held for trading, equity investments which the Group
has not irrevocably elected to classify at FVOCI and financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest.
Financial liabilities
The Company classifies financial liabilities as measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities are initially recognised at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Derecognition of financial instruments
A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or have
been transferred and either the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the income statement.
Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at FVTPL. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.
For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month
ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure (a lifetime ECL).
The Group considers a significant increase in credit risk to have occurred when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due, and considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to have a significant increase in credit risk and to be
in default using other internal or external information,such as credit rating of issuers.
For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. It is
based on its historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Accounting policies adopted before 1 January 2020

Trade Accounts Receivable and Other Current Receivables

Trade accounts receivable and other receivables are stated at right to receive less allowance for doubtful accounts.
Doubtful accounts are provided based on a review of each receivable at the year end. Bad debts are recognized as
administrative expenses in the statement of comprehensive income.

Investment in Fixed Deposit

Current investments are investments in financial institution deposits which is due Over a period of 3 months but less
than 1 year is stated at cost.

Other Long-Term Investment

Investment in subsidiary in the separate financial statements are stated at cost less provision for impairment (if any).

5.21 Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between buyer and seller (market participants) at the measurement date. The Group applies a quoted market price in
an active market to measure their assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value by relevant
financial reporting standards. Except in case of no active market of an identical asset or liability or when a quoted
market price is not available, the Group measures fair value using valuation technique that are appropriate in the
circumstances and maximises the use of relevant observable inputs related to assets and liabilities that are required
to be measured at fair value.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on categories of input to be used in fair value measurement as follows:
		 Level 1			Use of quoted market prices in an observable active market for such assets or liabilities
		 Level 2			Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or indirectly
		 Level 3			Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows
At the end of each reporting period, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels within the
fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period that are measured at fair value on
a recurring basis.
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6. Transaction with Related Parties

6.1 Relationship Between the Related Parties Summarized as Follows:
Persons or company
GPI Myanmar Co., Ltd.
Blue Diamond Golf And
Water Sport Club Co., Ltd.
Automatrix Solutions Co. Ltd.
True energy Co., Ltd.
Director/shareholder
Key management

Relationship type
Subsidiary and Common director/shareholder

Type of transactions
Provide event organizer services
Provide printing services
Provide advertising services
Provide art work service
Provide office for rental
Management income
Leasehold rights and event space rental
Advertising and public relations wages
Location and service
fees for organizing seminars
Interest received

Pricing policy
Close to normal business price of other customers
Close to normal business price of other customers
Close to normal business price of other customers
Close to normal business price of other customers
Agreed-upon prices
Agreed-upon prices
Agreed-upon prices
Close to normal business price of other customers

Related companies and Common director/shareholder
Associated and Common director
Associated and Common director
Director/Major Shareholder of the company
Person with power and responsibility for planning
order and control various businesses of the business,
whether directly or indirectly, including directors
of the company (Whether acting at the executive level or not.)

Close to normal business price of other customers
Interest rate 7% per annum

ANNUAL REPORT

2020 113

6.2 Transactions in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Significant revenues and expenses with related parties for the year ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 summarized
as follows:
(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2020

Revenues from services :
GPI Myanmar Co., Ltd.
Blue Diamond Golf And Water
		 Sport Club Co., Ltd.
Automatrix Solutions Co., Ltd.
Total
Other income :
GPI Myanmar Co., Ltd.
True Energy Co., Ltd.
Blue Diamond Golf And Water
		 Sport Club Co., Ltd.
Total
Distribution cost :
Blue Diamond Golf And Water
		 Sport Club Co., Ltd.
Cost of services :
Blue Diamond Golf And Water
		 Sport Club Co., Ltd.

2020

2019
-

-

654,281.50
150,000.00
804,281.50

1,121,090.60
1,121,090.60

2,633,550.00

2019
93,496.60

654,281.50 1,121,090.60
150,000.00
3,437,831.50 1,214,587.20

280,000.00

-

517,802.99
797,802.99

607,000.00
607,000.00

517,802.99 607,000.00
1,092,136.32 1,436,222.11

2,710,846.34

3,819,741.97

2,710,846.34 3,819,741.97

130,000.00

170,000.00

294,333.33
280,000.00

130,000.00

829,222.11
-

170,000.00

(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements /
Separate financial statements
Key executive remuneration :
Directors remuneration
Executive remuneration :
		 Short-term benefits
		 Post-employment benefits
Total

2020

2019

5,117,000.00

5,180,000.00

29,615,290.19
957,311.96
30,572,602.15
35,689,602.15

37,015,455.22
2,592,355.44
39,607,810.66
44,787,810.66
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6.3 Transactions in the Statement of Financial Position
Significant balance with related parties summarized as follows:

Consolidated financial statements
2020
6.3.1 Trade accounts receivable :
GPI Myanmar Co., Ltd.
Blue Diamond Golf And Water
		 Sport Club Co., Ltd.
Automatrix Solutions Co., Ltd.
Other current receivables :
GPI Myanmar Co., Ltd.
True Energy Co., Ltd.
Blue Diamond Golf And Water
		 Sport Club Co., Ltd.
Total

2019

(Unit:Baht)
Separate financial statements
2020

2019

-

-

413531.56

-

656,687.89
656,687.89

57,331.67
57,331.67

656,687.89
1,070,219.45

57,331.67
57,331.67

280,000.00

-

1,123,555.44
280,000.00

3,465,702.28
-

3,026,120.00
3,306,120.00
3,962,807.89

1,186,360.71
1,186,360.71
1,243,692.38

3,026,120.00
4,429,675.44
5,499,894.89

1,186,360.71
4,652,062.99
4,709,394.66

6.3.2 Short-term loans to associated company
As of December 31, 2020, the Company has loan to True Energy Co., Ltd. (associated company) in the amount
of Baht 20 million for pre-machinery operation expenses. and fuel procurement for the construction of a power
plant project in order to be able to supply electricity to a commercial system (“SCOD”) within May 24, 2021,
with a one-year loan agreement bearinginterest rate 7% per annum with no collateral.
Movement and outstanding balance of loan to associated company are as follows.
(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements /
Separate financial statements
Beginning balance
Add Additional lending
Ending balance

2020
20,000,000.00
20,000,000.00

2019
-
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(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements /
Separate financial statements
2020
271,449.00

Employee

2020
508,308.00

The Company had loan to employees with payment due within two years deducted from salaries and
monthly wages, bearing no interest under welfare condition.
Movement and outstanding balance of long-term loan to related person are as follows.

(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements /
Separate financial statements
2020
2020

508,308.00
(236,859.00)
271,449.00

Beginning balance
Add Additional lending
Less Repayment
Ending balance

400,794.00
600,000.00
(492,486.00)
508,308.00

(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
6.3.4 Other non-current assets (Leasehold rights)
Blue Diamond Golf
		 And Water Sport Club Co., Ltd.
6.3.5 Lease liabilities
Blue Diamond Golf
		 And Water Sport Club Co., Ltd.

2020

2019

-

10,697,980.55

2020

1,367,942.83

2019

- 1,367,942.83

- 10,697,980.55

-
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7. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash
Current accounts
Savings deposit
Fixed deposit
Total

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit:Baht)
Separate financial statements

2020
2019
116,043.25
472,311.29
1,868,196.47 1,873,440.53
48,484,133.71 145,562,237.17
31,204.23
31,736.19
50,856,377.66 147,582,925.18

2020
2019
111,298.00
121,568.00
1,868,196.47 1,873,440.53
47,631,132.42 144,721,562.20
31,204.23
31,736.19
49,652,633.08 146,737,504.96

The Company has bank overdrafts total amount of Baht 23.00 million at interest rate MOR per annum. and
short-term loan amount of Baht 25 million at interest rate MLR per annum. Such credit line have been secured by
mortgaging certain land with its construction of the Company as stated in note 15. At the end of the period, the
Company did not use such credit line.

8. Trade and Other Current Receivables
Trade accounts receivable :
Related companies (Note 6.3.1)
Other parties
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses
(2019: Allowance for doubtful accounts)
Provisions for goods returned
Net
Other current receivables :
Other receivables - related company
(Note 6.3.1)
Accrued income
Prepaid expenses
Revenue Department receivable
Other
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses
(2019: Allowance for doubtful accounts)
Net
Total

Consolidated financial statements
2020
2019

(Unit:Baht)
Separate financial statements
2020
2019

656,687.89
22,484,202.90
23,140,890.79

57,331.67
37,279,470.14
37,336,801.81

57,331.67
1,070,219.45
22,441,834.50 37,215,086.78
23,512,053.95 37,272,418.45

(4,016,626.08)
(1,059,102.76)
18,065,161.95

(3,875,077.11)
(2,078,234.24)
31,383,490.46

(4,016,626.08) (3,875,077.11)
(1,059,102.76) (2,078,234.24)
18,436,325.11 31,319,107.10

3,306,120.00
12,246,462.82
10,926,627.65
6,898,129.94
831,142.74
34,208,483.15

1,186,360.71
9,381,384.03
7,713,391.30
694,278.63
18,975,414.67

4,429,675.44 4,652,062.99
12,246,462.82 9,381,384.03
10,926,627.65 6,693,800.10
6,898,129.94
678,798.66
793,145.43
35,294,041.29 21,406,045.78

(7,196,261.68)
27,012,221.47
45,077,383.42

(7,196,261.68)
11,779,152.99
43,162,643.45

(7,196,261.68) (7,196,261.68)
28,097,779.61 14,209,784.10
46,534,104.72 45,528,891.20
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(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements

Undue
Over due :
1 - 90			 days
91 - 180 days
181- 365 days
More than 365 days up
Total
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Separate financial statements

2020
12,432,204.69

2019
22,292,945.86

2020
2019
12,432,204.69 22,292,945.86

7,195,387.64
801,374.90
816,693.26
1,895,230.30
23,140,890.79

10,387,265.98
425,416.86
342,400.00
3,888,773.11
37,336,801.81

7,608,919.20 10,387,265.98
361,033.50
801,374.90
342,400.00
774,324.86
1,895,230.30 3,888,773.11
23,512,053.95 37,272,418.45

Movement of the allowance for expected credit losses (2019: Allowance for doubtful accounts) as follows:

Beginning of the year
Increase during the year
Write off
Received
End of the year

9. Inventories

Finished goods
Work in process
Raw materials
Less Allowance for inventories devaluation
Net

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit:Baht)
Separate financial statements

2020
2019
11,071,338.79 19,983,843.07
141,548.97
- (877,951.89)
- (8,034,552.39)
11,212,887.76 11,071,338.79

2020
2019
11,071,338.79 19,983,843.07
141,548.97
- (877,951.89)
- (8,034,552.39)
11,212,887.76 11,071,338.79

(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
Separate financial statements
2020
2019
3,290,229.59 3,196,670.51
3,650,641.40 2,007,256.06
3,683,491.19 5,806,646.98
10,624,362.18 11,010,573.55
(3,131,358.93) (3,201,076.53)
7,493,003.25 7,809,497.02
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Movement of the allowance for inventories devaluation for the year as follows:

(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements /
Separate financial statements
2020
3,201,076.53
(69,717.60)
3,131,358.93

Beginning of the year
Increase (decrease)
End of the year

2019
3,041,619.21
159,457.32
3,201,076.53

10. Other Current Financial Aassets

As at December 31, 2020, the Company had investments in fixed deposit due payment twelve-month with two bank total
amount of Baht 200 million. at interest rate 0.20% - 1.00% per annum.

11. Other Non-Current Financial Assets

(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements/
Separate financial statements
2020

2019
- 186,563,340.98

Long-term deposits at bank
Fair values are
 recognized in profit (loss).
Other non-marketable equity securities :
4,087,500.00 4,087,500.00
Invesments in other company
(3,494,234.03) (3,358,826.87)
Less : Loss on remeasuring investments (2019: Provision for impairment)
728,673.13
593,265.97
Net
593,265.97 187,292,014.11
Total
As at December 31, 2019, the Company had investments in fixed deposit due payment thirteen - month and fourteen - month
with a financial institution at interest rate 1.60% - 1.95% per annum.

12. Investments in Subsidiary

Details of investments in subsidiaries as presented in separate financial statements are as follows:
Paid up capital
USD
BAHT
50,000 1,602,500.00

Holdings

Cost

USD
BAHT
Company name
GPI Myanmar Co., Ltd.
100
50,000 1,602,500.00
Less Loss on remeasuring investments
(1,602,500.00)
Net
The subsidiary was registered on 28 November 2018 in the Republic of the Union of Myanmar.
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13. Investments in Associates

Investment in associated company as follows :

								(Unit:Baht)

Business type

Registered
Country

a. Automatrix Solutions
Co., Ltd.

Trading center
and providing
Electronic media
through Internet
network servic
b. True Energy Co., Ltd. Production and
distribution
electric current

As at December 31, 2020
Registered Paid up capital Holdings Carrying amounts
Country
based on equity
method
Thai

4,000,000.00

Thai

275,000,000.00

48.99

722,460.43

Cost

1,959,900.00

25.45 246,556,152.79 250,000,000.00
247,278,613.22 251,959,900.00

a. According to the Board of directors’ meeting No.4/2019 held on November 8, 2019, approve invest in Automatrix
Solutions Co.,Ltd. Which has a registered capital of 40,000 ordinary shares at per Baht 100 each.
b. According to the Board of directors’ meeting No.6/2020 held on March 31, 2020, approve invest in True energy Co., Ltd.
Which has a registered capital of 2,750,000 ordinary shares at per Baht 100 each.
		
Movements of the investment in associated company for the year ended December 31, 2020 as follows:
								(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated
financial
statements
Beginning of the year
251,959,900.00
Increase
(4,681,286.78
Share of loss of associates accounted for using equity method
247,278,613.22)
End of the year

14. Investment Property

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, The Company had investment property at book value of Baht 32.24 million, the fair
value amounted to Baht 49.64 million. The fair value of such investment properties is determined by purchase and selling
price of the land.

As at January 1, 2019
Purchase
Disposal/Write off
Tranfer in (out)
As at December 31, 2019
Purchase
Disposal/Write off
Tranfer to right-of-use assets
Tranfer in (out)
As at December 31, 2020
Accumulated depreciation
As at January 1, 2019
Depreciation for the year
Disposal/Write off
As at December 31, 2019
Depreciation for the year
Disposal/Write off
Tranfer to right-of-use assets
Tranfer in (out)
As at December 31, 2020
Net book value
As at December 31, 2019
As at December 31, 2020

Cost

Building

Separate financial statements
Office furniture Machine
Tools and
Building
equipment
improvement and fixtures

Office
equipment

Vehicle
Construction
in progress

Total

(Unit:Baht)

66,418,013.23 25,018,918.91 11,115,311.31 1,365,668.38 36,674,112.01 11,256,318.77
66,418,013.23 23,202,810.96 8,859,213.74 1,228,043.24 35,096,886.49 8,711,975.16

- 167,009,209.25
- 14,302,419.91
(195,015.82)
- 181,116,613.34
- 15,396,086.55
- (1,195,851.82)
(301,326.95)
(559,891.81)
- 194,455,629.31
6,925,262.82 17,194,855.17 8,515,365.99 184,483,826.59
7,375,196.03 15,167,974.05 14,036,266.70 180,096,379.60

- 67,837,787.79 4,875,991.77 5,898,363.04 36,607,952.35 5,513,949.88 21,982,800.31 24,292,364.11
- 1,785,454.35 2,026,115.69 610,640.74 1,360,413.76 2,819,319.97 3,172,070.32 2,528,405.08
(66,222.56) (66,490.92)
(62,302.34)
- 69,560,939.80 6,902,107.46 6,509,003.78 37,968,366.11 8,333,269.85 25,088,648.07 26,754,278.27
- 1,794,316.81 2,109,760.20 658,032.62 1,577,225.52 3,237,750.19 3,399,270.63 2,619,730.58
- (152,911.68)
(46,623.48) (653,908.80) (299,999.00)
(42,408.86)
(1,989.79)
(1,421.04)
- (297,916.12)
- (559,891.81)
- 71,312,847.75 8,713,951.54 7,014,124.72 39,545,591.63 11,522,975.52 27,272,128.30 29,074,009.85

66,418,013.23 94,676,393.71 9,973,232.38 7,251,833.88 36,697,968.26 13,839,240.34 29,158,744.32 38,599,130.78 2,972,488.65 299,587,045.55
- 5,471,697.74 622,838.28 37,944,509.86 5,750,348.28 3,002,518.39 5,350,002.66 8,115,365.99 66,257,281.20
(243,886.82)
- (147,351.82)
(96,535.00)
- (2,572,488.65)
- 2,572,488.65
66,418,013.23 94,579,858.71 18,017,418.77 7,874,672.16 74,642,478.12 19,589,588.62 32,013,910.89 43,949,133.44 8,515,365.99 365,600,439.93
982,407.85 4,445,804.25 242,383.17 6,503,280.71 13,745,195.78
- 1,029,024.00 542,295.80
- (276,200.00) (829,441.67) (300,000.00)
- (174,800.00)
(64,200.00)
- (1,644,641.67)
(60,845.79) (233,650.00)
- (2,455,657.49)
- (2,750,153.28)
(398,831.85)
- (749,299.14) 350,467.29 (982,380.00)
- 982,380.00
66,418,013.23 94,515,658.71 17,573,165.28 8,242,167.96 74,642,478.12 20,234,950.68 34,647,324.33 44,241,983.90 14,036,266.70 374,552,008.91

		
Property

15. Property, Plant and Equipment
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Building
Building
Office furniture
improvement and fixtures

equipment

Office
equipment

Vehicle
Construction
in progress

Total

(Unit:Baht)

66,418,013.23 94,676,393.71 9,973,232.38 7,251,833.88 36,697,968.26 13,839,240.34 29,158,744.32 38,599,130.78 2,972,488.65 299,587,045.55
As at January 1, 2019
- 5,471,697.74 622,838.28 37,944,509.86 5,750,348.28 2,997,812.05 5,350,002.66 8,115,365.99 66,252,574.86
Purchase
- (96,535.00)
- (147,351.82)
- (243,886.82)
Disposal/Write off
- 2,572,488.65
- (2,572,488.65)
Tranfer in (out)
66,418,013.23 94,579,858.71 18,017,418.77 7,874,672.16 74,642,478.12 19,589,588.62 32,009,204.55 43,949,133.44 8,515,365.99 365,595,733.59
As at December 31, 2019
- 1,029,024.00 542,295.80
- 982,407.85 4,445,804.25 242,383.17 6,503,280.71 13,745,195.78
Purchase
- (64,200.00)
- (174,800.00)
- (276,200.00) (829,441.67) (300,000.00)
- (1,644,641.67)
Disposal/Write off
- (2,455,657.49)
- (60,845.79) (233,650.00)
- (2,750,153.28)
Tranfer to right-of-use assets
- 982,380.00
- (749,299.14) 350,467.29 (982,380.00) (398,831.85)
Tranfer in (out)
66,418,013.23 94,515,658.71 17,573,165.28 8,242,167.96 74,642,478.12 20,234,950.68 34,642,617.99 44,241,983.90 14,036,266.70 374,547,302.57
As at December 31, 2019
Accumulated depreciation
- 67,837,787.79 4,875,991.77 5,898,363.04 36,607,952.35 5,513,949.88 21,982,800.31 24,292,364.11
- 167,009,209.25
As at January 1, 2019
- 1,785,454.35 2,026,115.69 610,640.74 1,360,413.76 2,819,319.97 3,170,233.94 2,528,405.08
- 14,300,583.53
Depreciation for the year
- (62,302.34)
- (66,222.56) (66,490.92)
- (195,015.82)
Disposal/Write off
- 69,560,939.80 6,902,107.46 6,509,003.78 37,968,366.11 8,333,269.85 25,086,811.69 26,754,278.27
- 181,114,776.96
As at December 31, 2019
- 1,794,316.81 2,109,760.20 658,032.62 1,577,225.52 3,237,750.19 3,399,270.63 2,619,730.58
- 15,396,086.55
Depreciation for the year
- (42,408.86)
- (152,911.68)
- (46,623.48) (653,908.80) (299,999.00)
- (1,195,851.82)
Disposal/Write off
- (297,916.12)
(1,421.04)
(1,989.79)
- (301,326.95)
Tranfer to right-of-use assets
- (559,891.81)
- (559,891.81)
Tranfer in (out)
- 71,312,847.75 8,713,951.54 7,014,124.72 39,545,591.63 11,522,975.52 27,270,291.92 29,074,009.85
- 194,453,792.93
As at December 31, 2020
Net book value
66,418,013.23 25,018,918.91 11,115,311.31 1,365,668.38 36,674,112.01 11,256,318.77 6,922,392.86 17,194,855.17 8,515,365.99 184,480,956.63
As at December 31, 2019
66,418,013.23 23,202,810.96 8,859,213.74 1,228,043.24 35,096,886.49 8,711,975.16 7,372,326.07 15,167,974.05 14,036,266.70 180,093,509.64
As at December 31, 2020
As at December 31, 2020, the Company has a fully depreciated property, plant and equipment still in use have cost value of Baht 123.39 million (2019 : Baht 116.93 million)
As at December 31, 2020, Certain of land with its construction at book value amounting to Baht 43.90 million (2019 : Baht 42.49 million) have been used as collateral for bank overdraft, short-term
loans from financial institution as stated in note 7.

Cost

Property

Separate financial statements
Machine
Tools and
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16. Leases

The Company entered into lease contract field area with a related company for activity operation term of lease 3 years ended
on May 14, 2021 and exercised an option to extend term of lease for 3 years ended on Mat 14, 2024.

16.1 Right-of-Use Assets

								(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements / Separate financial statements
Building
Leasehold
Furniture, fixtures and
Total
improvement
rights-Land
office equipment

Cost :
At January 1, 2020 – The effect from
adaptation of new financial
reporting standard
Purchase
As at December 31, 2020
Accumulated depreciation :
At January 1,2020 – The effect from
adaptation of new financial
reporting standard
Depreciation for the year
Difference from rental reduction
As at December 31, 2020
Net book value :
As at December 31, 2020

15,290,877.44
15,290,877.44

2,455,657.49
1,881,605.89
4,337,263.38

2,619,257.55
888,248.01
3,507,505.56

297,916.12
709,313.55
1,007,229.67

11,783,371.88

3,330,033.71

294,495.79 18,041,030.72
- 1,881,605.89
294,495.79 19,922,636.61

3,410.83
34,232.86
37,643.69

301,326.95
3,362,803.96
888,248.01
4,552,378.92

256,852.10 15,370,257.69

16.2
Liabilities
		Lease
							

(Unit:Baht)

Consolidated financial statements /
Separate financial statements
2020
2019
Lease liabilities
Less Current portion
Net

10,697,980.55
(5,264,513.84)
5,433,466.71

The company entered into filed area lease with a related company for activity operation term of the lease agreement is
ended May 14, 2024.

-
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As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, Future minimum lease payments required under the lease agreements were as
								(Unit:Baht)
follows:
Consolidated financial statements / Separate financial statements
Present value of minimum
lease payments

Minimum lease payments

Within 1 year
Over 1 year within 5 years
Less Future interest of financial leases
Present value of liabilities under financial leases

2020
6,000,000.00
6,000,000.00
12,000,000.00
(1,302,019.45)
10,697,980.55

2019

Lease
expenses recognized in the following items in part of profit or loss
								

-

2020
5,264,513.84
5,433,466.71
10,697,980.55
10,697,980.55

2019

-

(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial
statements / Separate
financial statements

Depreciation of right of use assets
Interest of lease liabilities
Lease expense related to leases of low-value assets

2019
3,362,803.96
278,831.77
359,873.63
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17. Other Intangible Assets
								(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements / Separate financial statements
Computer
Software under
Total
software
installation

Cost
As at January 1, 2019
Increased
Disposal
Tranfer in (out)
As at December 31, 2019
Increased
Disposal
Tranfer in (out)
As at December 31, 2020
Accumulated amortization
As at January 1, 2019
Increased
As at December 31, 2019
Increased
As at December 31, 2020
Net book value
As at December 31, 2019
As at December 31, 2020

6,857,285.80
4,918,140.00
(850,000.00)
1,057,770.00
11,983,195.80
12,000.00
120,000.00
12,115,195.80

1,329,000.00
1,960,900.00
(1,329,000.00)
1,960,900.00
2,786,702.00
(71,277.00)
(120,000.00)
4,556,325.00

8,186,285.80
6,879,040.00
(850,000.00)
(271,230.00)
13,944,095.80
2,798,702.00
(71,277.00)
16,671,520.80

3,757,042.74
1,309,273.65
5,066,316.39
1,460,271.13
6,526,587.52

-

3,757,042.74
1,309,273.65
5,066,316.39
1,460,271.13
6,526,587.52

6,916,879.41
5,588,608.28

1,960,900.00
4,556,325.00

8,877,779.41
10,144,933.28

18.		Deferred Income Tax / Income Tax Expenses

18.1 Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities After Appropriate Offsetting Have Been Included in
			 the Statement of Financial Position are as Follows :

								(Unit:Baht)

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax assets

Consolidated financial statements /
Separate financial statements
2020
2019
4,874,189.06
5635679.60
(1,586,412.20)
1269248.60
3,287,776.86
4366431.00
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18.2 The Movement of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities as Presentation in the Consolidated
			 and Separate Financial Statements Incurred For the Year Ended 31 December 2020 and
			 2019 are as Follows:

								(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements / Separate financial statements
As at
As at
Recognized as (expenses) / revenues in
January 1
December 31,
Profit or
Other
2020
2020
Losses
comprehensive
income or loss

Deferred tax assets :
Allowance for inventories devaluation
640,215.32
Provision for liabilities :- employee benefits 4,995,464.28
5,635,679.60
Deferred tax liabilities :
Temporary differences depreciation
(1,239,907.64)
Right-of-use assets
Lease liabilities
(29,340.96)
(1,269,248.60)
Deferred tax assets - net
4,366,431.00

(13,943.53)
(62,255.66)
(76,199.19)

- 626,271.79
(685,291.35) 4,247,917.27
(685,291.35) 4,874,189.06

46,845.28
(132,945.95)
(231,062.93)
(317,163.60)
(393,362.79)

- (1,193,062.36)
- (132,945.95)
- (260,403.89)
- (1,586,412.20)
(685,291.35) 3,287,776.86

								(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements / Separate financial statements
As at
As at
Recognized as (expenses) / revenues in
January 1,
December 31,
Profit or
Other
2019
2019
comprehensive
Losses
income or loss

Deferred tax assets :
Allowance for inventories devaluation
608,323.86
Provision for liabilities :- employee benefits 5,014,932.20
5,623,256.06
Deferred tax liabilities :
Temporary differences depreciation
(232,078.24)
Liabilities under financial leases
(86,630.68)
(318,708.92)
Deferred tax assets - net
5,304,547.14

31,891.46
1,269,003.88
1,300,895.34

640,215.32
(1,288,471.80) 4,995,464.28
(1,288,471.80) 5,635,679.60

(1,007,829.40)
57,289.72
(950,539.68)
350,355.66

- (1,239,907.64)
- (29,340.96)
- (1,269,248.60)
(1,288,471.80) 4,366,431.00
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18.3 Income Tax Recognized in Profit or Loss For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 and
		 								
2019 as Follows:
(Unit:Baht)

Income tax expenses
Changing in temporary differences
Income tax expenses in the statements of comprehensive income

Consolidated financial statements /
Separate financial statements
2020
2019
10,778,761.06
28,529,386.21
393,362.79
(350,355.66)
11,172,123.85
28,179,030.55

18.4 Income Tax on Components of Other Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended
		 								
December 31, 2020 and 2019 as Follows:
(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements /
Separate financial statements
2020
2019

Actuarial gains for employee benefit obligations
Less Income tax expenses
Net

3,426,456.77
(685,291.35)
2,741,165.42

6,442,359.00
(1,288,471.80)
5,153,887.20

18.5 Reconciliation Between Income Tax Expenses and the Product of Accounting Profit
		 Multiplied by Income Tax Rate for the Year Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
		 Present as Follows:

								
Profit before income tax
Add back loss without tax for subsidiary
Total
Tax rate
Amount of income tax

(Unit:Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2020
2019
2020
2019
45,263,752.77 130,895,192.20 49,300,470.81 136,883,096.74
957,931.26 5,987,904.54
46,221,684.03 136,883,096.74 49,300,470.81 136,883,096.74
20
20
20
20
9,244,336.81 27,376,619.35 9,860,094.16 27,376,619.35
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Tax effect implications for :
Incocom(expenses)that the accounting
basis difference from the tax basis
Non-deductible expenses
Additional deductible expenses
Allowance for expected credit losses (2019):
Allowance for doubtful accounts) (Reversal)
Share of loss of associates accounted
for using equity method
Income tax expense reported in the
statements of comprehensive income
Effective income tax rate

(Unit:Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2020
2019
2020
2019

218,697.37
804,158.21
(59,635.68)

183,585.79
2,647,029.13
(245,702.86)

28,309.79 (1,782,500.86)
936,257.35
1,927,787.04

802,411.20

11,172,123.85 28,179,030.55
20.59
24.17

218,697.37
1,124,658.21
(59,635.68)

Other current payables
Accrued expenses - Other parties
Revenue Department payable
Suspense output tax
Accrued witholding tax
Other
Total

183,585.79
2,647,029.13
(245,702.86)

28,309.79 (1,782,500.86)
1,312,029.69

802,411.20

11,172,123.85 28,179,030.55
20.59
22.66

19. Trade and Other Current Payables
								
Trade accounts payable :
Trade payable - Other parties
Trade notes payable
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(Unit:Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2020
2019
2020
2019
7,326,912.44
2,783,064.80
10,109,977.24

5,942,909.43
62,716.48
6,005,625.91

5,698,013.15 6,261,944.14
299,511.29 5,289,930.40
1,498,133.53 2,240,442.70
4,142,069.78 4,059,317.85
10,183,283.88 7,157,304.41
21,821,011.63 25,008,939.50
31,930,988.87 31,014,565.41

7,326,912.44
2,783,064.80
10,109,977.24

5,442,905.23
62,716.48
5,505,621.71

4,994,876.66 5,997,386.85
- 5,000,830.04
1,498,133.53 2,240,442.70
4,128,121.79 4,058,657.84
5,183,283.88 7,051,082.07
15,804,415.86 24,348,399.50
25,914,393.10 29,854,021.21
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20. Unearned Revenues
								
Unearned revenues for motor show space
Others
Total

(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2020
2019
2020
2019
- 140,886,007.42
- 138,133,465.60
337,445.99 1,217,720.49
1,217,720.49
337,445.99
1,217,720.49 141,223,453.41 1,217,720.49 138,470,911.59

21. Non-Current Provisions for Employee Benefits

21.1 Movement of the Present Value of the Employee Benefit Obligations are as Follows:

								
Beginning of the year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Less adjustment
Past service cost
Employee benefit payment during in the year
Profit from actuarial estimates
End of the year

(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements /
Separate financial statements
2020
2019
24,977,321.46 25,074,661.06
1,883,188.00 1,606,499.00
653,861.00
380,802.00
(14,465.13)
- 4,589,524.05
(504,864.65)
(2,560,803.00)
(3,426,456.77) (6,442,359.00)
21,239,586.56 24,977,321.46

21.2 Employee Benefit Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
		 For the Year are as Follows:

								

Cost of sales and services
Distribution cost
Administrative expenses
Total

(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements /
Separate financial statements
2020
2019
1,054,168.92 3,592,017.38
353,817.15
108,500.16
1,086,855.67 2,904,049.52
2,249,524.75 6,849,884.05
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21.3 (Gains) Loss From Provision For Actuarial Technique Recognized in Other Comprehensive
		 Income For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as Follows:

								

Discount rate
Future salary growth
Employee turnover rate (depend on working period of employee)
Experience adjustment
Total

(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements /
Separate financial statements
2020
2019
342,564.00
218,469.00
(3,803,553.00) (6,410,531.00)
(3,499.00) (1,138,033.00)
763,641.00
162,126.23
(3,426,456.77) (6,442,359.00)

21.4 Principal Actuarial Assumptions at the Reporting Date (Expressed as Weighted Averages)
		 as Follow:
Discount rate
Future salary growth
Employee turnover rate (depend on working period of employee)
Mortality rate (TMO2017)
Disability rate (TMO2017)

21.5 Sensitivity Analysis

2020

1.61%
5.01%
0 - 24.00%
100.00%
10.00%

2019

1.71%
7.02%
0 - 22.00%
100.00%
10.00%

		
		
		

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.
Employee benefit obligations.
								
(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements / Separate financial statements
2019
2020
Increase
Decrease
Increase
Decrease
Discount rate (change 0.50%)
(849,289.00)
900,022.00 (1,050,800.00) 1,118,847.00
Future salary growth (change 0.50%)
971,061.00 (923,571.00) 1,178,191.00 (1,116,745.00)
Employee turnover rate (change 0.50%)
(1,077,936.00) 1,143,106.00 (1,326,997.00) 1,414,552.00

		
		

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does
provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.
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22. Legal Reserve

According to the Public Company Limited Act B.E.2535, the Company has appropriated its reserve as a legal reserve not
less than 5% of the annual net profit deducted by the total deficit brought forward (if any) until the reserve reaches an
amount not less than 10% of the authorized share capital. The legal reserve is not available for dividends distribution.

23. Dividend

23.1 During the Year 2020, the Company Paid Dividend 2 Times Total Amount of Baht 66 Million,
		 as Follows .
		
			
			
			
			
			
		
			
			
			

Approved the cancellation of the dividend of the year 2019 approved in the Board of Director meeting no.2/2020
held on February 18, 2020. However, the Board of Director meeting passed resolution to pay interim dividend
from remaining retained earnings as at December 31, 2019 to shareholders 600 million share Baht 0.08 per
share amount of Baht 48 million. Such interim dividend was already paid on April 24, 2020. Such interim
dividend payment was informed to shareholders in the annual shareholder meeting of the year 2020 held on
July 7, 2020
According to the Board of Directors Meeting No.11/2020, held on November 11, 2020, resolved to pay the
interim dividend from performance for the year ended 2020, for the total eligible shares of 600 million shares
at the rate of Baht 0.03 per share totalling Baht 18.00 million to the shareholders. The Company already paid
on December 1, 2020.

23.2 During the Year 2019, the Company Paid Dividend 2 Times Total Amount of Baht 114 Million,
		 as Follows .
		
			
			
			
		 			
			
			

According to Annual General Meeting of Shareholders year 2019, held on March 28, 2019, resolved to pay
the dividend from the remaining performance for the second quarter of 2018, for the total eligible shares of
600 million shares at the rate of Baht 0.09 per share totalling Baht 54 million to the shareholders.
The Company already paid on April 19, 2019.
According to the Board of Directors Meeting No. 3/2019, held on August 8, 2019, resolved to pay the
interim dividend from performance for the second quarter of 2018 and the performene for the first quarter
2019, for the total eligible shares of 600 million shares at the rate of Baht 0.10 per share totalling Baht 60
million to the shareholders. The Company already paid on September 6, 2019.

24. Directors’ Remuneration and Management Benefit Expenses

Directors’ remuneration is the benefits paid to the Company’s directors excluding salaries and relating benefits which
were paid to executive directors according to Section 90 of the Public Company Limited Act.
Management benefit expenses focuses expenses relating to salaries, remunerations and other benefits to the directors
and management, in accordance with the definitions of the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Management under definition includes a chief executive officer, the next four executive levels immediately below that
chief executive officer and all persons in positions comparable to these fourth executive levels including a chief executive
officer in accounting or finance or comparable positions.
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25. Provident Fund

The Company and the employees has jointly established provident fund in accordance with the provident fund Act B.E.
2530. The Company has to make contribution and the employees have to paid to the fund on monthly basis at rate 5%
of their salary and will pay to employees when they resigns according to the regulation of the fund of

For the years ended December 31, 2020 the Company made a contribution to the provident fund in amount of Baht 4.36 million
(2019 : Baht 4.05 million)

26. Expenses by Nature

Significant expenses by nature for the years as follows :

								

Consolidated financial statements
2020
2019

Changing in finished goods and work in process
Raw material used
Hire of work expenses for plate and original manus
Employee expenses
Directors’ remuneration
Management benefit expenses (Note 6.2 )
Service charge for using area for organizing event
Structure decoration expenses
Advertising expenses
Hire of work expenses for organize activities
Depreciation/Amortization

(1,736,944.42)
13,807,704.63
19,208,886.32
122,635,714.03
5,117,000.00
30,572,602.15
91,045,650.10
29,265,974.77
28,054,260.27
16,950,336.21
20,291,386.21

(Unit:Baht)
Separate financial statements
2020
2019

1,446,517.61 (1,736,944.42) 1,446,517.61
22,520,084.57 13,807,704.63 22,520,084.57
27,831,548.51 19,208,886.32 27,831,548.51
128,606,487.80 122,635,714.03 128,606,487.80
5,180,000.00 5,117,000.00 5,180,000.00
39,607,810.66 30,572,602.15 39,607,810.66
121,031,475.66 88,832,126.82 115,234,811.82
57,993,360.63 28,608,815.00 54,718,353.57
31,603,424.36 27,991,672.73 31,003,082.13
28,777,490.86 14,706,670.58 27,921,492.43
16,460,746.00 20,290,438.64 16,459,857.18

27. Supplementary Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

27.1 Non-Cash Transactions For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 were as Follows:

		
			
			
		
-

The Company transfer other non-current assets (Barter goods) amounting to Baht 0.35 million to property,
plant and equipment and transfer Office equipment at book value amounting to Baht 0.19 million to other-non
curent assets.
The Company purchased office equipment amounting to Baht 1.45 million by credit.

27.2 Non-Cash Transactions For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 were as Follows:
		
		

- The Company purchased office equipment amounting to Baht 2.48 million by credit.
- The Company purchased other intangible assets amounting to Baht 0.07 million by credit.
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28. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

28.1 The Company had commitments to pay the rental and service charge according to agreements as follows:
								
(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements /
Separate financial statements
2020
2019
Within 1 year
9,302,497.58 2,094,541.12
Over 1 year within 5 years
22,300.00
218,278.95
Total
9,324,797.58 2,312,820.07

28.2 As at December 31, 2020 the Company has commitments to pay consulting fee to an expert Baht 8.89 million
		 with 1 year. When the contract is expired and no any party want to terminate, the contract will be automatically
		
renewed. (2019 : about Baht 5.96 million)
28.3
		
		
		
		

The Company had commitment to pay supporting expenses of Thai Automotive Industry Association, a co-host
of Bangkok International Motor Show, with the Company and a member of Organization International Des
Constructeurs D’Automobiles (OICA), an international Association, which has certified standard of such
motor show every two years. The Company will pay supporting expenses to such association Baht 5.00 million
for the year certified by OICA and Baht 4.00 million for the year uncertified.

28.4
		
		
		

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company has contingent liabilities from letter of guarantee to
Metropolitan Electricity Authority issued by bank for electricity usage amount of Baht 0.31 million and monthly
mailing post service with Thailand post Co., Ltd. amount of Baht 0.01 million, total amount of Baht 0.32 million,
secured by fixed deposit.

Activities
2019

Media & Publishing
2020
2019

Provide printing services
2020
2019

For the year ended December 31,

2020

Total
2019

(Unit:Baht)

Revenues from sales and services 437,839,320.37 617,533,850.18 42,985,787.75 49,919,112.74 28,585,789.96 51,878,937.46 509,410,898.08 719,331,900.38
(220,724,478.40) (334,145,877.62) (47,017,902.77) (50,478,920.61) (32,008,737.93) (46,055,769.05) (299,751,119.10) (430,680,567.28)
Costs of sales and services
5,823,168.41 209,659,778.98 288,651,333.10
217,114,841.97 283,387,972.56 (4,032,115.02)
Gross Profit (Loss)
(559,807.87) (3,422,947.97)
Other income
2,592,114.51 2,824,568.32
Distribution cost
(51,598,788.52) (49,610,132.72)
Administrative expenses
(117,185,641.25) (122,701,053.17)
Finance incom
6,756,407.60 11,730,476.67
Finance costs
(278,831.77)
Share of loss of associates accounted for using equity method
(4,681,286.78)
Profit before income tax expense
45,263,752.77 130,895,192.20
Income tax expense
(11,172,123.85) (28,179,030.55)
Profit for the period
34,091,628.92 102,716,161.65

2020

		

Consolidated financial statements

The main segment operation of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 as follows:

Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the chief decision maker officer in order to make decisions
about the allocation of resources to the segment and assess its performance. The chief decision maker officer is the Managing Director of the Company.

29. Business Segment Information
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Activities
2019

Media & Publishing
2020
2019

Provide printing services
2020
2019

For the year ended December 31,

2020

Total
2019

(Unit:Baht)

Revenues from sales and services 431,628,375.94 609,505,817.66 42,985,787.75 49,919,112.74 28,585,789.96 51,878,937.46 503,199,953.65 711,303,867.86
Costs of sales and services
(215,148,031.29) (322,575,417.81) (47,017,902.77) (50,478,920.61) (32,008,737.93) (46,055,769.05) (294,174,671.99) (419,110,107.47)
5,823,168.41 209,025,281.66 292,193,760.39
Gross Profit (Loss)
216,480,344.65 286,930,399.85 (4,032,115.02)
(559,807.87) (3,422,947.97)
Other income
2,886,447.84 3,536,629.15
Distribution cost
(51,140,036.80) (48,612,531.77)
Administrative expenses
(117,948,002.22) (121,965,214.82)
Finance income
6,755,612.10 11,730,453.79
Finance costs
(278,831.77)
Profit before income tax expense
49,300,470.81 136,883,096.74
Income tax expense
(11,172,123.85) (28,179,030.55)
Profit for the period
38,128,346.96 108,704,066.19

2020

		

Separate financial statements
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30. Financial Instruments

Financial Instrument Risk Management Objectives and Policies Continued
The Group’s financial instruments principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other current receivables,
other current financial assets, other non-current financial assets, short-term loans to associated, long-term loan to related
persons, trade and other current payables, and lease liabilities. The financial risks associated with these financial
instruments and how they are managed is described below.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of a customer or counterparty to settle its financial and
contractual obligations to the Company as and when they fall due. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. At the reporting date there were no significant concentrations of credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial position.
However, due to the large number of parties comprising the Company’s customer base, Management does not anticipate
material losses from its debt collection.

Market Risk
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that future movements in market interest rates will affect the results of the Company’s
operations and it scash flows. The Company is primarily exposed to interest rate risk from long-term investments.
The management has considered that the interest rate risk is low as the interest rates are mainly fixed.
Consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2020
Floating
Fixed
Zero
Total
Interest rate
interest rate interest rate interest rate
Financial assets :
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other current receivables
Short-term loan to associates
Other current financial assets
Other non-current financial assets
Long-term loan to related persons
Financial Liabilities :
Trade and other current payables
Lease liabilities

48,484,133.71

31,736.19

- 20,000,000.00
- 200,049,621.70
-

2,340,507.76 50,856,377.66
45,077,383.42 45,077,383.42
- 20,000,000.00
- 200,049,621.70
593,265.97
593,265.97
271,449.00
271,449.00

- 31,930,988.87
5,433,466.71

31,930,988.87
5,433,466.71

0.05 - 0.50
7.00
0.20 - 1.00
6.875
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Separate financial statements as at December 31, 2020
Floating
Fixed
Zero
Total
Interest rate
interest rate interest rate interest rate
Financial assets :
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other current receivables
Short-term loan to associates
Other current financial assets
Other non-current financial assets
Long-term loan to related persons
Financial Liabilities :
Trade and other current payables
Lease liabilities

47,631,132.42
31,736.19 1,989,764.47 49,652,633.08
- 46,534,104.72 46,534,104.72
- 20,000,000.00
- 20,000,000.00
- 200,049,621.70
- 200,049,621.70
593,265.97
593,265.97
271,449.00
271,449.00
-

- 25,914,393.10
5,433,466.71

25,914,393.10
5,433,466.71

0.05 - 0.50
7.00
0.20 - 1.00
6.875

Consolidated financial statements as at January 1, 2020
Floating
Fixed
Zero
Total
Interest rate
interest rate interest rate interest rate
Financial assets :
145,562,237.17
31,204.23 1,989,483.78 147,582,925.18
Cash and cash equivalents
- 43,162,643.45 43,162,643.45
Trade and other current receivables
- 357,201,913.58
- 357,201,913.58
Other current financial assets
728,673.13 187,292,014.11
Other non-current financial assets 186,563,340.98
508,308.00
508,308.00
Long-term loan to related persons
Financial Liabilities :
- 31,014,565.41 31,014,565.41
Trade and other current payables
- 12,816,823.90
- 12,816,823.90
Lease liabilities

0.05 - 1.00
0.90 - 1.95
1.60 - 1.95
6.875
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Separate financial statements as at January 1, 2020
Floating
Fixed
Zero
Total
Interest rate
interest rate
interest rate
Financial assets :
144,721,562.20
31,204.23 1,984,738.53 146,737,504.96
Cash and cash equivalents
- 45,528,891.20 45,528,891.20
Trade and other current receivables
- 357,201,913.58
- 357,201,913.58
Other current financial assets
728,673.13 187,292,014.11
Other non-current financial assets 186,563,340.98
508,308.00
508,308.00
Long-term loan to related persons
Financial Liabilities :
- 29,854,021.21 29,854,021.21
Trade and other current payables
- 12,816,823.90
- 12,816,823.90
Lease liabilities

0.05 - 1.00
0.90 - 1.95
1.60-1.95
6.875

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
the Group’s profit before tax does not significantly impacted by change in interest rates.

31. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Since the majority of the Group’s financial instruments are short-term in nature or carrying interest at rates close to the
market interest rates, their fair value are not expected to be materially different from the amounts presented in the
statements of financial position.
The carrying value and fair value of foreign currency forward contracts and debentures as at are presented as follows:
								
(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2020
Carrying value
Fair value
Fair value through Amortised cost
Total
profit or loss
Financial assets :
- 50,856,377.66 50,856,377.66 50,856,377.66
Cash and cash equivalents
- 45,077,383.42 45,077,383.42 45,077,383.42
Trade and other current receivables
20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
Short-term loan to associates
- 200,049,621.70 200,049,621.70 200,049,621.70
Other current financial assets
593,265.97
593,265.97
593,265.97
Other non-current financial assets
271,449.00
271,449.00
271,449.00
Long-term loan to related persons
593,265.97 316,254,831.78 316,848,097.75 316,848,097.75
Total
Financial Liabilities :
- 26,930,988.87 26,930,988.87 26,930,988.87
Trade and other current payables
- 5,433,466.71 5,433,466.71 5,433,466.71
Lease liabilities
- 32,364,455.58 32,364,455.58 32,364,455.58
Total
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Financial assets :
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other current receivables
Short-term loan to associates
Other current financial assets
Other non-current financial assets
Long-term loan to related persons
Total
Financial Liabilities :
Trade and other current payables
Lease liabilities
Total

(Unit:Baht)
Separate financial statements as at December 31, 2020
Carrying value
Fair value
Fair value through Amortised cost
Total
profit or loss
593,265.97
593,265.97

49,652,633.08 49,652,633.08 49,652,633.08
46,534,104.71 46,534,104.71 46,534,104.71
20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
200,049,621.70 200,049,621.70 200,049,621.70
593,265.97
593,265.97
271,449.00
271,449.00
271,449.00
296,507,808.49 297,101,074.46 297,101,074.46

- 25,914,393.10
5,433,466.71
- 25,914,393.10

25,914,393.10 25,914,393.10
5,433,466.71 5,433,466.71
25,914,393.10 25,914,393.10

								

(Unit:Baht)
Consolidated financial statements as at January 1, 2020
Carrying value
Fair value
Fair value through Amortised cost
Total
profit or loss

Financial assets :
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other current receivables
Other current financial assets
Other non-current financial assets
Long-term loan to related persons
Total
Financial Liabilities :
Trade and other current payables
Lease liabilities
Total

728,673.13
728,673.13

147,582,925.18
43,162,643.45
357,201,913.58
186,563,340.98
508,308.00
735,019,131.19

- 31,014,565.41
- 12,816,823.90
- 43,831,389.31

147,582,925.18
43,162,643.45
357,201,913.58
187,292,014.11
508,308.00
735,747,804.32

147,582,925.18
43,162,643.45
357,201,913.58
187,292,014.11
508,308.00
735,747,804.32

31,014,565.41 31,014,565.41
12,816,823.90 12,816,823.90
43,831,389.31 43,831,389.31
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Financial assets :
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other current receivables
Other current financial assets
Other non-current financial assets
Long-term loan to related persons
Total

(Unit:Baht)
Separate financial statements as at January 1, 2020
Carrying value
Fair value
Fair value through Amortised cost
Total
profit or loss
728,673.13
728,673.13

Financial Liabilities :
Trade and other current payables
Lease liabilities
Total

146,737,504.96
45,528,891.20
357,201,913.58
186,563,340.98
508,308.00
736,539,958.72

- 29,854,021.21
- 12,816,823.90
- 42,670,845.11

146,737,504.96
45,528,891.20
357,201,913.58
187,292,014.11
508,308.00
737,268,631.85

146,737,504.96
45,528,891.20
357,201,913.58
187,292,014.11
508,308.00
737,268,631.85

29,854,021.21 29,854,021.21
12,816,823.90 12,816,823.90
42,670,845.11 42,670,845.11

The fair value of financial instruments is estimated on the following criteria. The fair value of investment in equity
instruments of non-listed companies has been determined by analysis and considering change in the invested companies’
financial position and operating performance, including other several factors, and concluded that the cost of those
investments has appropriately represented the fair value of the investments.
During the current year, there was no transfer within the fair value hierarchy.
Fair value hierarchy
The Group had the assets that were measured at fair value and liabilities for which fair value were disclosed using different levels of inputs as follows:
								
(Unit:Baht)

Financial assets:
Other non current financial assets

Financial assets:
Other non current financial assets

Consolidated financial statements/Separate financial statements as at December 31, 2020
Level 2
Level 2
Level 3
Total
593,265.97
593,265.97
Consolidated financial statements/Separate financial statements as at January 1, 2020
Level 2
Level 2
Level 3
Total
186,563,340.98

-

728,673.13

187,292,014.11
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32. Capital Management

The objective of financial management of the Company is to maintain the ability of operation as a going concern 		
and proper capital structure.
As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the company has debt to equity ratio as follow :

								

Debt to equity ratio (equal)

Consolidated financial statements
2020
2019
0.09
0.26

(Unit:Baht)
Separate financial statements
2020
2019
0.08
0.25

33. Events After the Reporting Period

33.1 According to the Board of Director meeting no. 1/2021 held on January 20, 2021, the
		 Company Passed Resolutions as Follows:
		
a.
			
		
b.
			
		
c.
			
			
			

Approve the Company to increase the business of selling collectible cars and custom cars for the purpose
of trading,
To approve the Company to apply for short-term loan in bank overdraft credit line Baht 50 million, bearing in
terest rate F/D + 0.90% per annum, for the purpose of using as working capital of the Company.
Approved the Company to provide financial assistance to True Energy Co., Ltd. (Associated company) amount
not exceeding Baht 30 million, bearing interest rate 6% per annum, loan term of 1 year, with land and buildings
as collateral for a total amount of Baht 50 million. And on January 25, 2021, the Company has provided loan
to that associated company amount to Baht 13 million.

33.2 According to the Board of Director Meeting No. 2/2021 held on February 19, 2021, the
		 Company Passed Resolutions as Follows:
		 a.
			
			
		 b.
			

To approve pay the dividend from retained earnings as of 31 December 2020 for the total eligible shares of
600 million shares at the rate of Baht 0.05 per share totalling Baht 30 million to the shareholders. which the
company will propose to the 2021, annual general meeting of the company for further approval.
Approved to addtionally invest in Automatrix Solutions Co., Ltd. (Associated company) under prevoius shareholding
proportion 48.99 % amount of Baht 1.96 million.

34. Financial Statements Approval

These financial statements have been approved to be issued by the Company’s director on February 19, 2021.

